MEMORANDUM

To:

Joseph Kahn

From:

Trina L. Vielhauer

Subject:

Walt Disney World Company

Date:

August 14, 2006

Attached is the Final Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC for the subject facility. This permit modifies Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and replaces the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a condition that addresses NOx four-hour rolling average calculations and recording. No other changes were requested or made.

The Department distributed an "Intent to Issue Permit" package on July 14, 2006. The applicant published the "Public Notice of Intent to Issue" in the Orlando Sentinel on July 21, 2006. No petitions for administrative hearings or extensions of time to petition for an administrative hearing were filed. No comments were received on the draft permit.

I recommend your signature.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE OF FINAL PERMIT

In the Matter of an Application for Permit by:

Walt Disney World Company WDW Resort Complex - Reedy Creek Improvement District 1375 Buena Vista Drive Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Reedy Creek Improvement District Gas Turbine Replacement Project

Authorized Representative:

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President

Enclosed is Final Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC which modifies Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and replaces the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a condition that addresses NOx four-hour rolling average calculations and recording. No other changes were requested or made. The equipment is installed at Reedy Creek Improvement District in the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. As noted in the attached Final Determination, no changes were made to the Draft Permit. This permit is issued pursuant to Chapter 403, Florida Statutes.

Any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal. The notice must be filed within thirty (30) days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Zum L Vilham

Trina L. Vielhauer, Chief Bureau of Air Regulation

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Notice of Final Permit (including the Final permit) was sent by certified mail (*) and copies were mailed by U.S. Mail before the close of business on 🐧 to the persons listed:

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Walt Disney World Company *

Mr. Edward Godwin, P.E., Reedy Creek Energy Services

Mr. Len Kozlov, P.E., Central District

Mr. Gregg Worley, EPA Region 4

Mr. John Bunyak, NPS

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to §120.52, Florida Statutes, with the designated Department

Clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

Division of Air Resource Management • Bureau of Air Regulation • Permitting South Section 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5505 • Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

FINAL DETERMINATION

PERMITTEE

Walt Disney World Company
WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District
1375 Buena Vista Drive
Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

PERMITTING AUTHORITY

Florida Department of Environmental Protection Division of Air Resource Management Bureau of Air Regulation, Permitting South Section 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 5505 Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-2400

PROJECT

Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District

This permit modifies Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and replaces the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a condition that addresses NOx four-hour rolling average calculations and recording. No other changes were requested or made. The equipment is installed at the Reedy Creek Improvement District in the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida.

NOTICE AND PUBLICATION

The Department distributed an "Intent to Issue Permit" package on July 14, 2006. The applicant published the "Public Notice of Intent to Issue" in the Orlando Sentinel on July 21, 2006. No petitions for administrative hearings or extensions of time to petition for an administrative hearing were filed. No comments were received on the draft permit.

CONCLUSION

The final action of the Department is to issue the permit.



Department of Environmental Protection

Jeb Bush Governor Twin Towers Office Building 2600 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Colleen M. Castille Secretary

PERMITTEE:

Walt Disney World Company
WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID)
1375 Buena Vista Drive
Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

Authorized Representative:

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President

Reedy Creek Improvement District Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Facility ID No. 0950111 SIC No. 7996

Permit Expires: November 1, 2006

FACILITY AND LOCATION

This project is a modification to air construction permit 0950111-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005. Included below is the original language of the air construction permit, with minor adjustments and additions to reflect the current modification request.

Air Permit 0950111-025-AC authorized the replacement of the existing LM 5000 gas turbine (EU-088) with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM. The permit has an expiration date of November 1, 2006. The Reedy Creek Improvement District operates an electrical generating plant at the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. The UTM map coordinates are: Zone 17; 449.70 km East; and 3138.00 km North (Latitude: 28° 22' 24" North / Longitude: 81° 32' 46" West).

STATEMENT OF BASIS

This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Title 40, Parts 60, 63, and 72, 75, and 77 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The permittee is authorized to install the proposed equipment in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as described in the application, approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department. For the combined cycle gas turbine and duct burner, this permit supersedes original Permit No. AC48-137740 (PSD-FL-123), which authorized initial construction.

CONTENTS

Section 1. General Information

Section 2. Administrative Requirements

Section 3. Emissions Units Specific Conditions

Section 4. Appendices

Joseph Kahn, P.E., Acting Director Division of Air Resource Management (Effective Date)

8-16-06

"More Protection, Less Process"

Printed on recycled paper.

FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The facility is a complex of hotels, theme parks, and support facilities including a utility. Sources of air pollution include equipment such as: boilers, hot water heaters, oil heaters, a dry cleaning operation, a boat maintenance area, surface coating operations, and a combined cycle gas turbine. The project only affects the following emissions unit.

ID	Emission Unit Description
088	Replace existing LM 5000 gas turbine (nominal 38 MW) with new LM 6000PC gas turbine (nominal
	50 MW) to operate in combined cycle mode with heat recovery steam generator and steam turbine electrical generator (nominal 8.5 MW)

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION

<u>Title III</u>: The facility is identified as a potential major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).

<u>Title IV</u>: The facility operates units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

Title V: The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.

<u>PSD</u>: The facility is a PSD-major facility as defined in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. The project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

NSPS: The federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) are specified in 40 CFR 60. The replacement combustions turbine is subject to the NSPS Subpart GG provisions for stationary gas turbines. The Department makes a preliminary determination (subject to approval by EPA) that the new gas turbine is not subject to the proposed NSPS Subpart KKKK provisions because the permittee entered into a binding contractual obligation for the gas turbine on October 29, 2004 with substantial cancellation costs.

NESHAP: The federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) source categories are established in 40 CFR 63. The new combustion turbine is subject to the NEHSAP Subpart YYYY provisions for combustions turbines. However, EPA stayed the effectiveness of this regulation on August 18, 2004. The permittee must comply with only the initial notification requirements set forth in § 63.6145 until EPA takes final action and publishes a document in the Federal Register.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be revised to show a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested.

RELEVANT DOCUMENTS

The permit application and additional information received to make it complete are not a part of this permit; however, the information is specifically related to this permitting action and is on file with the Department.

SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- 1. <u>Permitting Authority</u>: All documents related to applications for permits to construct, modify, or operate emissions units regulated by this permit shall be submitted to the Bureau of Air Regulation of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) at 2600 Blair Stone Road (MS #5505), Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. Copies of application shall also be submitted to the Compliance Authority.
- 2. <u>Compliance Authority</u>: All documents related to compliance activities such as reports, tests, and notifications shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767.
- 3. <u>Appendices</u>: The following Appendices are attached as part of this permit: Appendix A (Citation Format); Appendix B (General Conditions); Appendix C (Common Conditions); Appendix D (Summary of Potential Emissions); Appendix E (NSPS Provisions); and Appendix F (NESHAP Provisions).
- 4. Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures: Unless otherwise indicated in this permit, the construction and operation of the subject emissions unit shall be in accordance with the capacities and specifications stated in the application. The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.); Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.); and Title 40, Parts 60, 63, and 75 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have specific meanings as defined in the applicable chapters of the Florida Administrative Code. The permittee shall use the applicable forms listed in Rule 62-210.900, F.A.C. and follow the application procedures in Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local permitting or regulations. [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and 62-210.900, F.A.C.]
- 5. New or Additional Conditions: For good cause shown and after notice and an administrative hearing, if requested, the Department may require the permittee to conform to new or additional conditions. The Department shall allow the permittee a reasonable time to conform to the new or additional conditions, and on application of the permittee, the Department may grant additional time. [Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.]
- 6. <u>Modifications</u>: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction. No emissions unit or facility subject to this permit shall be constructed or modified without obtaining an air construction permit from the Department. Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or modification. [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]
- 7. <u>Title V Permit</u>: This permit authorizes construction of the permitted emissions units and initial operation to determine compliance with Department rules. A Title V operation permit is required for regular operation of the permitted emissions unit. The permittee shall apply for a Title V operation permit at least 90 days prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after commencing operation. To apply for a Title V operation permit, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require. The application shall be submitted to the Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority. [Rules 62-4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220, and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

This section of the permit addresses the following emissions unit.

Emissions Unit No. 088

Description: The emissions unit is General Electric Model No. LM 6000PC gas turbine (nominal 50 MW) with heat recovery steam generator and steam turbine electrical generator (nominal 8.5 MW). The gas turbine includes SPRINTTM spray inter-cooling technology and inlet air chilling. Natural gas (SCC No. 2-01-002-01) is the primary fuel with distillate oil (SCC No. 2-01-001-01) as a restricted alternate fuel limited to no more than 475 hours per year. The permitted capacity is 505 MMBtu per hour of heat input from either fuel based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 30° F, 100% load, and the higher heating value of the fuel.

Controls: Water injection decreases flame temperatures to control emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx). An oxidation catalyst minimizes emissions of carbon monoxide (CO) and volatile organic compounds (VOC).

Monitors: NOx emissions are monitored and recorded by a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS). The water-to-fuel ratio is also continuously monitored.

Stack Parameters: The exhaust stack is approximately 11.1 feet in diameter and 65 feet tall. Exhaust gas will exit the stack at approximately 285° F with a volumetric flow rate of approximately 350,935 acfm based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 48° F, 100% load, and the inlet chiller operation.

{Permitting Note: The existing combined cycle unit was originally constructed in accordance with Permit No. PSD-FL-123 with an LM 5000 gas turbine, which began commercial operation April of 1989. This permit authorizes the replacement of the gas generator component.}

FEDERAL STANDARDS

- 1. NSPS Provisions: The gas turbine is subject to the federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) in Subpart GG of 40 CFR 60. See Appendix E of this permit. [40 CFR 60, Subparts A and GG]
- 2. <u>NESHAP Provisions</u>: The gas turbine is subject to the federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) in Subpart YYYY of 40 CFR 63. See Appendix F of this permit. [40 CFR 63, Subparts A and YYYY]
- 3. Acid Rain Provisions: The new gas turbine is subject to the Phase II requirements of the Acid Rain Program pursuant to Title IV of the Clean Air Act. The permittee shall update the acid rain information as necessary in the application for a Title V permit revision to incorporate the conditions of this air construction permit. [Chapter 214, F.A.C.]

EQUIPMENT

- 4. <u>Gas Turbine</u>: In the existing combined cycle system, the permittee is authorized to replace the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with a new LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM technology. The new gas turbine with generator set will be capable of firing either natural gas or distillate oil and will be designed to produce a nominal 50 MW (ISO) of shaft power. The existing LM 5000 gas turbine shall be permanently shutdown prior to startup of the new gas turbine system. For the combined cycle gas turbine and duct burner, this permit supersedes original Permit No. AC48-137740 (PSD-FL-123), which authorized initial construction. [Design; Applicant Request]
- 5. <u>Water Injection</u>: In accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, the permittee shall install, tune, operate, and maintain a water injection system to reduce NOx emissions from the gas turbine to achieve the permitted NOx standards. The water injection system shall be engaged as soon as feasible and shall continuously monitor the water-to-fuel ratio. [Design; 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 6. <u>Permitted Capacity</u>: The maximum heat input rate to the gas turbine is 505 MMBtu per hour based on the higher heating value of each fuel, a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F, and full load operation. [Applicant Request to modify permit 0950111-025-AC; Rule 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]
- 7. Authorized Fuel: The gas turbines shall fire only the following fuels.
 - a. Natural Gas: As the primary fuel, the gas turbine shall fire pipeline natural gas.
 - b. Distillate Oil: As a restricted alternate fuel, the gas turbine may fire No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) with a maximum fuel sulfur content of no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight. Distillate oil firing shall not exceed 475 hours during any consecutive 12 months. Initial compliance with the fuel sulfur limit shall be demonstrated by taking a sample, analyzing the sample for fuel sulfur, and reporting the results to the Compliance Authority before initial startup on oil. Sampling the fuel oil sulfur content shall be conducted in accordance with ASTM D4057-88, Standard Practice for Manual Sampling of Petroleum and Petroleum Products, and one of the following test methods for sulfur in petroleum products: ASTM D129-91, ASTM D1552-90, ASTM D2622-94, or ASTM D4294-90 or other equivalent methods after approval of the Department. For each subsequent fuel delivery, the permittee shall maintain a permanent file of the certified fuel sulfur analysis from the fuel vendor. At the request of a Compliance Authority, the permittee shall perform additional sampling and analysis for the fuel sulfur content.

[Applicant Request; Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

8. <u>Hours of Operation</u>: The hours of gas turbine operation are not limited (8760 hours per year). However, the gas turbine shall fire distillate oil for no more than 475 hours during any consecutive 12 months. [Applicant Request; Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

EMISSIONS STANDARDS

- 9. Carbon Monoxide (CO): When firing natural gas, CO emissions shall not exceed 12.6 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 10 and 19 based on an average of three 1-hour test runs. When firing distillate oil, CO emissions shall not exceed 2.4 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 10 and 19 based on an average of three 1-hour test runs. {Permitting Note: CO emissions are reduced by the oxidation catalyst. The above standards are equivalent to approximately 31.5 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for gas firing and 2.3 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for oil firing. The gas-firing standard is based on operation at only 25% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F. When operating at loads greater than 40%, controlled CO emissions are expected to be 7.8 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen or less.} [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 10. Nitrogen Oxides (NOx): When firing natural gas, NOx emissions shall not exceed 25 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and 43.0 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 7E and 19 (or EPA Method 20) based on a 4-hour rolling average. When firing distillate oil, NOx emissions shall not exceed 42 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and 74.0 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 7E and 19 (or EPA Method 20) based on a 4-hour rolling average. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average shall be consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG. [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 11. Opacity: When firing natural gas, the stack exhaust opacity shall not exceed 5% based on a 6-minute average as determined by EPA Method 9 observations. When firing distillate oil, the stack exhaust opacity shall not exceed 10% based on a 6-minute average as determined by EPA Method 9 observations. [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

{Permitting Note: NESHAP Subpart YYYY also establishes a formaldehyde standard; however, EPA has stayed the effectiveness of this rule until further notice. See Appendix F of this permit. Emissions of particulate matter and volatile organic compounds are minimized by the firing of natural gas and distillate oil, which are readily combusted at high gas turbine temperatures. In addition, these fuels contain little ash. Emissions of volatile organic compounds are further reduced by the oxidation catalyst. Emissions of sulfur dioxide and sulfuric acid mist are also minimized by the use of natural gas and distillate oil, which contain only limited amounts of sulfur. A summary of the potential emissions is provided in Appendix D of this permit.}

EXCESS EMISSIONS

{Permitting Note: The following conditions apply only to the SIP-based emissions standards specified in Section 3 of this permit. Rule 62-210.700, F.A.C. (Excess Emissions) cannot vary any federal provision of the NSPS, NESHAP, or Acid Rain programs.}

12. Definitions

- a. Excess Emissions are defined as emissions of pollutants in excess of those allowed by any applicable air pollution rule of the Department, or by a permit issued pursuant to any such rule or Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. The term applies only to conditions which occur during startup, shutdown, or malfunction. [Rule 62-210.200(106), F.A.C.]
- b. Startup is defined as the commencement of operation of any emissions unit which has shut down or ceased operation for a period of time sufficient to cause temperature, pressure, chemical or pollution control device imbalances, which result in excess emissions. [Rule 62-210.200(246), F.A.C.]
- c. Shutdown is the cessation of the operation of an emissions unit for any purpose. [Rule 62-210.200(231), F.A.C.]
- d. *Malfunction* is defined as any unavoidable mechanical and/or electrical failure of air pollution control equipment or process equipment or of a process resulting in operation in an abnormal or unusual manner. [Rule 62-210.200(160), F.A.C.]
- 13. Startup, Shutdown, Malfunction: Excess emissions resulting from startup, shutdown or malfunction of any emissions unit shall be permitted providing: (1) best operational practices to minimize emissions are adhered to, and (2) the duration of excess emissions shall be minimized but in no case exceed two hours in any 24 hour period unless specifically authorized by the Department for longer duration. In case of excess emissions resulting from malfunctions, each owner or operator shall notify the Department or the appropriate Local Program in accordance with Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C. A written report summarizing each malfunction resulting in excess emissions shall be submitted in a quarterly report. [Rule 62-210.700(1) and (6), F.A.C.]
- 14. <u>Prohibition</u>: Excess emissions which are caused entirely or in part by poor maintenance, poor operation, or any other equipment or process failure which may reasonably be prevented during startup, shutdown, or malfunction shall be prohibited. [Rule 62-210.700(4), F.A.C.]

PERFORMANCE TESTING

- 15. <u>Common Test Requirements</u>: Tests shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable testing, notification, and reporting requirements specified in Appendix C (Common Conditions) of this permit. [Rule 62-297.310, F.A.C.]
- 16. <u>Test Methods</u>: The following methods shall be used to determine emissions and demonstrate compliance with the standards specified in this permit. The methods are defined in Appendix A of 40 CFR 60 and are adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. Equivalent methods may only be used after written

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

Department approval. [Rules 62-204.800 and 62-297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

Method	Description of Method and Comments	
1-4	Traverse Points, Velocity and Flow Rate, Gas Analysis, and Moisture Content {Note: Use as necessary to support other methods.}	
7E	Determination of Nitrogen Oxide Emissions from Stationary Sources	
9	Visual Determination of the Opacity of Emissions from Stationary Sources	
10	Determination of Carbon Monoxide Emissions from Stationary Sources {Note: The method shall be based on a continuous sampling train.}	
19	Determination of Sulfur Dioxide Removal Efficiency and Particulate Matter, Sulfur Dioxide, and Nitrogen Oxides Emission Rates {Note: Optional F-factor method may be used to determine flow rate and gas analysis to calculate mass emissions in lieu of Methods 1-4. Use as necessary to support other methods.}	
20	Determination of Nitrogen Oxides, Sulfur Dioxide and Diluent Emissions from Stationary Gas Turbines	

- 17. <u>Initial Compliance Tests</u>: Using the test methods identified above, the permittee shall have initial tests conducted to demonstrate compliance with the CO, NOx, and opacity standards specified in this permit for each authorized fuel. Initial tests shall be conducted within 60 days of achieving the maximum production capacity, but no later than 180 days after initial operation of the gas turbine. Initial compliance shall be demonstrated in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG testing requirements in Appendix E of this permit. Subsequent compliance shall be demonstrated by NOx CEMS data. *{Permitting Note: See Appendix E for initial NSPS testing requirements and Appendix F for initial NESHAP testing requirements.}* [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)1, F.A.C.]
- 18. <u>Annual Compliance Tests</u>: During each federal fiscal year (October 1st to September 30th), the gas turbine shall be tested to demonstrate compliance with the CO and opacity standards specified in this permit. {Permitting Note: No annual test for NOx is required because continuous compliance will be demonstrated by NOx CEMS data.} [Rule and 62-297.310(7)(a)4, F.A.C.]
- 19. <u>Test Reports</u>: In addition to the information specified in Appendix C of this permit, each test report shall indicate the load rate (MW), heat input rate (MMBtu/hour), ambient temperature (° F), compressor inlet temperature (° F), evaporating cooling or not, NOx emissions rate (ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and lb/hour), and the water-to-fuel ratio (lb water/lb fuel) for each test run. [Rule 62-297.310(8), F.A.C.]

CONTINUOUS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

- 20. NOx CEMS: The permittee shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) in the exhaust stack to measure and record NOx emissions and flue gas oxygen content in a manner sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the standards specified in this permit. Emissions data shall be recorded by the CEMS at all times including periods such as startup, shutdown, and malfunction.
 - a. NOx Monitor Certification. The NOx monitor shall be installed, certified, operated and maintained in accordance with the applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. For purposes of determining compliance with the emission standards specified by this permit, missing data shall not be substituted. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average shall be consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG.
 - b. Oxygen Monitor Certification. The oxygen monitor shall be installed, certified, operated and maintained in accordance with the applicable requirements of Performance Specification 3 in Appendix

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

B of 40 CFR 60. The monitor shall comply with the applicable quality assurance procedures specified in Appendix F of 40 CFR 60.

- c. Monitor Availability. Monitor availability shall not be less than 95% in any calendar quarter. Within 30 days following each calendar quarter, the permittee shall submit a report to the Compliance Authority summarizing the monitor availability. In the event 95% availability is not achieved, the permittee shall include a supplemental report identifying the problems in achieving 95% availability and a plan of corrective actions that will be taken to achieve 95% availability. The permittee shall implement the reported corrective actions within the next calendar quarter. Failure to achieve 95% availability, in and of itself, is not necessarily a violation of this permit. Failure to take corrective actions or continued failure to achieve the minimum monitor availability shall be violations of this permit.
- d. Data Collection. The CEMS shall be designed and operated to sample, analyze, and record data evenly spaced over a 1-hour block. The CEMS shall be designed and operated to correct emissions to a dry basis. Each 1-hour emission average shall be computed using at least one data point in each fifteen minute quadrant of the 1-hour block during which the unit combusted fuel. Notwithstanding this requirement, each 1-hour emission average shall be computed from at least two data points separated by a minimum of 15 minutes. All valid measurements or data points collected during a 1-hour block shall be used to calculate the 1-hour emission averages.
- e. *Emissions Averages*. The emissions data shall be reduced to 1-hour emissions averages. Compliance with the NOx standards shall be demonstrated based on a 4-hour rolling average of the 1-hour emissions averages consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG. The NOx CEMS shall express 1-hour emission averages and 4-hour rolling averages in terms of "ppmvd corrected to 15% oxygen". An hour during which any amount of oil is fired shall be attributed to "oil firing". If an operational period includes both gas firing and oil firing, the 4-hour emissions standard shall be prorated based on the emissions standard for each fuel and the number of hours of firing attributed to each fuel. Upon a request from the Compliance Authority, the NOx emission rate shall be corrected to ISO conditions to demonstrate compliance with the applicable standards of 40 CFR 60.332.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with Section 4, Appendix E and NSPS Subpart GG (40 CFR60.332) emissions limits, all valid CEMS NOx emissions data shall be used.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with the limits of Section 3, Condition 10, NOx average emissions shall be calculated to exclude periods of excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M), provided the permittee remains in compliance with the conditions of Section 3, Conditions 12, 13, and 14. For the purpose of determining and recording periods of excess emissions and calculating and recording NOx average emissions, the following procedures shall be used.

- 1. NOx emissions (including SU/SD/M) will be evaluated and recorded in 1-minute intervals.
- 2. NOx emissions data collected during periods of SU/SD/M (in 1-minute intervals, up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period) will be extracted prior to calculating hourly emission concentrations for determination of compliance with the 4-hour rolling average limit. Only data obtained during the described episode (startup, shutdown, or malfunction) may be excluded. These excluded periods will be identified and recorded as excess emissions (and

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

attributed to SU/SD/M) if the averages of the excluded periods are above the rolling average limits for the particular fuel. This information will be reported in the Quarterly Excess Emissions Reports, along with the time, duration, and average NOx ppmvd, corrected to 15% O2.

- 3. After the SU/SD/M periods have been extracted (in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period), hourly averages will be calculated for determination of compliance with the NOx emission limit. A valid hourly average must have at least two valid data points at least 15 minutes apart (of non-excluded data); if there is insufficient data, the balance of the clock hour will be ignored.
- 4. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average period begins after the extraction of SU/SD/M data and are determined without regard to calendar days.

{Permitting Note: The term "in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period" is intended to recognize the capabilities of the monitoring system to identify excess emissions for event-driven short term episodes. For example, electrical problems could cause the premature shutdown of water pumps on the NOx control system, which would be restarted by the operator. This might result in 10 minutes of excess emissions due to the malfunction, which could be extracted from the 4-hour compliance average up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period for SU/SD/M. Specifically, this term is not intended to allow the permittee to simply "cherry pick" periods of elevated emissions to extract from the compliance average.}

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-297.520, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 75]

21. CMS for Water-to-Fuel Ratio: Using operational data from the continuous monitoring system (CMS) for the water-to-fuel ratio and the NOx CEMS, the permittee shall document the water-to-fuel ratio necessary to comply with the permitted NOx standards throughout the range of operational loads. Data collected from the required NOx CEMS shall be used to demonstrate compliance with the emissions standards of this permit, including excess emissions with respect to the NSPS Subpart GG standards. However, in cases where the NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio shall be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS. [Design; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG]

DUCT BURNER REQUIREMENTS

- 22. <u>Duct Burner</u>: The existing heat recovery steam generator (HRSG) includes a gas-fired duct burner system. After completion of the gas turbine replacement project, the duct burner shall be fired only in the "fresh air mode", which is defined as duct firing without the gas turbine in operation. The duct burner is subject to the following requirements.
 - a. The duct burner shall not operate when the combustion turbine is firing fuel. Exhaust gas from the duct burner will exit the gas turbine exhaust stack.
 - b. The duct burner shall fire only natural gas (SCC No. 1-01-006-01). The maximum heat input rate is 198 MMBtu per hour, which is equivalent to approximately 190,000 cubic feet per hour based on the higher heating value of natural gas.
 - c. The duct burner shall fire no more than 173,445 MMBtu per year of natural gas during any consecutive 12 months. {Permitting Note: This condition restricts the annual capacity factor of the duct burner to less than 10%. Therefore, the duct burner is not subject to the NOx requirements of NSPS Subpart Db.

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

There are no applicable NSPS Subpart Db emissions standards for the gas-fired duct burner.}

- d. When firing the duct burner in fresh air mode, the stack opacity shall not exceed 5% based on EPA Method 9 observations.
- e. Due to the very restricted ability to operate this unit, no initial or periodic opacity tests are required. When the Department, after investigation, has good reason (such as complaints, increased visible emissions or questionable maintenance of control equipment) to believe that any applicable emission standard contained in a Department rule or in a permit issued pursuant to those rules is being violated, it shall require the owner or operator of the emissions unit to conduct compliance tests which identify the nature and quantity of pollutant emissions from the emissions unit and to provide a report on the results of said tests to the Department. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(b), F.A.C.]

{Permitting Note: With the upgraded gas turbine, duct firing no longer supports combined cycle operation. Duct firing will only be used as a backup for the gas turbine and hot water generator #3. In this mode, it is also necessary to circulate water and operate the steam turbine generator. Similarly, the duct burner could produce about 4 MW if there was a natural gas curtailment, a system power outage, or both. The electricity would be used for life and property preservation. The oxidation catalyst is operational during fresh air firing.} [Applicant Request; Rules 62-204.800 and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60.41b and 40 CFR 60.44b]

RECORDS

- 23. Monitoring of Operations: To demonstrate compliance with the gas turbine capacity requirements, the permittee shall monitor and record the operating rate of the gas turbine on a daily average basis, considering the number of hours of operation during each day (including the times of startup, shutdown and malfunction). Such monitoring shall be made using a monitoring component of the CEMS required above, or by monitoring daily rates of consumption and heat content of natural gas in accordance with the provisions of 40 CFR 75 Appendix D. [Rules 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 24. Operational Data: Within 10 days following each month, the permittee shall record the following information in a written log maintained on site: combustion turbine (MMcf of gas fired, hours of gas firing, gallons of oil fired, hours of oil firing, and hours of oil firing during last consecutive 12 months); and duct burner (hours of gas firing). [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 25. <u>Catalyst Reports</u>: Based on data collected during the calendar year, the permittee shall provide a report summarizing the present condition of the catalyst. The report shall be submitted along with the required Annual Operating Report. [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 26. Quarterly NOx Report: Within 30 days following each calendar quarter, the permittee shall submit a report summarizing the following: NOx monitor performance (downtime, availability, and a corrective plan if necessary; cause of each downtime; unusual maintenance or repair; and a summary of any RATA tests performed) and excess emissions (each 4-hour NOx average in excess of the permitted NOx standard in Section 3 of this permit; the number of startups, shutdowns, and malfunctions resulting in excess emissions; and the written report summarizing each malfunction resulting in excess emissions). [Rules 62-4.070(3), 62-4.130, and 62-210.700(6), F.A.C]

Contents

Appendix A. Citation Formats

Appendix B. General Conditions

Appendix C. Common Conditions

Appendix D. Summary of Potential Emissions

Appendix E. NSPS Provisions

Appendix F. NESHAP Provisions

Citation Formats

The following examples illustrate the format used in the permit to identify applicable permitting actions and regulations.

REFERENCES TO PREVIOUS PERMITTING ACTIONS

Old Permit Numbers

Example: Permit No. AC50-123456 or Air Permit No. AO50-123456

Where:

"AC" identifies the permit as an Air Construction Permit

"AO" identifies the permit as an Air Operation Permit "123456" identifies the specific permit project number

New Permit Numbers

Example: Permit Nos. 099-2222-001-AC, 099-2222-001-AF, 099-2222-001-AO, or 099-2222-001-AV

Where:

"099" represents the specific county ID number in which the project is located

"2222" represents the specific facility ID number

"001" identifies the specific permit project

"AC" identifies the permit as an air construction permit

"AF" identifies the permit as a minor federally enforceable state operation permit

"AO" identifies the permit as a minor source air operation permit

"AV" identifies the permit as a Title V Major Source Air Operation Permit

PSD Permit Numbers

Example: Permit No. PSD-FL-317

Where:

"PSD" means issued pursuant to the Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality

"FL" means that the permit was issued by the State of Florida

"317" identifies the specific permit project

RULE CITATION FORMATS

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.)

Example: [Rule 62-213.205, F.A.C.]

Means:

Title 62, Chapter 213, Rule 205 of the Florida Administrative Code

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)

Example: [40 CRF 60.7]

Means:

Title 40, Part 60, Section 7

General Conditions

The permittee shall comply with the following general conditions from Rule 62-4.160, F.A.C.

- 1. The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations, and restrictions set forth in this permit are "Permit Conditions" and are binding and enforceable pursuant to Sections 403.161, 403.727, or 403.859 through 403.861, Florida Statutes. The permittee is placed on notice that the Department will review this permit periodically and may initiate enforcement action for any violation of these conditions.
- 2. This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and indicated in the approved drawings or exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved drawings, exhibits, specifications, or conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation and enforcement action by the Department.
- 3. As provided in Subsections 403.087(6) and 403.722(5), Florida Statutes, the issuance of this permit does not convey and vested rights or any exclusive privileges. Neither does it authorize any injury to public or private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations. This permit is not a waiver or approval of any other Department permit that may be required for other aspects of the total project which are not addressed in the permit.
- 4. This permit conveys no title to land or water, does not constitute State recognition or acknowledgment of title, and does not constitute authority for the use of submerged lands unless herein provided and the necessary title or leasehold interests have been obtained from the State. Only the Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund may express State opinion as to title.
- 5. This permit does not relieve the permittee from liability for harm or injury to human health or welfare, animal, or plant life, or property caused by the construction or operation of this permitted source, or from penalties therefore; nor does it allow the permittee to cause pollution in contravention of Florida Statutes and Department rules, unless specifically authorized by an order from the Department.
- 6. The permittee shall properly operate and maintain the facility and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) that are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit, as required by Department rules. This provision includes the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit and when required by Department rules.
- 7. The permittee, by accepting this permit, specifically agrees to allow authorized Department personnel, upon presentation of credentials or other documents as may be required by law and at a reasonable time, access to the premises, where the permitted activity is located or conducted to:
 - a. Have access to and copy and records that must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
 - b. Inspect the facility, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit, and,
 - c. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location reasonably necessary to assure compliance with this permit or Department rules.

Reasonable time may depend on the nature of the concern being investigated.

- 8. If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with or will be unable to comply with any condition or limitation specified in this permit, the permittee shall immediately provide the Department with the following information:
 - a. A description of and cause of non-compliance; and
 - b. The period of noncompliance, including dates and times; or, if not corrected, the anticipated time the non-compliance is expected to continue, and steps being taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the non-compliance.

The permittee shall be responsible for any and all damages which may result and may be subject to enforcement action by the Department for penalties or for revocation of this permit.

9: In accepting this permit, the permittee understands and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data and other information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are submitted to the Department may be used by the Department as evidence in any enforcement case involving the permitted source arising under the Florida Statutes or Department rules, except where such use is prescribed by Sections 403.73 and 403.111, Florida

General Conditions

- Statutes. Such evidence shall only be used to the extent it is consistent with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and appropriate evidentiary rules.
- 10. The permittee agrees to comply with changes in Department rules and Florida Statutes after a reasonable time for compliance, provided, however, the permittee does not waive any other rights granted by Florida Statutes or Department rules.
- 11. This permit is transferable only upon Department approval in accordance with Florida Administrative Code Rules 62-4.120 and 62-730.300, F.A.C., as applicable. The permittee shall be liable for any non-compliance of the permitted activity until the transfer is approved by the Department.
- 12. This permit or a copy thereof shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity.
- 13. This permit also constitutes:
 - a. Determination of Best Available Control Technology (not applicable to project);
 - b. Determination of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (not applicable to project); and
 - c. Compliance with New Source Performance Standards (subject to NSPS Subpart GG).
- 14. The permittee shall comply with the following:
 - a. Upon request, the permittee shall furnish all records and plans required under Department rules. During enforcement actions, the retention period for all records will be extended automatically unless otherwise stipulated by the Department.
 - b. The permittee shall hold at the facility or other location designated by this permit records of all monitoring information (including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation) required by the permit, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application or this permit. These materials shall be retained at least three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report, or application unless otherwise specified by Department rule.
 - c. Records of monitoring information shall include:
 - 1) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;
 - 2) The person responsible for performing the sampling or measurements;
 - 3) The dates analyses were performed;
 - 4) The person responsible for performing the analyses;
 - 5) The analytical techniques or methods used; and
 - 6) The results of such analyses.
- 15. When requested by the Department, the permittee shall within a reasonable time furnish any information required by law which is needed to determine compliance with the permit. If the permittee becomes aware that relevant facts were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application or in any report to the Department, such facts or information shall be corrected promptly.

Common Conditions

{Permitting Note: Unless otherwise specified in the permit, the following conditions apply to all emissions units and activities at the facility.}

EMISSIONS AND CONTROLS

- 1. <u>Plant Operation Problems</u>: If temporarily unable to comply with any of the conditions of the permit due to breakdown of equipment or destruction by fire, wind or other cause, the permittee shall notify each Compliance Authority as soon as possible, but at least within one working day, excluding weekends and holidays. The notification shall include: pertinent information as to the cause of the problem; steps being taken to correct the problem and prevent future recurrence; and, where applicable, the owner's intent toward reconstruction of destroyed facilities. Such notification does not release the permittee from any liability for failure to comply with the conditions of this permit or the regulations. [Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C.]
- 2. <u>Circumvention</u>: The permittee shall not circumvent the air pollution control equipment or allow the emission of air pollutants without this equipment operating properly. [Rule 62-210.650, F.A.C.]
- 3. Excess Emissions Allowed: Excess emissions resulting from startup, shutdown or malfunction of any emissions unit shall be permitted providing (1) best operational practices to minimize emissions are adhered to and (2) the duration of excess emissions shall be minimized but in no case exceed two hours in any 24 hour period unless specifically authorized by the Department for longer duration. [Rule 62-210.700(1), F.A.C.]
- 4. Excess Emissions Prohibited: Excess emissions caused entirely or in part by poor maintenance, poor operation, or any other equipment or process failure that may reasonably be prevented during startup, shutdown or malfunction shall be prohibited. [Rule 62-210.700(4), F.A.C.]
- 5. Excess Emissions Notification: In case of excess emissions resulting from malfunctions, the permitee shall notify the Department or the appropriate Local Program in accordance with Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C. A full written report on the malfunctions shall be submitted in a quarterly report, if requested by the Department. [Rule 62-210.700(6), F.A.C.]
- 6. <u>VOC or OS Emissions</u>: No person shall store, pump, handle, process, load, unload or use in any process or installation, volatile organic compounds or organic solvents without applying known and existing vapor emission control devices or systems deemed necessary and ordered by the Department. [Rule 62-296.320(1), F.A.C.]
- 7. Objectionable Odor Prohibited: No person shall cause, suffer, allow or permit the discharge of air pollutants, which cause or contribute to an objectionable odor. An "objectionable odor" means any odor present in the outdoor atmosphere which by itself or in combination with other odors, is or may be harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, which unreasonably interferes with the comfortable use and enjoyment of life or property, or which creates a nuisance. [Rules 62-296.320(2) and62-210.200(203), F.A.C.]
- 8. <u>General Visible Emissions</u>: No person shall cause, let, permit, suffer or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere the emissions of air pollutants from any activity equal to or greater than 20 percent opacity. This regulation does not impose a specific testing requirement. [Rule 62-296.320(4)(b)1, F.A.C.]
- 9. <u>Unconfined Particulate Emissions</u>: During the construction period, unconfined particulate matter emissions shall be minimized by dust suppressing techniques such as covering and/or application of water or chemicals to the affected areas, as necessary. [Rule 62-296.320(4)(c), F.A.C.]

TESTING REQUIREMENTS

10. Required Number of Test Runs: For mass emission limitations, a compliance test shall consist of three complete and separate determinations of the total air pollutant emission rate through the test section of the stack or duct and three complete and separate determinations of any applicable process variables corresponding to the three distinct time periods during which the stack emission rate was measured; provided, however, that three complete and separate determinations shall not be required if the process variables are not subject to variation during a compliance test, or if three determinations are not necessary in order to calculate the unit's emission rate. The three required test runs shall be completed within one consecutive five-day period. In the event that a sample is lost or one of the three runs must be discontinued because of circumstances beyond the control of the owner or operator, and a valid third run cannot be obtained within the five-day period allowed for the test, the Secretary or his or her designee may accept the results of two complete runs as proof of compliance, provided that the arithmetic mean of the two complete runs is at least 20% below the allowable emission limiting standard. [Rule 62-297.310(1), F.A.C.]

Common Conditions

- 11. Operating Rate During Testing: Testing of emissions shall be conducted with the emissions unit operating at permitted capacity. Permitted capacity is defined as 90 to 100 percent of the maximum operation rate allowed by the permit. If it is impractical to test at permitted capacity, an emissions unit may be tested at less than the maximum permitted capacity; in this case, subsequent emissions unit operation is limited to 110 percent of the test rate until a new test is conducted. Once the unit is so limited, operation at higher capacities is allowed for no more than 15 consecutive days for the purpose of additional compliance testing to regain the authority to operate at the permitted capacity. [Rule 62-297.310(2), F.A.C.]
- 12. <u>Calculation of Emission Rate</u>: For each emissions performance test, the indicated emission rate or concentration shall be the arithmetic average of the emission rate or concentration determined by each of the three separate test runs unless otherwise specified in a particular test method or applicable rule. [Rule 62-297.310(3), F.A.C.]
- 13. Test Procedures: Tests shall be conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements of Chapter 62-297, F.A.C.
 - a. Required Sampling Time. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable rule, the required sampling time for each test run shall be no less than one hour and no greater than four hours, and the sampling time at each sampling point shall be of equal intervals of at least two minutes. The minimum observation period for a visible emissions compliance test shall be thirty (30) minutes. The observation period shall include the period during which the highest opacity can reasonably be expected to occur.
 - b. *Minimum Sample Volume*. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable rule or test method, the minimum sample volume per run shall be 25 dry standard cubic feet.
 - c. Calibration of Sampling Equipment. Calibration of the sampling train equipment shall be conducted in accordance with the schedule shown in Table 297.310-1, F.A.C.

[Rule 62-297.310(4), F.A.C.]

14. Determination of Process Variables

- a. Required Equipment. The owner or operator of an emissions unit for which compliance tests are required shall install, operate, and maintain equipment or instruments necessary to determine process variables, such as process weight input or heat input, when such data are needed in conjunction with emissions data to determine the compliance of the emissions unit with applicable emission limiting standards.
- b. Accuracy of Equipment. Equipment or instruments used to directly or indirectly determine process variables, including devices such as belt scales, weight hoppers, flow meters, and tank scales, shall be calibrated and adjusted to indicate the true value of the parameter being measured with sufficient accuracy to allow the applicable process variable to be determined within 10% of its true value.

[Rule 62-297.310(5), F.A.C.]

- 15. <u>Sampling Facilities</u>: The permittee shall install permanent stack sampling ports and provide sampling facilities that meet the requirements of Rule 62-297.310(6), F.A.C.
- 16. <u>Test Notification</u>: The owner or operator shall notify the Department, at least 15 days prior to the date on which each formal compliance test is to begin, of the date, time, and place of each such test, and the test contact person who will be responsible for coordinating and having such test conducted for the owner or operator. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)9, F.A.C.]
- 17. Special Compliance Tests: When the Department, after investigation, has good reason (such as complaints, increased visible emissions or questionable maintenance of control equipment) to believe that any applicable emission standard contained in a Department rule or in a permit issued pursuant to those rules is being violated, it shall require the owner or operator of the emissions unit to conduct compliance tests which identify the nature and quantity of pollutant emissions from the emissions unit and to provide a report on the results of said tests to the Department. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(b), F.A.C.]
- 18. <u>Test Reports</u>: The owner or operator of an emissions unit for which a compliance test is required shall file a report with the Department on the results of each such test. The required test report shall be filed with the Department as soon as practical but no later than 45 days after the last sampling run of each test is completed. The test report shall provide sufficient detail on the emissions unit tested and the test procedures used to allow the Department to determine if the

Common Conditions

test was properly conducted and the test results properly computed. As a minimum, the test report, other than for an EPA or DEP Method 9 test, shall provide the following information:

- 1. The type, location, and designation of the emissions unit tested.
- 2. The facility at which the emissions unit is located.
- 3. The owner or operator of the emissions unit.
- 4. The normal type and amount of fuels used and materials processed, and the types and amounts of fuels used and material processed during each test run.
- 5. The means, raw data and computations used to determine the amount of fuels used and materials processed, if necessary to determine compliance with an applicable emission limiting standard.
- 6. The type of air pollution control devices installed on the emissions unit, their general condition, their normal operating parameters (pressure drops, total operating current and GPM scrubber water), and their operating parameters during each test run.
- 7. A sketch of the duct within 8 stack diameters upstream and 2 stack diameters downstream of the sampling ports, including the distance to any upstream and downstream bends or other flow disturbances.
- 8. The date, starting time and duration of each sampling run.
- 9. The test procedures used, including any alternative procedures authorized pursuant to Rule 62-297.620, F.A.C. Where optional procedures are authorized in this chapter, indicate which option was used.
- 10. The number of points sampled and configuration and location of the sampling plane.
- 11. For each sampling point for each run, the dry gas meter reading, velocity head, pressure drop across the stack, temperatures, average meter temperatures and sample time per point.
- 12. The type, manufacturer and configuration of the sampling equipment used.
- 13. Data related to the required calibration of the test equipment.
- 14. Data on the identification, processing and weights of all filters used.
- 15. Data on the types and amounts of any chemical solutions used.
- 16. Data on the amount of pollutant collected from each sampling probe, the filters, and the impingers, are reported separately for the compliance test.
- 17. The names of individuals who furnished the process variable data, conducted the test, analyzed the samples and prepared the report.
- 18. All measured and calculated data required to be determined by each applicable test procedure for each run.
- 19. The detailed calculations for one run that relate the collected data to the calculated emission rate.
- 20. The applicable emission standard and the resulting maximum allowable emission rate for the emissions unit plus the test result in the same form and unit of measure.
- 21. A certification that, to the knowledge of the owner or his authorized agent, all data submitted are true and correct. When a compliance test is conducted for the Department or its agent, the person who conducts the test shall provide the certification with respect to the test procedures used. The owner or his authorized agent shall certify that all data required and provided to the person conducting the test are true and correct to his knowledge.

[Rule 62-297.310(8), F.A.C.]

RECORDS AND REPORTS

- 19. Records Retention: All measurements, records, and other data required by this permit shall be documented in a permanent, legible format and retained for at least five (5) years following the date on which such measurements, records, or data are recorded. Records shall be made available to the Department upon request. [Rules 62-4.160(14) and 62-213.440(1)(b)2, F.A.C.]
- 20. <u>Annual Operating Report</u>: The permittee shall submit an annual report that summarizes the actual operating rates and emissions from this facility. Annual operating reports shall be submitted to the Compliance Authority by March 1st of each year. [Rule 62-210.370(2), F.A.C.]

Summary of Potential Emissions

The following table is provided for informational purposes only. The annual criteria pollutant emissions estimates are based on information in the original permit application.

Table D-1. Potential Emissions

Pollutant	Gas Firing		Oil Firing		Annual Emissions
Pollutant	lb/hour	hours/year	lb/hour	hours/year	Tons Per Year
СО	12.6	8760	2.4	0	55
NOx	43.0	8285	74.0	475	196
PM/ PM10	3.0	8285	13.9	475	16 .
SO ₂	2.9	8285	46.3	475	23
VOC	1.2	8285	4.9	475	6

Notes:

- The gas-firing hourly CO emissions rate is based on 25% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F. Gas-firing hourly emissions rates for NOx, PM/PM10, and SO2 are based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 48° F. The gas-firing hourly VOC emission rate is based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 60° F. The oil-firing hourly emissions rates for all pollutants are based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F.
- 2. In general, annual emissions are based on 8760 hours of operation with 8285 hours of gas firing and 475 hours of oil firing. However, CO emissions when firing gas at low loads may result in higher emissions than oil firing. Therefore, annual CO emissions are based on 8760 hours of gas firing to provide the maximum potential emissions.

NSPS Provisions

Chapter 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60, Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources [Rule 62-204.800(8), F.A.C.]

- (a) Definitions. For the purposes of subsection 62-204.800(7), F.A.C., the definitions contained in the various provisions of 40 CFR Part 60 adopted herein shall apply, except that the term "Administrator," when used in any provision of 40 CFR Part 60 that is delegated to the Department by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, shall mean the Secretary or the Secretary's designee.
- (b) Standards Adopted. The following Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources contained in 40 CFR Part 60, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - (39) 40 CFR 60, Subpart GG, Stationary Gas Turbines; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 60.334(b)(2) and 40 CFR 60.335(f)(1).
- (c) The Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources adopted by reference in this rule shall be controlling over other standards in the air pollution rules of the Department except that any emissions limiting standard contained in or determined pursuant to the air pollution rules of the Department which is more stringent than one contained in a Standard of Performance, or which regulates emissions of pollutants or emissions units not regulated by an applicable Standard of Performance, shall apply.
- (d) General Provisions Adopted. The general provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A, revised as of July 1, 2001; amended August 27, 2001, at 66 FR 44978; are adopted and incorporated by reference except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for the purposes of 40 CFR 60.4, 40 CFR 60.8(b)(2) and (3), 40 CFR 60.11(e)(7) and (8), 40 CFR 60.13(g), (i) and (j)(2), and 40 CFR 60.16.
- (e) Appendices Adopted. The following appendices of 40 CFR Part 60, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 1. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-1, Test Methods 1 through 2F.
 - 2. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-2, Test Methods 2G through 3C.
 - 3. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-3, Test Methods 4 through 5I.
 - 4. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-4, Test Methods 6 through 10B.
 - 5. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-5, Test Methods 11 through 15A.
 - 6. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-6, Test Methods 16 through 18.
 - 7. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-7, Test Methods 19 through 25E.
 - 8. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-8, Test Methods 26 through 29.
 - 9. 40 CFR 60, Appendix B, Performance Specifications, amended January 12, 2004, at 69 FR 1785.
 - 10. 40 CFR 60, Appendix C, Determination of Emission Rate Change.
 - 11. 40 CFR 60, Appendix D, Required Emission Inventory Information.
 - 12. 40 CFR 60, Appendix F, Quality Assurance Procedures, amended January 12, 2004, at 69 FR 1785.

Subpart A - General Provisions for 40 CFR 60

[Source: Federal Register dated 7/1/98, Federal Register 5/8/98, 2/12/99, 10/17/00, 6/28/02]

The affected unit is subject to the applicable General Provisions of Subpart A. The complete text of Subpart A will be provided upon request.

- 40 CFR 60.1 Applicability.
- 40 CFR 60.5 Determination of Construction or Modification.
- 40 CFR 60.6 Review of Plans.
- 40 CFR 60.7 Notification and Record Keeping.
- 40 CFR 60.8 Performance Tests.
- 40 CFR 60.9 Availability of Information.
- 40 CFR 60.10 State Authority.
- 40 CFR 60.11 Compliance with Standards and Maintenance Requirements.
- 40 CFR 60.12 Circumvention.

NSPS Provisions

40 CFR 60.13 Monitoring Requirements.

40 CFR 60.14 Modification.

40 CFR 60.15 Reconstruction.

40 CFR 60.18 General Control Device Requirements.

40 CFR 60.19 General Notification and Reporting Requirements.

SUBPART GG - STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY GAS TURBINES

[Source: 44 FR 52798, Sept. 10, 1979, as amended at 52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987; 65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000; 69 FR 41346, July 8, 2004]

40 CFR 60.330 Applicability and Designation of Affected Facility.

The 50 MW gas turbine (Emissions Unit 088) has a maximum heat input rate of 505 MMBtu per hour based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 30° F, 100% load, and the higher heating value of natural gas or distillate oil. It is an affected unit subject to the applicable requirements of Subpart GG. For purposes of this subpart, construction of the replacement gas turbine will begin after July 8, 2004.

40 CFR 60.331 Definitions.

The definitions identified in 40 CFR 60.331 apply to the NSPS Subpart GG requirements for the affected unit.

40 CFR 60.332 Standard for Nitrogen Oxides.

In accordance with paragraph (a)(1) of 40 CFR 60.332, the gas turbine is subject to the following NOx standard.

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any stationary gas turbine, any gases which contain nitrogen oxides in excess of:

$$STD = 0.0075 \quad (14.4) + F$$

where:

- STD = allowable ISO corrected (if required as given in § 60.335(b)(1)) NOx emission concentration (percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis),
- Y = manufacturer's rated heat rate at manufacturer's rated load (kilojoules per watt hour) or, actual measured heat rate based on lower heating value of fuel as measured at actual peak load for the facility. The value of Y shall not exceed 14.4 kilojoules per watt hour, and
- F = NOx emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen as defined in paragraph (a)(4) of this section.

In accordance with paragraph (a)(3) of 40 CFR 60.332, use of the NOx emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen "F" is optional. The gas turbine shall fire only natural gas as the primary fuel and No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) containing no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight as a restricted alternate fuel. An allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen is not permitted and the "F" value is "zero". No monitoring of the fuel-bound nitrogen content is required. The ISO heat rate for the LM 6000 gas turbine is 8743 Btu/kW-hr for natural gas and 8833 Btu/kW-hr for distillate oil. The NSPS Subpart GG limits are 117.1 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for natural gas and 115.9 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for distillate oil.

In accordance with paragraph (f) of 40 CFR 60.332, stationary gas turbines using water or steam injection for control of are exempt from the NSPS NOx emission standard specified in paragraph (a)(1) when ice fog is deemed a traffic hazard by the owner or operator of the gas turbine.

40 CFR 60.333 Standard for Sulfur Dioxide.

In accordance with paragraph (b) of 40 CFR 60.333, no owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall burn in any stationary gas turbine any fuel which contains total sulfur in excess of 0.8 percent by weight (8000 ppmw). The gas turbine shall fire only natural gas as the primary fuel and No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) containing no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight as a restricted alternate fuel.

NSPS Provisions

40 CFR 60.334 Monitoring of Operations.

NOx Requirements

Water injection shall be used to control NOx emissions from the gas turbine. In accordance with paragraph (d) of 40 CFR 60.334, the permittee shall install a NOx/O2 Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) to determine compliance with the NSPS NOx standard in accordance with the following requirements from paragraph (b) of 40 CFR 60.334:

The permittee shall install, certify, maintain, operate, and quality-assure a continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS) consisting of NOx and O2 monitors. As an alternative, a CO2 monitor may be used to adjust the measured NOx concentrations to 15 percent O2 by either converting the CO2 hourly averages to equivalent O2 concentrations using Equation F-14a or F-14b in appendix F to Part 75 of this chapter and making the adjustments to 15 percent O2, or by using the CO2 readings directly to make the adjustments, as described in Method 20. The CEMS shall be installed, certified, maintained and operated as follows:

- (1) Each CEMS must be installed and certified according to PS 2 and 3 (for diluent) of 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix B, except the 7-day calibration drift is based on unit operating days, not calendar days. Appendix F, Procedure 1 is not required. The relative accuracy test audit (RATA) of the NOx and diluent monitors may be performed individually or on a combined basis, i.e., the relative accuracy tests of the CEMS may be performed either:
 - (i) On a ppm basis (for NOx) and a percent O2 basis for oxygen; or
 - (ii) On a ppm at 15 percent O2 basis; or
 - (iii) On a ppm basis (for NOx) and a percent CO2 basis (for a CO2 monitor that uses the procedures in Method 20 to correct the NOx data to 15 percent O2).
- (2) As specified in § 60.13(e)(2), during each full unit operating hour, each monitor must complete a minimum of one cycle of operation (sampling, analyzing, and data recording) for each 15-minute quadrant of the hour, to validate the hour. For partial unit operating hours, at least one valid data point must be obtained for each quadrant of the hour in which the unit operates. For unit operating hours in which required quality assurance and maintenance activities are performed on the CEMS, a minimum of two valid data points (one in each of two quadrants) are required to validate the hour.
- (3) For purposes of identifying excess emissions, CEMS data must be reduced to hourly averages as specified in § 60.13(h).
 - (i) For each unit operating hour in which a valid hourly average, as described in paragraph (b)(2) of this section, is obtained for both NOx and diluent, the data acquisition and handling system must calculate and record the hourly NOx emissions in the units of the applicable NOx emission standard under § 60.332(a), i.e., percent NOx by volume, dry basis, corrected to 15 percent O2 and International Organization for Standardization (ISO) standard conditions (if required as given in § 60.335(b)(1)). For any hour in which the hourly average O2 concentration exceeds 19.0 percent O2, a diluent cap value of 19.0 percent O2 may be used in the emission calculations.
 - (ii) A worst case ISO correction factor may be calculated and applied using historical ambient data. For the purpose of this calculation, substitute the maximum humidity of ambient air (Ho), minimum ambient temperature (Ta), and minimum combustor inlet absolute pressure (Po) into the ISO correction equation.
 - (iii) If the owner or operator has installed a NOx CEMS to meet the requirements of Part 75 of this chapter, and is continuing to meet the ongoing requirements of Part 75 of this chapter, the CEMS may be used to meet the requirements of this section, except that the missing data substitution methodology provided for at 40 CFR Part 75, Subpart D, is not required for purposes of identifying excess emissions. Instead, periods of missing CEMS data are to be reported as monitor downtime in the excess emissions and monitoring performance report required in § 60.7(c).

The permittee shall use the NOx CEMS required by this permit to determine excess emissions in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG requirements. However, in cases where the NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio will be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be

NSPS Provisions

used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS.

The affected unit is not allowed any allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen. In accordance with paragraph (h)(2) of 40 CFR 60.334, monitoring of the nitrogen content is not required for any fuel.

SO2 Requirements: The current tariff sheet for the natural gas pipeline specifies a maximum total sulfur content of 20.0 grains/100 scf or less. Gas fired in the gas turbine meets the definition of "natural gas" specified in § 60.331(u). In accordance with paragraph (h)(3)(i) of 40 CFR 60.334, monitoring of the sulfur content of natural gas is not required.

In accordance with paragraph (h)(1) of 40 CFR 60.334, the owner or operator shall monitor the total sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the gas turbine. The sulfur content of the fuel must be determined using total sulfur methods described in § 60.335(b)(10). In accordance with paragraph (i)(1) of 40 CFR 60.334, the owner or operator shall determine the sulfur content of distillate oil fired in the gas turbine by using one of the total sulfur sampling options and the associated sampling frequency described in sections 2.2.3, 2.2.4.1, 2.2.4.2, and 2.2.4.3 of appendix D to part 75 of this chapter (i.e., flow proportional sampling, daily sampling, sampling from the unit's storage tank after each addition of fuel to the tank, or sampling each delivery prior to combining it with fuel oil already in the intended storage tank).

Excess Emissions

In accordance with paragraph (j) of 40 CFR 60.334, for each affected unit required to continuously monitor parameters or emissions, or to periodically determine the fuel sulfur content or fuel nitrogen content under this subpart, the owner or operator shall submit reports of excess emissions and monitor downtime, in accordance with § 60.7(c). Excess emissions shall be reported for all periods of unit operation, including startup, shutdown and malfunction. For the purpose of reports required under § 60.7(c), periods of excess emissions and monitor downtime that shall be reported are defined as follows:

- (1) Nitrogen Oxides. Data collected from the NOx CEMS required by this permit shall be used to determine excess emissions in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG requirements. However, in cases where NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio will be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS.
 - (ii) No emission allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
 - (iii) For turbines using NO_X and diluent CEMS:
 - (A) An hour of excess emissions shall be any unit operating hour in which the 4-hour rolling average NO_X concentration exceeds the applicable emission limit in § 60.332(a)(1) or (2). For the purposes of this subpart, a "4-hour rolling average NO_X concentration" is the arithmetic average of the average NO_X concentration measured by the CEMS for a given hour (corrected to 15 percent O2 and, if required under § 60.335(b)(1), to ISO standard conditions) and the three unit operating hour average NO_X concentrations immediately preceding that unit operating hour.
 - (B) A period of monitor downtime shall be any unit operating hour in which sufficient data are not obtained to validate the hour, for either NO_x concentration or diluent (or both).
 - (C) Each report shall include the ambient conditions (temperature, pressure, and humidity) at the time of the excess emission period and (if the owner or operator has claimed an emission allowance for fuel bound nitrogen) the nitrogen content of the fuel during the period of excess emissions. You do not have to report ambient conditions if you opt to use the worst case ISO correction factor as specified in § 60.334(b)(3)(ii), or if you are not using the ISO correction equation under the provisions of § 60.335(b)(1).
- (2) Sulfur Dioxide. If the owner or operator is required to monitor the sulfur content of the fuel under paragraph (h) of this section:
 - (i) For oil samples obtained using daily sampling, flow proportional sampling, or sampling from the unit's storage tank, an excess emission occurs each unit operating hour included in the period beginning on the date and hour of any sample for which the sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the gas turbine exceeds 0.8 weight percent and ending on the date and hour that a subsequent sample is taken that demonstrates compliance with the sulfur limit.

NSPS Provisions

- (ii) If the option to sample each delivery of fuel oil has been selected, the owner or operator shall immediately switch to one of the other oil sampling options (i.e., daily sampling, flow proportional sampling, or sampling from the unit's storage tank) if the sulfur content of a delivery exceeds 0.8 weight percent. The owner or operator shall continue to use one of the other sampling options until all of the oil from the delivery has been combusted, and shall evaluate excess emissions according to paragraph (j)(2)(i) of this section. When all of the fuel from the delivery has been burned, the owner or operator may resume using the as-delivered sampling option.
- (iii) A period of monitor downtime begins when a required sample is not taken by its due date. A period of monitor downtime also begins on the date and hour of a required sample, if invalid results are obtained. The period of monitor downtime shall include only unit operating hours, and ends on the date and hour of the next valid sample.
- (3) Ice fog. Each period during which an exemption provided in § 60.332(f) is in effect shall be reported in writing to the Administrator quarterly. For each period the ambient conditions existing during the period, the date and time the air pollution control system was deactivated, and the date and time the air pollution control system was reactivated shall be reported. All quarterly reports shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter.
- (5) All reports required under § 60.7(c) shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter.

40 CFR 60.335 Test Methods and Procedures.

Initial compliance with the applicable NSPS standards for NOx and SO2 shall be determined in accordance with the following test methods and procedures.

- (a) The owner or operator shall conduct the performance tests required in § 60.8, using either:
 - (1) EPA Method 20,
 - (2) ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see § 60.17), or
 - (3) EPA Method 7E and either EPA Method 3 or 3A in appendix A to this part, to determine NO_X and diluent concentration.
 - (4) Sampling traverse points are to be selected following Method 20 or Method 1, (non-particulate procedures) and sampled for equal time intervals. The sampling shall be performed with a traversing single-hole probe or, if feasible, with a stationary multi-hole probe that samples each of the points sequentially. Alternatively, a multi-hole probe designed and documented to sample equal volumes from each hole may be used to sample simultaneously at the required points.
 - (5) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(4) of this section, the owner or operator may test at few points than are specified in Method 1 or Method 20 if the following conditions are met:
 - (i) You may perform a stratification test for NO_X and diluent pursuant to
 - (A) [Reserved]
 - (B) The procedures specified in section 6.5.6.1(a) through (e) appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.
 - (ii) Once the stratification sampling is completed, the owner or operator may use the following alternative sample point selection criteria for the performance test:
 - (A) If each of the individual traverse point NO_X concentrations, normalized to 15 percent O2, is within 10 percent of the mean normalized concentration for all traverse points, then you may use 3 points (located either 16.7, 50.0, and 83.3 percent of the way across the stack or duct, or, for circular stacks or ducts greater than 2.4 meters (7.8 feet) in diameter, at 0.4, 1.2, and 2.0 meters from the wall). The 3 points shall be located along the measurement line that exhibited the highest average normalized NO_X concentration during the stratification test; or

NSPS Provisions

- (B) If each of the individual traverse point NO_X concentrations, normalized to 15 percent O2, is within 5 percent of the mean normalized concentration for all traverse points, then you may sample at a single point, located at least 1 meter from the stack wall or at the stack centroid.
- (6) Other acceptable alternative reference methods and procedures are given in paragraph (c) of this section.
- (b) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the applicable nitrogen oxides emission limitation in § 60.332 and shall meet the performance test requirements of § 60.8 as follows:
 - (1) For each run of the performance test, the mean nitrogen oxides emission concentration (NO_{Xo}) corrected to 15 percent O2 shall be corrected to ISO standard conditions using the following equation. Notwithstanding this requirement, use of the ISO correction equation is optional for: Lean premix stationary combustion turbines; units used in association with heat recovery steam generators (HRSG) equipped with duct burners; and units equipped with add-on emission control devices:

$$NO_X = (NO_{Xo}) (P_r/P_o)^{0.5} e^{19 (H_o-0.00633)} (288^{\circ}K / Ta)^{1.53}$$

Where:

 NO_X = emission concentration of NO_X at 15 percent O2 and ISO standard ambient conditions, ppm by volume, dry basis,

 NO_{X0} = mean observed NO_{X} concentration, ppm by volume, dry basis, at 15 percent O2,

P_r = reference combustor inlet absolute pressure at 101.3 kilopascals ambient pressure, mm Hg,

P_o = observed combustor inlet absolute pressure at test, mm Hg,

 $H_o =$ observed humidity of ambient air, g H2O/g air,

e = transcendental constant, 2.718, and

 $T_a =$ ambient temperature, ° K.

- (2) The 3-run performance test required by § 60.8 must be performed within 5 percent at 30, 50, 75, and 90 to 100 percent of peak load or at four evenly-spaced load points in the normal operating range of the gas turbine, including the minimum point in the operating range and 90-to-100 percent of peak load, or at the highest achievable load point if 90-to-100 percent of peak load cannot be physically achieved in practice. If the turbine combusts both oil and gas as primary or backup fuels, separate performance testing is required for each fuel. Notwithstanding these requirements, performance testing is not required for any emergency fuel (as defined in § 60.331).
- (3) The duct burner shall not operate when the gas turbine is in operation.
- (4) If water or steam injection is used to control NOx with no additional post-combustion NOx control and the owner or operator chooses to monitor the steam or water to fuel ratio in accordance with § 60.334(a), then that monitoring system must be operated concurrently with each EPA Method 20, ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see § 60.17), or EPA Method 7E run and shall be used to determine the fuel consumption and the steam or water to fuel ratio necessary to comply with the applicable § 60.332 NOx emission limit.
- (5) No allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
- (6) If the owner or operator elects to install a CEMS, the performance evaluation of the CEMS may either be conducted separately (as described in paragraph (b)(7) of this section) or as part of the initial performance test of the affected unit.
- (7) If the owner or operator elects to install and certify a NO_X CEMS under § 60.334(e), then the initial performance test required under § 60.8 may be done in the following alternative manner:
 - (i) Perform a minimum of 9 reference method runs, with a minimum time per run of 21 minutes, at a single load level, between 90 and 100 percent of peak (or the highest physically achievable) load.

NSPS Provisions

- (ii) Use the test data both to demonstrate compliance with the applicable NO_X emission limit under § 60.332 and to provide the required reference method data for the RATA of the CEMS described under § 60.334(b).
- (iii) The requirement to test at three additional load levels is waived.
- (8) Not applicable.
- (9) No allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
- (10) If the owner or operator is required under § 60.334(i)(1) or (3) to periodically determine the sulfur content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, a minimum of three fuel samples shall be collected during the performance test. Analyze the samples for the total sulfur content of the fuel using:
 - (i) For liquid fuels, ASTM D129-00, D2622-98, D4294-02, D1266-98, D5453-00 or D1552-01 (all of which are incorporated by reference, see § 60.17); or
 - (ii) Monitoring for the sulfur content of natural gas as defined in § 60.331(u) is not required.
- (11) The fuel analyses required under paragraphs (b)(9) and (b)(10) of this section may be performed by the owner or operator, a service contractor retained by the owner or operator, the fuel vendor, or any other qualified agency.
- (c) The owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and procedures specified in this section:
 - (1) Instead of using the equation in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, manufacturers may develop ambient condition correction factors to adjust the nitrogen oxides emission level measured by the performance test as provided in § 60.8 to ISO standard day conditions.

NESHAP Provisions

On August 18, 2004, EPA stayed the effectiveness of NESHAP Subpart YYYY for lean premix and diffusion flame gas turbine. The relevant provision of the rule that stays the effectiveness for such units is as follows.

40 CFR 63.6095(d) Stay of Standards for Gas-Fired Subcategories.

If you start up a new or reconstructed stationary combustion turbine that is a lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbine or diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined by this subpart, you must comply with the Initial Notification requirements set forth in Sec. 63.6145, but need not comply with any other requirement of this subpart until EPA takes final action to require compliance and publishes a document in the Federal Register.

Chapter 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 63, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories. [Rule 62-204.800(11), F.A.C.]

- (a) Definitions. For the purposes of subsection 62-204.800(10), F.A.C., the definitions contained in the various provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 adopted herein shall apply, except that the term, "Administrator," when used in any provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 that is delegated to the Department by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, shall mean the Secretary or the Secretary's designee.
- (b) Standards Adopted. The following National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants contained in 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 78. 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY, Stationary Combustion Turbines; promulgated March 5, 2004, at 69 FR 10511; amended August 18, 2004, at 69 FR 51184; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 63.6170(c)(1) through (5).
- (c) The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants adopted by reference in this rule shall be controlling over other standards in the air pollution rules of the Department, except that any emissions limiting standard contained in or determined pursuant to the air pollution rules of the Department which is more stringent than one contained in a National Emission Standard, or which regulates pollutants or emissions units not regulated by an applicable National Emission Standard, shall apply.
- (d) General Subparts Adopted. The following general subparts of 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference.
 - 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A, General Provisions; amended February 27, 2002, at 67 FR 9156; amended April 5, 2002, at 67 FR 16581; amended February 18, 2003, at 68 FR 7706; amended April 21, 2003, at 68 FR 19375; amended May 20, 2003, at 68 FR 27645; amended May 23, 2003, at 68 FR 28605; amended May 27, 2003, at 68 FR 28774; amended May 28, 2003, at 68 FR 31745; amended May 29, 2003, at 68 FR 32171; amended May 30, 2003, at 68 FR 32585; amended November 13, 2003, at 68 FR 64431; amended December 19, 2003, at 68 FR 70959; amended January 2, 2004, at 69 FR 129; amended February 3, 2004 at 69 FR 5038; amended April 19, 2004, at 69 FR 20967; amended April 22, 2004, at 69 FR 21905; amended April 26, 2004, at 69 FR 22601; amended July 30, 2004, at 69 FR 45943; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 63.5(e), 40 CFR 63.5(f), 40 CFR 63.6(g), 40 CFR 63.6(h)(9), 40 CFR 63.6(j), 40 CFR 63.13, and 40 CFR 63.14.
 - 2. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart B, Requirements for Control Technology Determinations for Major Sources in Accordance with Clean Air Act Sections, Sections 112(g) and 112(j); amended April 5, 2002, at 67 FR 16581; is adopted and incorporated by reference, subject to the following provisions.
 - a. The "effective date of Section 112(g)(2)(B)" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be July 1, 1997.
 - b. The "Notice of MACT Approval" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be the air construction permit.
 - c. The "permitting authority" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be the Department.
 - d. In lieu of the administrative procedures for review of the Notice of MACT Approval as set forth in 40 CFR 63.43(f)(1) through (5), the Department will follow the permit processing procedures of Rule 62-4.055, F.A.C.

NESHAP Provisions

- e. In lieu of the opportunity for public comment on the Notice of MACT Approval as set forth in 40 CFR 63.43(h), the Department will provide opportunity for public comment on the Notice of MACT Approval pursuant to Rule 62-210.350, F.A.C.
- f. The Notice of MACT Approval shall become effective upon issuance of the air construction permit by the Department.
- 3. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart C, List of Hazardous Air Pollutants, Petitions Process, Lesser Quantity Designations, Source Category List, revised as of July 1, 2004; amended November 29, 2004, at 69 FR 69320.
- 4. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart D, Compliance Extensions for Early Reductions of Hazardous Air Pollutants, except any notice required to be published by the Department shall be prepared by the Department and published by the applicant with proof of publication submitted to the Department.
- 5. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart E, Approval of State Programs and Delegation of Federal Authorities; Section 63.90, Program Overview, only.
- (e) Appendices Adopted. The following appendices of 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 1. Appendix A, Test Methods.
 - 2. Appendix B, Sources Defined for Early Reduction Provisions.
 - 3. Appendix C, Determination of the Fraction Biodegraded (Fbio) in a Biological Treatment Unit.
 - 4. Appendix D, Alternative Validation Procedure for EPA Waste and Wastewater Methods.
 - 5. Appendix E, Monitoring Procedure for Non-thoroughly Mixed Open Biological Treatment Systems at Kraft Pulp Mills Under Unsafe Sampling Conditions.

40 CFR 63 Subpart A - General Provisions

[Source: Federal Register dated 3/5/04]

The permittee shall comply with the applicable general provisions identified in Table 7 of 40 CFR 63 Subpart YYYY.

§ 63.1 Applicability.

Additional terms defined in Sec. 63.6175.

§ 63.2 Definitions.

Additional terms defined in Sec. 63.6175.

- § 63.3 Units and abbreviations.
- § 63.4 Prohibited activities and circumvention.
- § 63.5 Preconstruction review and notification requirements.
- § 63.6 Compliance with standards and maintenance requirements.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or visible emission standards.

§ 63.7 Performance testing requirements.

Subpart YYYY contains performance test dates at Sec. 63.6110.

Subpart YYYY contains performance test dates at Sec.63.6110.

Subpart YYYY specifies test methods at Sec. 63.6120.

§ 63.8 Monitoring requirements.

Subpart YYYY contains specific requirements for monitoring at Sec.63.6125.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

Averaging periods for demonstrating compliance are specified at Secs. 63.6135 and 63.6140.

§ 63.9 Notification requirements.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or VE standards.

NESHAP Provisions

Notifications for sources not conducting performance tests are due 30 days after completion of performance evaluations.

§ 63.10 Recordkeeping and reporting requirements.

Applies for CO standard if using RATA alternative.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or VE standards.

Subpart YYYY does not require reporting of startup, shutdown, or malfunctions.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

- § 63.11 Control device requirements.
- § 63.12 State authority and delegations.
- § 63.13 Addresses of State air pollution control agencies and EPA Regional Offices.
- § 63.14 Incorporations by reference.
- § 63.15 Availability of information and confidentiality.

Subpart YYYY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines

[Source: Federal Register dated 3/5/04]

- 40 CFR 63.6080 What is the purpose of subpart YYYY?
- 40 CFR 63.6085 Am I subject to this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6090 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?
- 40 CFR 63.6092 Are duct burners and waste heat recovery units covered by subpart YYYY?
- 40 CFR 63.6095 When do I have to comply with this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6100 What emission and operating limitations must I meet?
- 40 CFR 63.6105 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6110 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 40 CFR 63.6115 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 40 CFR 63.6120 What performance tests and other procedures must I use?
- 40 CFR 63.6125 What are my monitor installation, operation, and maintenance requirements?
- 40 CFR 63.6130 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission and operating limitations?
- 40 CFR 63.6135 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 40 CFR 63.6140 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission and operating limitations?
- 40 CFR 63.6145 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 40 CFR 63.6150 What reports must I submit and when?
- 40 CFR 63.6155 What records must I keep?
- 40 CFR 63.6160 In what form and how long must I keep my records?
- 40 CFR 63.6165 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?
- 40 CFR 63.6170 Who implements and enforces this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6175 What definitions apply to this subpart?

As previously specified, EPA stayed the effectiveness of NESHAP Subpart YYYY for lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbines and diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbines. For purposes of this rule, the affected unit is considered a diffusion flame gas-fired combustion turbine. Until EPA takes final action to require compliance and publishes a document in the Federal Register, only the Initial Notification requirements as set forth in Sec. 63.6145 apply. The unit is permitted to fire up to 475 hours of distillate oil per year as a restricted alternate fuel. An oxidation catalyst controls organic compounds. The following tables reflect this applicability.

NESHAP Provisions

Tables to Subpart YYYY of Part 63.

As stated in § 63.6100, you must comply with the following emission limitations:

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. EMISSION LIMITATIONS

For each new or reconstructed stationary combustion turbine described in § 63.6100 which is		You must meet the following emission limitations
3.	a diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined in this subpart, or	Limit the concentration of formaldehyde to 91 ppbvd or less at 15 percent O2.

As stated in § 63.6100 and § 63.6140, you must comply with the following operating limitations:

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. OPERATING LIMITATIONS

Fo	•	You must
1.	•	maintain the 4-hour rolling average of the catalyst inlet temperature within the range suggested by the catalyst manufacturer.

As stated in § 63.6120, you must comply with the following requirements for performance tests and initial compliance demonstrations:

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS AND INITIAL COMPLIANCE DEMONSTRATIONS

You	must	Using	According to the following requirements
a.	demonstrate formaldehyde emissions meet the emission limitations specified in Table 1 by a performance test initially and on an annual basis AND	Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, appendix A; ASTM D6348–03 provided that %R as determined in Annex A5 of ASTM D6348–03 is equal or greater than 70% and less than or equal to 130%; or other methods approved by the Administrator.	Formaldehyde concentration must be corrected to 15 percent O2, dry basis. Results of this test consist of the average of the three 1 hour runs. Test must be conducted within 10 percent of 100 percent load.
Ъ.	select the sampling port location and the number of traverse points AND	Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 60, Appendix A § 63.7(d)(1)(i).	If using an air pollution control device, the sampling site must be located at the outlet of the air pollution control device.
c.	determine the O2 concentration at the sampling port location AND	Method 3A or 3B of 40 CFR part 60, Appendix A.	Measurements to determine O2 concentration must be made at the same time as the performance test.
d.	determine the moisture content at the sampling port location for the purposes of correcting the formaldehyde concentration to a dry basis.	Method 4 of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A or Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, Appendix A, or ASTM D6348-03.	Measurements to determine moisture content must be made at the same time as the performance test.

As stated in §§ 63.6110 and 63.6130, you must comply with the following requirements to demonstrate initial compliance with emission limitations:

TABLE 4 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. INITIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITATIONS

For the	You have demonstrated initial compliance if
Emission limitation for formaldehyde.	the average formaldehyde concentration meets the emission limitations specified in Table 1.

NESHAP Provisions

As stated in §§ 63.6135 and 63.6140, you must comply with the following requirements to demonstrate continuing compliance with operating limitations:

TABLE 5 OF SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63.—CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH OPERATING LIMITATIONS

For each stationary combustion turbine complying with the emission limitation for formaldehyde	You must demonstrate continuous compliance by	
1. with an oxidation catalyst	continuously monitoring the inlet temperature to the catalyst and maintaining the 4-hour rolling average of the inlet temperature within the range suggested by the catalyst manufacturer.	

As stated in § 63.6150, you must comply with the following requirements for reports:

TABLE 6 OF SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63.—REQUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS

If y	ou own or operate a	You must	According to the following requirements
1.	stationary combustion turbine which must comply with the formaldehyde emission limitation.	report your compliance status	semiannually, according to the requirements of § 63.6150.
3.	a lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbine or a diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined by this subpart, and you use any quantity of distillate oil to fire any new or existing stationary combustion turbine which is located at the same major source.	(1) the number of hours distillate oil was fired by each new or existing stationary combustion turbine during the reporting period, (2) the operating limits provided in your federally enforceable permit, and any deviations from these limits, and (3) any problems or errors suspected with the meters.	annually, according to the requirements in § 63.6150.

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE



First-Class Mail Postage & Fees Paid USPS Permit No. G-10

Sender: Please print your name, address, and ZIP+4 in this box

Dept. of Environmental Protection AUG 28 2006 Division of Air Resources Mgt.

Bureau of Air Regulation, NSR 2600 Blair Stone Rd., MS 5505

BUREAU OF AIR REGULATIANIA hassee, FL 32399-2400

lalladallahlahladhadhadhadladhadladhad

i		MAIL REC	EIPT Coverage Provided)
1267	· · · ·	Maria Carlo	4、中华中国人员的工程的
급	Mr. Lee Sch	nudde, VIce Pre	sident
1.1.0	Postage	\$	
E TE	. Certified Fee		Postmark
щ	Return Receipt Fee (Endorsement Required)		Here
007	Restricted Delivery Fee (Endorsement Required)		
20	Total Postage & Fees	\$	
7	Sent To	ddo Vice Presid	James
	Street, Act. No.: or PO Bo 1375 Buena Vi	dde, Vice Presio sta Drive	lent
2000	City State 71P+4	sta, Florida 3	
,	PS Form 3800. May 2000.	The state of the s	See Reverse for Instructions

July 26, 2006

RECEIVED

JUL 27 2006

Mr. Al Linero, P.E. Florida Department of Environmental Protection Division of Air Resource Management 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 23 Tallahassee, Florida 32301

BUREAU OF AIR REGULATION

Re:

Reedy Creek Improvement District

LM6000 Repowering Project

FDEP Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC

Dear Mr. Linero:

The Department issued Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-026-AC dated July 14, 2006 to the Walt Disney World Company, Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) authorizing certain modifications to Air Construction Permit 0950111-025-AC. Public Notice of the proposed modification was required. Please find enclosed Proof of Publication from the Orlando Sentinel newspaper indicating that the requisite one-day public notice appeared in the Orlando Sentinel legal notices on Friday, July 21, 2006.

Please contact me at (407) 824-4943 if you have any questions regarding this submission.

Sincerely,

Edward Godwin, P.E.

Chief Mechanical Engineer

Reedy Creek Energy Services

Attachments

CC:

Mr. Leonard Kozlov

Program Administrator

Air Resources Management

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232

Orlando, Florida 32803-3767

BEST AVAILABLE COPY



aily

of Florida s.s.

inite Florida Hatary Assn., Inc

e undersigned authority personally appeared BEVERLYC . SIMMONS
, who on oath says is the Legal Advertising Representative of Orlando Sentinel, a daily oublished atin
hed copy of advertisement, being a COMPANY of LIGHT DESCRIPT MIGRED COMPANY
irseCourt,
d in said newspaper in the issue; of _Q7/Q1//04
1
ther says that the said Orlando Sentinel is a newspaper published at
County, Florida,
said newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in
Day and has been entered as second-class mail matter at the post
ANDO in said
County, Florida,
of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached
ertisement; and affiant further says that he/she has neither paid
ed any person, firm or comporation any discount, rebate,
or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
in the said newspaper. Shelly . Army
ng instrument was acknowledged before me this 21st day of
JULY , 20 06 by BEVERLYC.SIMMONS
onally known to me and who did take an oath.
/
DEBORAH M. TONEY
DEBORAL M. 101421
Expires 11/18/2009
Bonded thru (800)432-4254

PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florido Department of Environmental Protection
Draft Air Permit No. 995011-025-AC
Modification to Air Permit No. 995011-025-AC
Wolf Disney World Resort Complex
Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID)
Reedy Creek Energy Services
Services Complex C

Applicant: The applicant for this project is the Walt Disney World Company. The applicant's authorized representative and mailling address is: Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President; Walt Disney World Company; Reedy Creek Improvement District; Reedy Creek Energy Services; 1375 Buena Vista Drive; Lake Buena Vista, Florida 2333-8402.

Facility Location: Reedy Creek Energy Services, Inc. (RCES) operates an electrical generation and distribution system on behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Portye in Loke Bueno Vista, Fiorba

Project On behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District, Reedy Creek Energy Services operates a combined cycle gas turbine for the Wait Disney World Resort Complex. Air construction permit 095011-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005, authorized the opplicant to replace the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINT. The new gas turbine uses water injection to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides. An oxidation catalyst will reduce emissions of carbon monacide and volcille arganic compounds. Emissions of particulate matter and sultur dioxide will be minimized by the efficient combustion and use of natural gas and distillate all.

On June 2, 2006, RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 09501136 ms.A.C be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 50 mmBtuhr., HHV at 300F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 2016; with a proposed Condition 2016; Inbid addresses NOX four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 1950111426-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit 10x 09501114025-AC were reacusted or made.

The existing facility is considered a "major facility" in accordance with Rule 62:212.00, F.A.C., which is the new source preconstruction review program for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality in areas currently in attainment with the Ambient Air Quality Standards. However, based on the past actual emissions from the existing combined cycle gas turbine, the project with not result in a significant increase of any PSD-regulated pollutants. Therefore, the project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

Peminting Authority. Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 8d., Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 8d.4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an oir permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permittina Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority's shysical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 44, Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority's militing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 65505, Tallahassee, Florida 32397-200. The Permitting Authority's elephone number is 850/488-0114.

Paject Ris: A complete project file is available for public in specifion during the normal business hours of \$100 a.m. to \$500 p.m., Monday Ihrouah Friday (except legal holidays) at address Indicated above for the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Dordt Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section (30.11), F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority's project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number is 407964 above. A copy of the complete project file is also available at the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 23803.3767. The telephone number is 40798-7555. Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue and permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will not aversely impact air quality and that the project will not aversely impact air quality and that the project will not aversely impact air quality and that the project mitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit uniess a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 10.559 and 120.57. F.S. or unless public comment decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of tourteen (14) days from the date of publication of this Public Molice. Written comments must be provided to the Permitting Authority at the above address. Any written comments filed will be made available for public inspection. Written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.

MEMORANDUM

To:

Trina Vielhauer

Through:

Al Linero

From:

Tom Cascio

Date:

June 26, 2006

Subject:

Intent Package for Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-026-AC

Walt Disney World Resort Complex (Reedy Creek Improvement District)

On June 2, 2006, RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes by modifying the language of 0950111-025-AC. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested or made.

I recommend your signature and forwarding to Patty for processing.



Department of Environmental Protection

Jeb Bush Governor Twin Towers Office Building 2600 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Colleen M. Castille Secretary

July 14, 2006

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President
Walt Disney World Company
WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District
1375 Buena Vista Drive
Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

Re: Reedy Creek Improvement District Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Modification to Air Permit 0950111-025-AC Gas Turbine Replacement Project (EU-088)

Dear Mr. Schmudde:

On June 2, 2006, you submitted an application requesting a modification to air permit 0950111-025-AC that authorized the replacement of the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM. The new equipment was installed at the Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) in the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. Enclosed are the following documents: "Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination", "Draft Permit", "Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit", and "Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit".

In your application of June 2, 2006, you requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested or made.

The "Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination" summarizes the Permitting Authority's technical review of the application and provides the rationale for making the preliminary determination to issue a Draft Permit. The proposed "Draft Permit" includes the specific conditions that regulate the emissions units covered by the proposed project. The "Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit" provides important information regarding: the Permitting Authority's intent to issue an air permit for the proposed project; the requirements for publishing a Public Notice of the Permitting Authority's intent to issue an air permit; the procedures for submitting comments on the Draft Permit; the process for filing a petition for an administrative hearing; and the availability of mediation. The "Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit" is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project.

If you have any questions, please contact the Project Engineer, Tom Cascio, at 850/921-9526.

Sincerely,

for Seffengo

Trina L. Vielhauer, Chief Bureau of Air Regulation

Enclosures

"More Protection, Less Process"

Printed on recycled paper.

WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an Application for Air Permit Modification by:

Walt Disney World Company
WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID)
1375 Buena Vista Drive
Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Reedy Creek Improvement District Gas Turbine Replacement Project Lake Buena Vista, Florida

Authorized Representative:
Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President

Facility Location: Reedy Creek Energy Services, Inc. (RCES) operates an electrical generation and distribution system on behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida.

Project: The applicant for 0950111-025-AC proposed replacing the existing LM 5000 gas turbine (EU-088) with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM (Emissions Unit 088). The project does not trigger PSD preconstruction review. Details of the project are provided in the original application, the permit modification application, and the enclosed "Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination" that includes revised language to the original document.

On June 2, 2006, RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested or made.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority's physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority's mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority's telephone number is 850/488-0114.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority's project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed above. A copy of the complete project file is also available at the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767. The telephone number is 407/894-7555.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed "Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit" (Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The newspaper used must meet the

WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take place. If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at above address or phone number. Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address within seven (7) days of publication. Failure to publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of fourteen (14) days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be provided to the Permitting Authority at the above address. Any written comments filed will be made available for public inspection. If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department's Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by the applicant or any of the parties listed below must be filed within fourteen (14) days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within fourteen (14) days of publication of the attached Public Notice or within fourteen (14) days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within fourteen (14) days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person's right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority's action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency's file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner's representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner's substantial interests will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of how and when each petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed action; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency's proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority's action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority's final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

Trina L. Vielhauer, Chief

Bureau of Air Regulation

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this "Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit" package (including the Public Notice, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, and the Draft Permit) was sent by certified mail (*) and copies were mailed by U.S. Mail before the close of business on to the persons listed below.

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Walt Disney World Company *

Mr. Edward Godwin, P.E., Reedy Creek Energy Services

Mr. Len Kozlov, Central District

Mr. Gregg Worley, EPA Region 4

Mr. John Bunyak, NPS

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.

PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Draft Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC
Modification to Air Permit No. 0950111-025-AC
Walt Disney World Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID)
Reedy Creek Energy Services – Gas Turbine Replacement Project
Lake Buena Vista, Florida

Applicant: The applicant for this project is the Walt Disney World Company. The applicant's authorized representative and mailing address is: Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President; Walt Disney World Company; Reedy Creek Improvement District; Reedy Creek Energy Services; 1375 Buena Vista Drive; Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830-8402.

Facility Location: Reedy Creek Energy Services, Inc. (RCES) operates an electrical generation and distribution system on behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida.

Project: On behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District, Reedy Creek Energy Services operates a combined cycle gas turbine for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex. Air construction permit 0950111-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005, authorized the applicant to replace the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINT[®]. The new gas turbine uses water injection to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides. An oxidation catalyst will reduce emissions of carbon monoxide and volatile organic compounds. Emissions of particulate matter and sulfur dioxide will be minimized by the efficient combustion and use of natural gas and distillate oil.

On June 2, 2006, RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested or made.

The existing facility is considered a "major facility" in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., which is the new source preconstruction review program for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality in areas currently in attainment with the Ambient Air Quality Standards. However, based on the past actual emissions from the existing combined cycle gas turbine, the project will not result in a significant increase of any PSD-regulated pollutants. Therefore, the project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority's physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority's mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority's telephone number is 850/488-0114.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority's project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed above. A copy of the complete project file is also available at the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767. The telephone number is 407/894-7555.

Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will

(Public Notice to be Published in the Newspaper)

PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of fourteen (14) days from the date of publication of this Public Notice. Written comments must be provided to the Permitting Authority at the above address. Any written comments filed will be made available for public inspection. If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department's Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within fourteen (14) days of publication of this Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within fourteen (14) days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person's right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority's action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency's file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner's representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner's substantial rights will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of how and when the petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed action; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency's proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority's action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Permitting Authority's final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available for this proceeding.

TECHNICAL EVALUATION & PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

PROJECT

Draft Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Heat Input Increase and Emissions Averaging

Modification to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC Gas Turbine Replacement Project

COUNTY

Orange and Osceola Counties

APPLICANT

Walt Disney World Company Reedy Creek Improvement District ARMS Facility ID No. 0950111

PERMITTING AUTHORITY

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Division of Air Resource Management
Bureau of Air Regulation
Permitting South Section



1. FACILITY INFORMATION

The Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) is part of the Walt Disney World Resort Complex (WDW), which was first opened to the public on October 1, 1971 (SIC No. 7996). The WDW facility is located in central Florida approximately 15 miles southwest of the city of Orlando and covers areas in Orange and Osceola Counties. The RCID is located at 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. The UTM coordinates are Zone 17, 449.70 km East, and 3138.00 km North. This site is in an area that is in attainment (or designated as unclassifiable) for all air pollutants subject to a National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS).

The facility is a complex of hotels, theme parks, support facilities and a utility. Sources of air pollutant emissions includes: a combined cycle gas turbine system, several diesel electric generators, a collection of small boilers and hot water heaters, a dry cleaning operation, and an animal crematory. Currently, the facility operates under Title V Air Operation Permit No. 0950111-024-AV, which was recently revised on February 2, 2005.

Regulatory Categories

<u>Title III</u>: The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).

<u>Title IV</u>: The facility operates units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

<u>Title V</u>: The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.

PSD: The facility is a PSD-major source of air pollution in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C.

NSPS: The facility operates units subject to the New Source Performance Standards in 40 CFR 60.

<u>NESHAP</u>: The facility operates units subject to the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants in 40 CFR 63.

Processing Schedule

06/02/06: Department received an application for a permit modification to 0950111-025-AC, issued by the

Department on June 13, 2005.

06/02/06: Application deemed complete.

Project Description - Original Permit

Reedy Creek Energy Services, Inc. (RCES) operates an electrical generation and distribution system on behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District. This includes Emissions Unit 088, which is a combined cycle gas turbine system consisting of the following equipment: a General Electric LM 5000 gas turbine (\sim 29 MW, shaft power), a gas-fired heat recovery steam generating (HRSG) unit with a maximum heat input rate of 198 MMBtu per hour, a steam turbine electrical generator (8.5 MW), and a NOx continuous emissions monitoring system. This unit fires natural gas as the primary fuel, but up to 336 hours per year of distillate fuel oil (\leq 0.4% sulfur by weight) may be fired as a backup fuel. Water injection is used to reduce NOx emissions when firing either natural gas or distillate oil. The unit is equipped with an oxidation catalyst to reduce CO and VOC emissions. The HRSG duct burner is fired exclusively with natural gas.

In the Application for permit 0950111-025-AC, RCES proposed replacing the existing gas turbine with a General Electric LM 6000PC SPRINT™ gas turbine rated at nominal 50 MW. The new gas turbine will include General Electric's SPRINT™ spray inter-cooling technology. No changes will be made to the existing HRSG, steam turbine electrical generator, or inlet air chilling system. The duct burner is no longer needed during combined cycle operation and will not operate when the new gas turbine is in operation. The current NOx/CO₂ dilution in-stack CEMS will be replaced with a NOx/O₂ extractive CEMS. Construction was planned to begin on August 1, 2005. Initial operation began in February 2006. The new unit will be subject to the following specific regulations for gas turbines:

- NSPS Subpart GG in 40 CFR 60 New Source Performance Standards for Stationary Source Gas Turbines
- NESHAP Subpart YYYY in 40 CFR 63 National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines

TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

The applicant entered into a binding contractual obligation for the gas turbine on October 29, 2004, with cancellation costs exceeding \$900,000. The new gas turbine is considered an existing unit with regard to NSPS Subpart KKKK for stationary gas turbines, which was proposed on February 18, 2005.

Project Description - Permit Modification

This project is a modification to air construction permit 0950111-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005. The permit has an expiration date of November 1, 2006. Included below is the original language of the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination for this permit, with minor additions and deletions to reflect the current modification request.

Heat Input

Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC limits the LM6000 gas turbine maximum heat input to 480 million British thermal units per hour on a higher heating value basis (mmBtu/hr, HHV) at a compressor inlet temperature of 30°F and full load operation. Initial operation of the LM6000 gas turbine indicates that this maximum heat input, which was based on gas turbine vendor projections, under estimates the actual performance of the LM6000 unit by approximately five percent.

Accordingly, RCID requests that Condition No. 6 be revised to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation. The Applicant reports that, based on preliminary emissions testing, there is sufficient margin in the emission estimates for nitrogen oxides (NO_x) and carbon monoxide (CO) such that no changes to the current permit limits for these two air contaminants are necessary.

Increasing the maximum hourly heat input rate will result in a corresponding increase in maximum hourly fuel consumption. Revised Table 3-1 (PSD Netting Analysis), Table B2A (hourly PM/PM₁₀, SO₂, H₂SO₄, and Pb emission rates), Table B5 (annual emission rates), and Table B7 (fuel flow rates) were attached to the Application. These revised tables reflect an increase in maximum heat input from 480 to 505 mmBtu/hr for Operating Scenarios 2 and 6. As shown on revised Table 3-1, the net changes in emissions remain below the PSD significant emission rate thresholds for major modifications. These tables are part of the project file.

NOx Four Hour Rolling Average Calculations and Recording

Section 3, Condition No. 20 and No. 20(e) of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC defines the calculation and recording of emissions averages. The Applicant reports that these permit conditions are being met in all respects. However, operation of the system has revealed that the data recording software of the Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) is not currently extracting the excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M) from the calculation of the NOx four hour rolling average. RCID proposes to modify the software to perform this extraction so that four hour rolling averages are posted in two ways: To show all emissions in the four hour rolling average in compliance with NSPS limits as shown in Permit Section 4, Appendix E, and; Show four hour rolling averages with excess emissions due to SU/SD/M extracted in compliance with the four hour rolling average limits listed in Permit Condition 10. These modifications to the software will ensure accurate and complete recordkeeping that will assist with operation in compliance with all permit conditions. The protocol is described in detail in draft air construction permit 0950111-026-AC under Paragraph 20(e) - Emissions Averages.

2. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

State Regulations

This project is subject to the applicable environmental laws specified in Section 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.). The Florida Statutes authorize the Department of Environmental Protection to establish rules and regulations regarding air quality as part of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). This project is subject to the applicable rules and regulations defined in the following Chapters of the Florida Administrative Code.

Chapter Description

62-4 Permitting Requirements

TECHNICAL EVALUATION AND PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

62-204	Ambient Air Quality Requirements, PSD Increments, and Federal Regulations Adopted by Reference
62-210	Permits Required, Public Notice, Reports, Stack Height Policy, Circumvention, Excess Emissions, and Forms
62-212	Preconstruction Review, PSD Review and BACT, and Non-attainment Area Review and LAER
62-213	Title V Air Operation Permits for Major Sources of Air Pollution
62-296	Emission Limiting Standards
62-297	Test Methods and Procedures, Continuous Monitoring Specifications, and Alternate Sampling Procedures

Federal Regulations

This project is also subject to the applicable federal provisions regarding air quality as established by the EPA in the following sections of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).

Title 40	<u>Description</u>
Part 60	Subpart A - General Provisions for NSPS Sources NSPS Subpart GG – Stationary Gas Turbines Applicable Appendices
Part 63	Subpart A - General Provisions for NESHAP Sources NESHAP Subpart YYYY - Stationary Gas Turbines Applicable Appendices
Part 72	Permits Regulation, Acid Rain Program
Part 75	Continuous Emissions Monitoring, Acid Rain Program
Part 77	Excess Emissions, Acid Rain Program

Acid rain program requirements will be incorporated as part of the Title V operating permit for this facility.

General PSD Applicability

The Department regulates major air pollution facilities in accordance with Florida's Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) program, as defined in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. A PSD preconstruction review is required in all areas currently in attainment with the state and federal Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS) or areas designated as "unclassifiable" for a given pollutant. A new facility is considered "major" with respect to PSD if it emits or has the potential to emit:

- 250 tons per year or more of any regulated air pollutant, or
- 100 tons per year or more of any regulated air pollutant and the facility belongs to one of the 28 PSD Major Facility Categories (Rule 62-210.200(164), F.A.C.), or
- 5 tons per year of lead.

For new projects at PSD-major facilities, each PSD-regulated pollutant is reviewed for applicability based on emissions thresholds known as the Significant Emission Rates defined in Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C. Pollutant emissions from a project exceeding these rates are considered "significant" and the applicant must employ the Best Available Control Technology (BACT) to minimize emissions of each such pollutant and evaluate the air quality impacts. Although a facility may be "major" with respect to PSD for only one regulated pollutant, it may be required to install BACT controls for several "significant" regulated pollutants.

PSD Applicability for Project

Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) is part of an existing PSD-major facility in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. It is located approximately 15 miles southwest of the city of Orlando in an area that is in attainment (or designated as unclassifiable) for all air pollutants subject to State and National Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS). Therefore, all new projects must be reviewed for the applicability of PSD preconstruction review.

Prior to December of 2005 the existing LM 5000 gas turbine was removed from service. This generated emissions decreases that may be used in a PSD netting analysis. Emissions increases include three emergency diesel generators installed in November of 2002 and the new LM 6000 gas turbine that began operation in February of 2006. The gas turbine will emit: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOx), particulate matter (PM/PM10), sulfur dioxide (SO2), volatile organic compounds (VOC), lead (Pb), and sulfuric acid mist (SAM). The following table summarizes the applicant's PSD netting analysis for these pollutants as revised by the additional information provided on March 29, 2005, and the June 2, 2006, permit modification application that requested an increase in maximum heat input from 480 mmBtu/hr to 505 mmBtu/hr.

	Annual Emissions – Tons Per Year					Subject	
Pollutant	Existing LM 5000	Diesel Generators	New LM 6000PC	Net Change	PSD Significant Emission Rate	To PSD?	
CO a	- 6.3	+ 0.14	+ 55.2	+ 49.0	100	No	
NOx	- 166.6	+ 1.77	+ 195.7	+ 30.9	40	No	
Pb	- 0.00003	+ 0.00	+ 0.0027	+ 0.003	0.600	No	
PM/PM10 a	- 2.60	+ 0.06	+ 16.1	+ 13.6	25/15	No	
SAM	- 0.074	+ 0.02	+ 2.9	+ 2.8	7	No	
SO ₂	- 0.60	+ 0.18	+ 23.8	+ 23.4	40	No	
VOC	Neg.	+ 0.42	+ 6.1	+ 6.5	40	No	

Notes:

- a. For the existing LM 5000 gas turbine, emissions of CO, PM/PM10, and VOC are based on the data reported to the Department in the Annual Operating Reports. NOx and SO2 emissions are based on data submitted to the EPA Acid Rain database.
- b. For the diesel generators, emissions are based on data reported to the Department in the Annual Operating Reports.
- c. SAM Emissions of sulfuric acid mist (SAM) are based on the assumption that 8% of the fuel sulfur is converted to SO3 and that 100% of the SO3 is converted to H2SO4.
- d. Lead emissions are based on an emission factor of 1.4 x 10⁻⁵ lb/MMBtu for oil firing (AP-42, 2000) and negligible lead emissions from firing natural gas.
- e. For the new LM 6000PC gas turbine, emissions are based on worst-case emissions considering fuel, load, ambient temperature, chiller operation, and SPRINT™ operation. Emissions during startups and shutdowns were also included in the annual emissions estimates.

Based on the above PSD netting analysis, the gas turbine replacement project, as revised by this project to increase the maximum heat input rate, will not result in any PSD-significant emissions increase. Therefore, the project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

3. PROJECT REVIEW

Requested Permit Conditions

The applicant specifically requested the following revisions:

1. <u>Permitted Capacity</u>: Revise the maximum heat input rate to the gas turbine from 480 to 505 MMBtu per hour based on a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F, the higher heating value of the fuel, and 100% load.

Basis for Request: The request is supported by data provided by the General Electric Company.

2. Excess Emissions.

The permit modification request clarifies the calculation and recording protocol of the NOx four-hour rolling average as follows:

Section 3, Condition No. 20 and No. 20(e) of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC defines the calculation and recording of emissions averages. The Applicant reports that these permit conditions are being met in all respects. However, operation of the system has revealed that the data recording software of the Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) is not currently extracting the excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M) from the calculation of the NOx four hour rolling average. RCID proposes to modify the software to perform this extraction so that four hour rolling averages are posted in two ways: To show all emissions in the four hour rolling average in compliance with NSPS limits as shown in Permit Section 4, Appendix E, and to show four hour rolling averages with excess emissions due to SU/SD/M extracted in compliance with the four hour rolling average limits listed in Permit Condition 10. These modifications to the software will ensure accurate and complete recordkeeping that will assist with operation in compliance with all permit conditions. The protocol is described in detail in draft air construction permit 0950111-026-AC under Paragraph 20(e) - Emissions Averages.

Department Comment: The request is acceptable, but the following permitting note will be added to clarify the intent.

{Permitting Note: The term "in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period" is intended to recognize the capabilities of the monitoring system to identify excess emissions for event-driven short term episodes. For example, electrical problems could cause the premature shutdown of water pumps on the NOx control system, which would be restarted by the operator. This might result in 10 minutes of excess emissions due to the malfunction, which could be extracted from the 4-hour compliance average up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period for SU/SD/M. Specifically, this term is not intended to allow the permittee to simply "cherry pick" periods of elevated emissions to extract from the compliance average.}

4. PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION

The Department makes a preliminary determination that the proposed project will comply with all applicable state and federal air pollution regulations as conditioned by the draft permit. This determination is based on a technical review of the complete application, reasonable assurances provided by the applicant, and the conditions specified in the draft permit. No air quality modeling analysis is required because the project does not result in a significant increase in emissions. Tom Cascio is the project engineer responsible for reviewing the revised application and drafting permit 0950111-026-AC. Additional details of this analysis may be obtained by contacting the project engineer at the Department's Bureau of Air Regulation at Mail Station #5505, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

PERMITTEE:

Walt Disney World Company WDW Resort Complex – Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) 1375 Buena Vista Drive Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402

Authorized Representative:

Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President

Reedy Creek Improvement District Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC Facility ID No. 0950111 SIC No. 7996

Permit Expires: November 1, 2006

FACILITY AND LOCATION

This project is a modification to air construction permit 0950111-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005. Included below is the original language of the air construction permit, with minor adjustments and additions to reflect the current modification request.

Air Permit 0950111-025-AC authorized the replacement of the existing LM 5000 gas turbine (EU-088) with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM. The permit has an expiration date of November 1, 2006. The Reedy Creek Improvement District operates an electrical generating plant at the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida. The UTM map coordinates are: Zone 17; 449.70 km East; and 3138.00 km North (Latitude: 28° 22' 24" North / Longitude: 81° 32' 46" West).

STATEMENT OF BASIS

This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) and Title 40, Parts 60, 63, and 72, 75, and 77 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The permittee is authorized to install the proposed equipment in accordance with the conditions of this permit and as described in the application, approved drawings, plans, and other documents on file with the Department. For the combined cycle gas turbine and duct burner, this permit supersedes original Permit No. AC48-137740 (PSD-FL-123), which authorized initial construction.

CONTENTS

Section 1. General Information

Section 2. Administrative Requirements

Section 3. Emissions Units Specific Conditions

Section 4. Appendices

Joseph Kahn, P.E., Acting Director Division of Air Resource Management (Effective Date)

FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The facility is a complex of hotels, theme parks, and support facilities including a utility. Sources of air pollution include equipment such as: boilers, hot water heaters, oil heaters, a dry cleaning operation, a boat maintenance area, surface coating operations, and a combined cycle gas turbine. The project only affects the following emissions unit.

ID	Emission Unit Description			
088	Replace existing LM 5000 gas turbine (nominal 38 MW) with new LM 6000PC gas turbine (nominal 50 MW) to operate in combined cycle mode with heat recovery steam generator and steam turbine electrical generator (nominal 8.5 MW)			

REGULATORY CLASSIFICATION

<u>Title III</u>: The facility is identified as a potential major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).

Title IV: The facility operates units subject to the acid rain provisions of the Clean Air Act.

Title V: The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.

<u>PSD</u>: The facility is a PSD-major facility as defined in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. The project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

NSPS: The federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) are specified in 40 CFR 60. The replacement combustions turbine is subject to the NSPS Subpart GG provisions for stationary gas turbines. The Department makes a preliminary determination (subject to approval by EPA) that the new gas turbine is not subject to the proposed NSPS Subpart KKKK provisions because the permittee entered into a binding contractual obligation for the gas turbine on October 29, 2004 with substantial cancellation costs.

<u>NESHAP</u>: The federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) source categories are established in 40 CFR 63. The new combustion turbine is subject to the NEHSAP Subpart YYYY provisions for combustions turbines. However, EPA stayed the effectiveness of this regulation on August 18, 2004. The permittee must comply with only the initial notification requirements set forth in § 63.6145 until EPA takes final action and publishes a document in the Federal Register.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be revised to show a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested.

RELEVANT DOCUMENTS

The permit application and additional information received to make it complete are not a part of this permit; however, the information is specifically related to this permitting action and is on file with the Department.

SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

- 1. <u>Permitting Authority</u>: All documents related to applications for permits to construct, modify, or operate emissions units regulated by this permit shall be submitted to the Bureau of Air Regulation of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) at 2600 Blair Stone Road (MS #5505), Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. Copies of application shall also be submitted to the Compliance Authority.
- 2. <u>Compliance Authority</u>: All documents related to compliance activities such as reports, tests, and notifications shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767.
- 3. <u>Appendices</u>: The following Appendices are attached as part of this permit: Appendix A (Citation Format); Appendix B (General Conditions); Appendix C (Common Conditions); Appendix D (Summary of Potential Emissions); Appendix E (NSPS Provisions); and Appendix F (NESHAP Provisions).
- 4. Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures: Unless otherwise indicated in this permit, the construction and operation of the subject emissions unit shall be in accordance with the capacities and specifications stated in the application. The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.); Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296, and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.); and Title 40, Parts 60, 63, and 75 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. The terms used in this permit have specific meanings as defined in the applicable chapters of the Florida Administrative Code. The permittee shall use the applicable forms listed in Rule 62-210.900, F.A.C. and follow the application procedures in Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local permitting or regulations. [Rules 62-204.800, 62-210.300 and 62-210.900, F.A.C.]
- 5. New or Additional Conditions: For good cause shown and after notice and an administrative hearing, if requested, the Department may require the permittee to conform to new or additional conditions. The Department shall allow the permittee a reasonable time to conform to the new or additional conditions, and on application of the permittee, the Department may grant additional time. [Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.]
- 6. <u>Modifications</u>: The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction. No emissions unit or facility subject to this permit shall be constructed or modified without obtaining an air construction permit from the Department. Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or modification. [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]
- 7. <u>Title V Permit</u>: This permit authorizes construction of the permitted emissions units and initial operation to determine compliance with Department rules. A Title V operation permit is required for regular operation of the permitted emissions unit. The permittee shall apply for a Title V operation permit at least 90 days prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after commencing operation. To apply for a Title V operation permit, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require. The application shall be submitted to the Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority. [Rules 62-4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220, and Chapter 62-213, F.A.C.]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

This section of the permit addresses the following emissions unit.

Emissions Unit No. 088

Description: The emissions unit is General Electric Model No. LM 6000PC gas turbine (nominal 50 MW) with heat recovery steam generator and steam turbine electrical generator (nominal 8.5 MW). The gas turbine includes SPRINTTM spray inter-cooling technology and inlet air chilling. Natural gas (SCC No. 2-01-002-01) is the primary fuel with distillate oil (SCC No. 2-01-001-01) as a restricted alternate fuel limited to no more than 475 hours per year. The permitted capacity is 505 MMBtu per hour of heat input from either fuel based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 30° F, 100% load, and the higher heating value of the fuel.

Controls: Water injection decreases flame temperatures to control emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx). An oxidation catalyst minimizes emissions of carbon monoxide (CO) and volatile organic compounds (VOC).

Monitors: NOx emissions are monitored and recorded by a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS). The water-to-fuel ratio is also continuously monitored.

Stack Parameters: The exhaust stack is approximately 11.1 feet in diameter and 65 feet tall. Exhaust gas will exit the stack at approximately 285° F with a volumetric flow rate of approximately 350,935 acfm based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 48° F, 100% load, and the inlet chiller operation.

{Permitting Note: The existing combined cycle unit was originally constructed in accordance with Permit No. PSD-FL-123 with an LM 5000 gas turbine, which began commercial operation April of 1989. This permit authorizes the replacement of the gas generator component.}

FEDERAL STANDARDS

- 1. NSPS Provisions: The gas turbine is subject to the federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) in Subpart GG of 40 CFR 60. See Appendix E of this permit. [40 CFR 60, Subparts A and GG]
- 2. <u>NESHAP Provisions</u>: The gas turbine is subject to the federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) in Subpart YYYY of 40 CFR 63. See Appendix F of this permit. [40 CFR 63, Subparts A and YYYY]
- 3. Acid Rain Provisions: The new gas turbine is subject to the Phase II requirements of the Acid Rain Program pursuant to Title IV of the Clean Air Act. The permittee shall update the acid rain information as necessary in the application for a Title V permit revision to incorporate the conditions of this air construction permit. [Chapter 214, F.A.C.]

EQUIPMENT

- 4. <u>Gas Turbine</u>: In the existing combined cycle system, the permittee is authorized to replace the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with a new LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINTTM technology. The new gas turbine with generator set will be capable of firing either natural gas or distillate oil and will be designed to produce a nominal 50 MW (ISO) of shaft power. The existing LM 5000 gas turbine shall be permanently shutdown prior to startup of the new gas turbine system. For the combined cycle gas turbine and duct burner, this permit supersedes original Permit No. AC48-137740 (PSD-FL-123), which authorized initial construction. [Design; Applicant Request]
- 5. <u>Water Injection</u>: In accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, the permittee shall install, tune, operate, and maintain a water injection system to reduce NOx emissions from the gas turbine to achieve the permitted NOx standards. The water injection system shall be engaged as soon as feasible and shall continuously monitor the water-to-fuel ratio. [Design; 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 6. <u>Permitted Capacity</u>: The maximum heat input rate to the gas turbine is 505 MMBtu per hour based on the higher heating value of each fuel, a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F, and full load operation. [Applicant Request to modify permit 0950111-025-AC; Rule 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]
- 7. <u>Authorized Fuel</u>: The gas turbines shall fire only the following fuels.
 - a. Natural Gas: As the primary fuel, the gas turbine shall fire pipeline natural gas.
 - b. Distillate Oil: As a restricted alternate fuel, the gas turbine may fire No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) with a maximum fuel sulfur content of no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight. Distillate oil firing shall not exceed 475 hours during any consecutive 12 months. Initial compliance with the fuel sulfur limit shall be demonstrated by taking a sample, analyzing the sample for fuel sulfur, and reporting the results to the Compliance Authority before initial startup on oil. Sampling the fuel oil sulfur content shall be conducted in accordance with ASTM D4057-88, Standard Practice for Manual Sampling of Petroleum and Petroleum Products, and one of the following test methods for sulfur in petroleum products: ASTM D129-91, ASTM D1552-90, ASTM D2622-94, or ASTM D4294-90 or other equivalent methods after approval of the Department. For each subsequent fuel delivery, the permittee shall maintain a permanent file of the certified fuel sulfur analysis from the fuel vendor. At the request of a Compliance Authority, the permittee shall perform additional sampling and analysis for the fuel sulfur content.

[Applicant Request; Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

8. <u>Hours of Operation</u>: The hours of gas turbine operation are not limited (8760 hours per year). However, the gas turbine shall fire distillate oil for no more than 475 hours during any consecutive 12 months. [Applicant Request; Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.]

EMISSIONS STANDARDS

- 9. Carbon Monoxide (CO): When firing natural gas, CO emissions shall not exceed 12.6 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 10 and 19 based on an average of three 1-hour test runs. When firing distillate oil, CO emissions shall not exceed 2.4 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 10 and 19 based on an average of three 1-hour test runs. {Permitting Note: CO emissions are reduced by the oxidation catalyst. The above standards are equivalent to approximately 31.5 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for gas firing and 2.3 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for oil firing. The gas-firing standard is based on operation at only 25% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F. When operating at loads greater than 40%, controlled CO emissions are expected to be 7.8 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen or less.} [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 10. Nitrogen Oxides (NOx): When firing natural gas, NOx emissions shall not exceed 25 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and 43.0 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 7E and 19 (or EPA Method 20) based on a 4-hour rolling average. When firing distillate oil, NOx emissions shall not exceed 42 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and 74.0 pounds per hour as determined by EPA Method 7E and 19 (or EPA Method 20) based on a 4-hour rolling average. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average shall be consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG. [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 11. Opacity: When firing natural gas, the stack exhaust opacity shall not exceed 5% based on a 6-minute average as determined by EPA Method 9 observations. When firing distillate oil, the stack exhaust opacity shall not exceed 10% based on a 6-minute average as determined by EPA Method 9 observations. [Design; Applicant Request; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

{Permitting Note: NESHAP Subpart YYYY also establishes a formaldehyde standard; however, EPA has stayed the effectiveness of this rule until further notice. See Appendix F of this permit. Emissions of particulate matter and volatile organic compounds are minimized by the firing of natural gas and distillate oil, which are readily combusted at high gas turbine temperatures. In addition, these fuels contain little ash. Emissions of volatile organic compounds are further reduced by the oxidation catalyst. Emissions of sulfur dioxide and sulfuric acid mist are also minimized by the use of natural gas and distillate oil, which contain only limited amounts of sulfur. A summary of the potential emissions is provided in Appendix D of this permit.}

EXCESS EMISSIONS

{Permitting Note: The following conditions apply only to the SIP-based emissions standards specified in Section 3 of this permit. Rule 62-210.700, F.A.C. (Excess Emissions) cannot vary any federal provision of the NSPS, NESHAP, or Acid Rain programs.}

12. Definitions

- a. Excess Emissions are defined as emissions of pollutants in excess of those allowed by any applicable air pollution rule of the Department, or by a permit issued pursuant to any such rule or Chapter 62-4, F.A.C. The term applies only to conditions which occur during startup, shutdown, or malfunction. [Rule 62-210.200(106), F.A.C.]
- b. Startup is defined as the commencement of operation of any emissions unit which has shut down or ceased operation for a period of time sufficient to cause temperature, pressure, chemical or pollution control device imbalances, which result in excess emissions. [Rule 62-210.200(246), F.A.C.]
- c. Shutdown is the cessation of the operation of an emissions unit for any purpose. [Rule 62-210.200(231), F.A.C.]
- d. *Malfunction* is defined as any unavoidable mechanical and/or electrical failure of air pollution control equipment or process equipment or of a process resulting in operation in an abnormal or unusual manner. [Rule 62-210.200(160), F.A.C.]
- 13. Startup, Shutdown, Malfunction: Excess emissions resulting from startup, shutdown or malfunction of any emissions unit shall be permitted providing: (1) best operational practices to minimize emissions are adhered to, and (2) the duration of excess emissions shall be minimized but in no case exceed two hours in any 24 hour period unless specifically authorized by the Department for longer duration. In case of excess emissions resulting from malfunctions, each owner or operator shall notify the Department or the appropriate Local Program in accordance with Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C. A written report summarizing each malfunction resulting in excess emissions shall be submitted in a quarterly report. [Rule 62-210.700(1) and (6), F.A.C.]
- 14. <u>Prohibition</u>: Excess emissions which are caused entirely or in part by poor maintenance, poor operation, or any other equipment or process failure which may reasonably be prevented during startup, shutdown, or malfunction shall be prohibited. [Rule 62-210.700(4), F.A.C.]

PERFORMANCE TESTING

- 15. <u>Common Test Requirements</u>: Tests shall be conducted in accordance with the applicable testing, notification, and reporting requirements specified in Appendix C (Common Conditions) of this permit. [Rule 62-297.310, F.A.C.]
- 16. <u>Test Methods</u>: The following methods shall be used to determine emissions and demonstrate compliance with the standards specified in this permit. The methods are defined in Appendix A of 40 CFR 60 and are adopted by reference in Rule 62-204.800, F.A.C. Equivalent methods may only be used after written

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

Department approval. [Rules 62-204.800 and 62-297.100, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60, Appendix A]

Method	Description of Method and Comments			
1-4	1-4 Traverse Points, Velocity and Flow Rate, Gas Analysis, and Moisture Content {Note: Use as necessary to support other methods.}			
7E Determination of Nitrogen Oxide Emissions from Stationary Sources				
9 Visual Determination of the Opacity of Emissions from Stationary Sources				
10	Determination of Carbon Monoxide Emissions from Stationary Sources {Note: The method shall be based on a continuous sampling train.}			
19	Determination of Sulfur Dioxide Removal Efficiency and Particulate Matter, Sulfur Dioxide, and Nitrogen Oxides Emission Rates {Note: Optional F-factor method may be used to determine flow rate and gas analysis to calculate mass emissions in lieu of Methods 1-4. Use as necessary to support other methods.}			
20 Determination of Nitrogen Oxides, Sulfur Dioxide and Diluent Emissions from Stationary Gas Turb				

- 17. <u>Initial Compliance Tests</u>: Using the test methods identified above, the permittee shall have initial tests conducted to demonstrate compliance with the CO, NOx, and opacity standards specified in this permit for each authorized fuel. Initial tests shall be conducted within 60 days of achieving the maximum production capacity, but no later than 180 days after initial operation of the gas turbine. Initial compliance shall be demonstrated in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG testing requirements in Appendix E of this permit. Subsequent compliance shall be demonstrated by NOx CEMS data. *{Permitting Note: See Appendix E for initial NSPS testing requirements and Appendix F for initial NESHAP testing requirements.}* [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)1, F.A.C.]
- 18. <u>Annual Compliance Tests</u>: During each federal fiscal year (October 1st to September 30th), the gas turbine shall be tested to demonstrate compliance with the CO and opacity standards specified in this permit. {Permitting Note: No annual test for NOx is required because continuous compliance will be demonstrated by NOx CEMS data.} [Rule and 62-297.310(7)(a)4, F.A.C.]
- 19. <u>Test Reports</u>: In addition to the information specified in Appendix C of this permit, each test report shall indicate the load rate (MW), heat input rate (MMBtu/hour), ambient temperature (° F), compressor inlet temperature (° F), evaporating cooling or not, NOx emissions rate (ppmvd @ 15% oxygen and lb/hour), and the water-to-fuel ratio (lb water/lb fuel) for each test run. [Rule 62-297.310(8), F.A.C.]

CONTINUOUS MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

- 20. NOx CEMS: The permittee shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) in the exhaust stack to measure and record NOx emissions and flue gas oxygen content in a manner sufficient to demonstrate compliance with the standards specified in this permit. Emissions data shall be recorded by the CEMS at all times including periods such as startup, shutdown, and malfunction.
 - a. NOx Monitor Certification. The NOx monitor shall be installed, certified, operated and maintained in accordance with the applicable requirements of 40 CFR Part 75. For purposes of determining compliance with the emission standards specified by this permit, missing data shall not be substituted. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average shall be consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG.
 - b. Oxygen Monitor Certification. The oxygen monitor shall be installed, certified, operated and maintained in accordance with the applicable requirements of Performance Specification 3 in Appendix

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

B of 40 CFR 60. The monitor shall comply with the applicable quality assurance procedures specified in Appendix F of 40 CFR 60.

- c. Monitor Availability. Monitor availability shall not be less than 95% in any calendar quarter. Within 30 days following each calendar quarter, the permittee shall submit a report to the Compliance Authority summarizing the monitor availability. In the event 95% availability is not achieved, the permittee shall include a supplemental report identifying the problems in achieving 95% availability and a plan of corrective actions that will be taken to achieve 95% availability. The permittee shall implement the reported corrective actions within the next calendar quarter. Failure to achieve 95% availability, in and of itself, is not necessarily a violation of this permit. Failure to take corrective actions or continued failure to achieve the minimum monitor availability shall be violations of this permit.
- d. Data Collection. The CEMS shall be designed and operated to sample, analyze, and record data evenly spaced over a 1-hour block. The CEMS shall be designed and operated to correct emissions to a dry basis. Each 1-hour emission average shall be computed using at least one data point in each fifteen minute quadrant of the 1-hour block during which the unit combusted fuel. Notwithstanding this requirement, each 1-hour emission average shall be computed from at least two data points separated by a minimum of 15 minutes. All valid measurements or data points collected during a 1-hour block shall be used to calculate the 1-hour emission averages.
- e. *Emissions Averages*. The emissions data shall be reduced to 1-hour emissions averages. Compliance with the NOx standards shall be demonstrated based on a 4-hour rolling average of the 1-hour emissions averages consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG. The NOx CEMS shall express 1-hour emission averages and 4-hour rolling averages in terms of "ppmvd corrected to 15% oxygen". An hour during which any amount of oil is fired shall be attributed to "oil firing". If an operational period includes both gas firing and oil firing, the 4-hour emissions standard shall be prorated based on the emissions standard for each fuel and the number of hours of firing attributed to each fuel. Upon a request from the Compliance Authority, the NOx emission rate shall be corrected to ISO conditions to demonstrate compliance with the applicable standards of 40 CFR 60.332.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with Section 4, Appendix E and NSPS Subpart GG (40 CFR60.332) emissions limits, all valid CEMS NOx emissions data shall be used.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with the limits of Section 3, Condition 10, NOx average emissions shall be calculated to exclude periods of excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M), provided the permittee remains in compliance with the conditions of Section 3, Conditions 12, 13, and 14. For the purpose of determining and recording periods of excess emissions and calculating and recording NOx average emissions, the following procedures shall be used.

- 1. NOx emissions (including SU/SD/M) will be evaluated and recorded in 1-minute intervals.
- 2. NOx emissions data collected during periods of SU/SD/M (in 1-minute intervals, up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period) will be extracted prior to calculating hourly emission concentrations for determination of compliance with the 4-hour rolling average limit. Only data obtained during the described episode (startup, shutdown, or malfunction) may be excluded. These excluded periods will be identified and recorded as excess emissions (and

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINTTM (EU-088)

attributed to SU/SD/M) if the averages of the excluded periods are above the rolling average limits for the particular fuel. This information will be reported in the Quarterly Excess Emissions Reports, along with the time, duration, and average NOx ppmvd, corrected to 15% O2.

- 3. After the SU/SD/M periods have been extracted (in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period), hourly averages will be calculated for determination of compliance with the NOx emission limit. A valid hourly average must have at least two valid data points at least 15 minutes apart (of non-excluded data); if there is insufficient data, the balance of the clock hour will be ignored.
- 4. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average period begins after the extraction of SU/SD/M data and are determined without regard to calendar days.

{Permitting Note: The term "in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period" is intended to recognize the capabilities of the monitoring system to identify excess emissions for event-driven short term episodes. For example, electrical problems could cause the premature shutdown of water pumps on the NOx control system, which would be restarted by the operator. This might result in 10 minutes of excess emissions due to the malfunction, which could be extracted from the 4-hour compliance average up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period for SU/SD/M. Specifically, this term is not intended to allow the permittee to simply "cherry pick" periods of elevated emissions to extract from the compliance average.}

[Rules 62-4.070(3) and 62-297.520, F.A.C.; 40 CFR 75]

21. CMS for Water-to-Fuel Ratio: Using operational data from the continuous monitoring system (CMS) for the water-to-fuel ratio and the NOx CEMS, the permittee shall document the water-to-fuel ratio necessary to comply with the permitted NOx standards throughout the range of operational loads. Data collected from the required NOx CEMS shall be used to demonstrate compliance with the emissions standards of this permit, including excess emissions with respect to the NSPS Subpart GG standards. However, in cases where the NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio shall be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS. [Design; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG]

DUCT BURNER REQUIREMENTS

- 22. <u>Duct Burner</u>: The existing heat recovery steam generator (HRSG) includes a gas-fired duct burner system. After completion of the gas turbine replacement project, the duct burner shall be fired only in the "fresh air mode", which is defined as duct firing without the gas turbine in operation. The duct burner is subject to the following requirements.
 - a. The duct burner shall not operate when the combustion turbine is firing fuel. Exhaust gas from the duct burner will exit the gas turbine exhaust stack.
 - b. The duct burner shall fire only natural gas (SCC No. 1-01-006-01). The maximum heat input rate is 198 MMBtu per hour, which is equivalent to approximately 190,000 cubic feet per hour based on the higher heating value of natural gas.
 - c. The duct burner shall fire no more than 173,445 MMBtu per year of natural gas during any consecutive 12 months. {Permitting Note: This condition restricts the annual capacity factor of the duct burner to less than 10%. Therefore, the duct burner is not subject to the NOx requirements of NSPS Subpart Db.

A. LM 6000PC Gas Turbine with SPRINT™ (EU-088)

There are no applicable NSPS Subpart Db emissions standards for the gas-fired duct burner.}

- d. When firing the duct burner in fresh air mode, the stack opacity shall not exceed 5% based on EPA Method 9 observations.
- e. Due to the very restricted ability to operate this unit, no initial or periodic opacity tests are required. When the Department, after investigation, has good reason (such as complaints, increased visible emissions or questionable maintenance of control equipment) to believe that any applicable emission standard contained in a Department rule or in a permit issued pursuant to those rules is being violated, it shall require the owner or operator of the emissions unit to conduct compliance tests which identify the nature and quantity of pollutant emissions from the emissions unit and to provide a report on the results of said tests to the Department. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(b), F.A.C.]

{Permitting Note: With the upgraded gas turbine, duct firing no longer supports combined cycle operation. Duct firing will only be used as a backup for the gas turbine and hot water generator #3. In this mode, it is also necessary to circulate water and operate the steam turbine generator. Similarly, the duct burner could produce about 4 MW if there was a natural gas curtailment, a system power outage, or both. The electricity would be used for life and property preservation. The oxidation catalyst is operational during fresh air firing.} [Applicant Request; Rules 62-204.800 and 62-210.200(PTE), F.A.C.; 40 CFR 60.41b and 40 CFR 60.44b]

RECORDS

- 23. <u>Monitoring of Operations</u>: To demonstrate compliance with the gas turbine capacity requirements, the permittee shall monitor and record the operating rate of the gas turbine on a daily average basis, considering the number of hours of operation during each day (including the times of startup, shutdown and malfunction). Such monitoring shall be made using a monitoring component of the CEMS required above, or by monitoring daily rates of consumption and heat content of natural gas in accordance with the provisions of 40 CFR 75 Appendix D. [Rules 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 24. Operational Data: Within 10 days following each month, the permittee shall record the following information in a written log maintained on site: combustion turbine (MMcf of gas fired, hours of gas firing, gallons of oil fired, hours of oil firing, and hours of oil firing during last consecutive 12 months); and duct burner (hours of gas firing). [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 25. <u>Catalyst Reports</u>: Based on data collected during the calendar year, the permittee shall provide a report summarizing the present condition of the catalyst. The report shall be submitted along with the required Annual Operating Report. [Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.]
- 26. Quarterly NOx Report: Within 30 days following each calendar quarter, the permittee shall submit a report summarizing the following: NOx monitor performance (downtime, availability, and a corrective plan if necessary; cause of each downtime; unusual maintenance or repair; and a summary of any RATA tests performed) and excess emissions (each 4-hour NOx average in excess of the permitted NOx standard in Section 3 of this permit; the number of startups, shutdowns, and malfunctions resulting in excess emissions; and the written report summarizing each malfunction resulting in excess emissions). [Rules 62-4.070(3), 62-4.130, and 62-210.700(6), F.A.C]

SECTION 4. APPENDICES

Contents

Appendix A. Citation Formats

Appendix B. General Conditions

Appendix C. Common Conditions

Appendix D. Summary of Potential Emissions

Appendix E. NSPS Provisions

Appendix F. NESHAP Provisions

SECTION 4. APPENDIX A

Citation Formats

The following examples illustrate the format used in the permit to identify applicable permitting actions and regulations.

REFERENCES TO PREVIOUS PERMITTING ACTIONS

Old Permit Numbers

Example: Permit No. AC50-123456 or Air Permit No. AO50-123456

Where:

"AC" identifies the permit as an Air Construction Permit

"AO" identifies the permit as an Air Operation Permit

"123456" identifies the specific permit project number

New Permit Numbers

Example: Permit Nos. 099-2222-001-AC, 099-2222-001-AF, 099-2222-001-AO, or 099-2222-001-AV

Where:

"099" represents the specific county ID number in which the project is located

"2222" represents the specific facility ID number

"001" identifies the specific permit project

"AC" identifies the permit as an air construction permit

"AF" identifies the permit as a minor federally enforceable state operation permit

"AO" identifies the permit as a minor source air operation permit

"AV" identifies the permit as a Title V Major Source Air Operation Permit

PSD Permit Numbers

Example: Permit No. PSD-FL-317

Where:

"PSD" means issued pursuant to the Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality

"FL" means that the permit was issued by the State of Florida

"317" identifies the specific permit project

RULE CITATION FORMATS

Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.)

Example: [Rule 62-213.205, F.A.C.]

Means:

Title 62, Chapter 213, Rule 205 of the Florida Administrative Code

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)

Example: [40 CRF 60.7]

Means:

Title 40, Part 60, Section 7

SECTION 4. APPENDIX B

General Conditions

The permittee shall comply with the following general conditions from Rule 62-4.160, F.A.C.

- 1. The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations, and restrictions set forth in this permit are "Permit Conditions" and are binding and enforceable pursuant to Sections 403.164, 403.727, or 403.859 through 403.861, Florida Statutes. The permittee is placed on notice that the Department will review this permit periodically and may initiate enforcement action for any violation of these conditions.
- 2. This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and indicated in the approved drawings or exhibits. Any unauthorized deviation from the approved drawings, exhibits, specifications, or conditions of this permit may constitute grounds for revocation and enforcement action by the Department.
- 3. As provided in Subsections 403.087(6) and 403.722(5), Florida Statutes, the issuance of this permit does not convey and vested rights or any exclusive privileges. Neither does it authorize any injury to public or private property or any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations. This permit is not a waiver or approval of any other Department permit that may be required for other aspects of the total project which are not addressed in the permit.
- 4. This permit conveys no title to land or water, does not constitute State recognition or acknowledgment of title, and does not constitute authority for the use of submerged lands unless herein provided and the necessary title or leasehold interests have been obtained from the State. Only the Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund may express State opinion as to title.
- 5. This permit does not relieve the permittee from liability for harm or injury to human health or welfare, animal, or plant life, or property caused by the construction or operation of this permitted source, or from penalties therefore; nor does it allow the permittee to cause pollution in contravention of Florida Statutes and Department rules, unless specifically authorized by an order from the Department.
- 6. The permittee shall properly operate and maintain the facility and systems of treatment and control (and related appurtenances) that are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit, as required by Department rules. This provision includes the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems when necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit and when required by Department rules.
- 7. The permittee, by accepting this permit, specifically agrees to allow authorized Department personnel, upon presentation of credentials or other documents as may be required by law and at a reasonable time, access to the premises, where the permitted activity is located or conducted to:
 - a. Have access to and copy and records that must be kept under the conditions of the permit;
 - b. Inspect the facility, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit, and,
 - c. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location reasonably necessary to assure compliance with this permit or Department rules.

Reasonable time may depend on the nature of the concern being investigated.

- 8. If, for any reason, the permittee does not comply with or will be unable to comply with any condition or limitation specified in this permit, the permittee shall immediately provide the Department with the following information:
 - a. A description of and cause of non-compliance; and
 - b. The period of noncompliance, including dates and times; or, if not corrected, the anticipated time the non-compliance is expected to continue, and steps being taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the non-compliance.

The permittee shall be responsible for any and all damages which may result and may be subject to enforcement action by the Department for penalties or for revocation of this permit.

9. In accepting this permit, the permittee understands and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data and other information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are submitted to the Department may be used by the Department as evidence in any enforcement case involving the permitted source arising under the Florida Statutes or Department rules, except where such use is prescribed by Sections 403.73 and 403.111, Florida

SECTION 4. APPENDIX B

General Conditions

- Statutes. Such evidence shall only be used to the extent it is consistent with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and appropriate evidentiary rules.
- 10. The permittee agrees to comply with changes in Department rules and Florida Statutes after a reasonable time for compliance, provided, however, the permittee does not waive any other rights granted by Florida Statutes or Department rules.
- 11. This permit is transferable only upon Department approval in accordance with Florida Administrative Code Rules 62-4.120 and 62-730.300, F.A.C., as applicable. The permittee shall be liable for any non-compliance of the permitted activity until the transfer is approved by the Department.
- 12. This permit or a copy thereof shall be kept at the work site of the permitted activity.
- 13. This permit also constitutes:
 - a. Determination of Best Available Control Technology (not applicable to project);
 - b. Determination of Prevention of Significant Deterioration (not applicable to project); and
 - c. Compliance with New Source Performance Standards (subject to NSPS Subpart GG).
- 14. The permittee shall comply with the following:
 - a. Upon request, the permittee shall furnish all records and plans required under Department rules. During enforcement actions, the retention period for all records will be extended automatically unless otherwise stipulated by the Department.
 - b. The permittee shall hold at the facility or other location designated by this permit records of all monitoring information (including all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation) required by the permit, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application or this permit. These materials shall be retained at least three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report, or application unless otherwise specified by Department rule.
 - c. Records of monitoring information shall include:
 - 1) The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;
 - 2) The person responsible for performing the sampling or measurements;
 - 3) The dates analyses were performed:
 - 4) The person responsible for performing the analyses;
 - 5) The analytical techniques or methods used; and
 - 6) The results of such analyses.
- 15. When requested by the Department, the permittee shall within a reasonable time furnish any information required by law which is needed to determine compliance with the permit. If the permittee becomes aware that relevant facts were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application or in any report to the Department, such facts or information shall be corrected promptly.

SECTION 4. APPENDIX C

Common Conditions

{Permitting Note: Unless otherwise specified in the permit, the following conditions apply to all emissions units and activities at the facility.}

EMISSIONS AND CONTROLS

- 1. <u>Plant Operation Problems</u>: If temporarily unable to comply with any of the conditions of the permit due to breakdown of equipment or destruction by fire, wind or other cause, the permittee shall notify each Compliance Authority as soon as possible, but at least within one working day, excluding weekends and holidays. The notification shall include: pertinent information as to the cause of the problem; steps being taken to correct the problem and prevent future recurrence; and, where applicable, the owner's intent toward reconstruction of destroyed facilities. Such notification does not release the permittee from any liability for failure to comply with the conditions of this permit or the regulations. [Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C.]
- 2. <u>Circumvention</u>: The permittee shall not circumvent the air pollution control equipment or allow the emission of air pollutants without this equipment operating properly. [Rule 62-210.650, F.A.C.]
- 3. Excess Emissions Allowed: Excess emissions resulting from startup, shutdown or malfunction of any emissions unit shall be permitted providing (1) best operational practices to minimize emissions are adhered to and (2) the duration of excess emissions shall be minimized but in no case exceed two hours in any 24 hour period unless specifically authorized by the Department for longer duration. [Rule 62-210.700(1), F.A.C.]
- 4. Excess Emissions Prohibited: Excess emissions caused entirely or in part by poor maintenance, poor operation, or any other equipment or process failure that may reasonably be prevented during startup, shutdown or malfunction shall be prohibited. [Rule 62-210.700(4), F.A.C.]
- 5. Excess Emissions Notification: In case of excess emissions resulting from malfunctions, the permitee shall notify the Department or the appropriate Local Program in accordance with Rule 62-4.130, F.A.C. A full written report on the malfunctions shall be submitted in a quarterly report, if requested by the Department. [Rule 62-210.700(6), F.A.C.]
- 6. <u>VOC or OS Emissions</u>: No person shall store, pump, handle, process, load, unload or use in any process or installation, volatile organic compounds or organic solvents without applying known and existing vapor emission control devices or systems deemed necessary and ordered by the Department. [Rule 62-296.320(1), F.A.C.]
- 7. Objectionable Odor Prohibited: No person shall cause, suffer, allow or permit the discharge of air pollutants, which cause or contribute to an objectionable odor. An "objectionable odor" means any odor present in the outdoor atmosphere which by itself or in combination with other odors, is or may be harmful or injurious to human health or welfare, which unreasonably interferes with the comfortable use and enjoyment of life or property, or which creates a nuisance. [Rules 62-296.320(2) and62-210.200(203), F.A.C.]
- 8. <u>General Visible Emissions</u>: No person shall cause, let, permit, suffer or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere the emissions of air pollutants from any activity equal to or greater than 20 percent opacity. This regulation does not impose a specific testing requirement. [Rule 62-296.320(4)(b)1, F.A.C.]
- 9. <u>Unconfined Particulate Emissions</u>: During the construction period, unconfined particulate matter emissions shall be minimized by dust suppressing techniques such as covering and/or application of water or chemicals to the affected areas, as necessary. [Rule 62-296.320(4)(c), F.A.C.]

TESTING REQUIREMENTS

10. Required Number of Test Runs: For mass emission limitations, a compliance test shall consist of three complete and separate determinations of the total air pollutant emission rate through the test section of the stack or duct and three complete and separate determinations of any applicable process variables corresponding to the three distinct time periods during which the stack emission rate was measured; provided, however, that three complete and separate determinations shall not be required if the process variables are not subject to variation during a compliance test, or if three determinations are not necessary in order to calculate the unit's emission rate. The three required test runs shall be completed within one consecutive five-day period. In the event that a sample is lost or one of the three runs must be discontinued because of circumstances beyond the control of the owner or operator, and a valid third run cannot be obtained within the five-day period allowed for the test, the Secretary or his or her designee may accept the results of two complete runs as proof of compliance, provided that the arithmetic mean of the two complete runs is at least 20% below the allowable emission limiting standard. [Rule 62-297.310(1), F.A.C.]

SECTION 4. APPENDIX C

Common Conditions

- 11. Operating Rate During Testing: Testing of emissions shall be conducted with the emissions unit operating at permitted capacity. Permitted capacity is defined as 90 to 100 percent of the maximum operation rate allowed by the permit. If it is impractical to test at permitted capacity, an emissions unit may be tested at less than the maximum permitted capacity; in this case, subsequent emissions unit operation is limited to 110 percent of the test rate until a new test is conducted. Once the unit is so limited, operation at higher capacities is allowed for no more than 15 consecutive days for the purpose of additional compliance testing to regain the authority to operate at the permitted capacity. [Rule 62-297.310(2), F.A.C.]
- 12. <u>Calculation of Emission Rate</u>: For each emissions performance test, the indicated emission rate or concentration shall be the arithmetic average of the emission rate or concentration determined by each of the three separate test runs unless otherwise specified in a particular test method or applicable rule. [Rule 62-297.310(3), F.A.C.]
- 13. Test Procedures: Tests shall be conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements of Chapter 62-297, F.A.C.
 - a. Required Sampling Time. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable rule, the required sampling time for each test run shall be no less than one hour and no greater than four hours, and the sampling time at each sampling point shall be of equal intervals of at least two minutes. The minimum observation period for a visible emissions compliance test shall be thirty (30) minutes. The observation period shall include the period during which the highest opacity can reasonably be expected to occur.
 - b. *Minimum Sample Volume*. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable rule or test method, the minimum sample volume per run shall be 25 dry standard cubic feet.
 - c. Calibration of Sampling Equipment. Calibration of the sampling train equipment shall be conducted in accordance with the schedule shown in Table 297.310-1, F.A.C.

[Rule 62-297.310(4), F.A.C.]

14. Determination of Process Variables

- a. Required Equipment. The owner or operator of an emissions unit for which compliance tests are required shall install, operate, and maintain equipment or instruments necessary to determine process variables, such as process weight input or heat input, when such data are needed in conjunction with emissions data to determine the compliance of the emissions unit with applicable emission limiting standards.
- b. Accuracy of Equipment. Equipment or instruments used to directly or indirectly determine process variables, including devices such as belt scales, weight hoppers, flow meters, and tank scales, shall be calibrated and adjusted to indicate the true value of the parameter being measured with sufficient accuracy to allow the applicable process variable to be determined within 10% of its true value.

[Rule 62-297.310(5), F.A.C.]

- 15. <u>Sampling Facilities</u>: The permittee shall install permanent stack sampling ports and provide sampling facilities that meet the requirements of Rule 62-297.310(6), F.A.C.
- 16. <u>Test Notification</u>: The owner or operator shall notify the Department, at least 15 days prior to the date on which each formal compliance test is to begin, of the date, time, and place of each such test, and the test contact person who will be responsible for coordinating and having such test conducted for the owner or operator. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)9, F.A.C.]
- 17. Special Compliance Tests: When the Department, after investigation, has good reason (such as complaints, increased visible emissions or questionable maintenance of control equipment) to believe that any applicable emission standard contained in a Department rule or in a permit issued pursuant to those rules is being violated, it shall require the owner or operator of the emissions unit to conduct compliance tests which identify the nature and quantity of pollutant emissions from the emissions unit and to provide a report on the results of said tests to the Department. [Rule 62-297.310(7)(b), F.A.C.]
- 18. <u>Test Reports</u>: The owner or operator of an emissions unit for which a compliance test is required shall file a report with the Department on the results of each such test. The required test report shall be filed with the Department as soon as practical but no later than 45 days after the last sampling run of each test is completed. The test report shall provide sufficient detail on the emissions unit tested and the test procedures used to allow the Department to determine if the

SECTION 4. APPENDIX C

Common Conditions

test was properly conducted and the test results properly computed. As a minimum, the test report, other than for an EPA or DEP Method 9 test, shall provide the following information:

- 1. The type, location, and designation of the emissions unit tested.
- 2. The facility at which the emissions unit is located.
- 3. The owner or operator of the emissions unit.
- 4. The normal type and amount of fuels used and materials processed, and the types and amounts of fuels used and material processed during each test run.
- 5. The means, raw data and computations used to determine the amount of fuels used and materials processed, if necessary to determine compliance with an applicable emission limiting standard.
- 6. The type of air pollution control devices installed on the emissions unit, their general condition, their normal operating parameters (pressure drops, total operating current and GPM scrubber water), and their operating parameters during each test run.
- 7. A sketch of the duct within 8 stack diameters upstream and 2 stack diameters downstream of the sampling ports, including the distance to any upstream and downstream bends or other flow disturbances.
- 8. The date, starting time and duration of each sampling run.
- 9. The test procedures used, including any alternative procedures authorized pursuant to Rule 62-297.620, F.A.C. Where optional procedures are authorized in this chapter, indicate which option was used.
- 10. The number of points sampled and configuration and location of the sampling plane.
- 11. For each sampling point for each run, the dry gas meter reading, velocity head, pressure drop across the stack, temperatures, average meter temperatures and sample time per point.
- 12. The type, manufacturer and configuration of the sampling equipment used.
- 13. Data related to the required calibration of the test equipment.
- 14. Data on the identification, processing and weights of all filters used.
- 15. Data on the types and amounts of any chemical solutions used.
- 16. Data on the amount of pollutant collected from each sampling probe, the filters, and the impingers, are reported separately for the compliance test.
- 17. The names of individuals who furnished the process variable data, conducted the test, analyzed the samples and prepared the report.
- 18. All measured and calculated data required to be determined by each applicable test procedure for each run.
- 19. The detailed calculations for one run that relate the collected data to the calculated emission rate.
- 20. The applicable emission standard and the resulting maximum allowable emission rate for the emissions unit plus the test result in the same form and unit of measure.
- 21. A certification that, to the knowledge of the owner or his authorized agent, all data submitted are true and correct. When a compliance test is conducted for the Department or its agent, the person who conducts the test shall provide the certification with respect to the test procedures used. The owner or his authorized agent shall certify that all data required and provided to the person conducting the test are true and correct to his knowledge.

[Rule 62-297.310(8), F.A.C.]

RECORDS AND REPORTS

- 19. Records Retention: All measurements, records, and other data required by this permit shall be documented in a permanent, legible format and retained for at least five (5) years following the date on which such measurements, records, or data are recorded. Records shall be made available to the Department upon request. [Rules 62-4.160(14) and 62-213.440(1)(b)2, F.A.C.]
- 20. Annual Operating Report: The permittee shall submit an annual report that summarizes the actual operating rates and emissions from this facility. Annual operating reports shall be submitted to the Compliance Authority by March 1st of each year. [Rule 62-210.370(2), F.A.C.]

SECTION 4. APPENDIX D

Summary of Potential Emissions

The following table is provided for informational purposes only. The annual criteria pollutant emissions estimates are based on information in the original permit application.

Table D-1. Potential Emissions

Pollutant	Gas Firing		Oil	Firing	Annual Emissions
Fonutant	lb/hour	hours/year	lb/hour	hours/year	Tons Per Year
СО	12.6	8760	2.4	0	55
NOx	43.0	8285	74.0	475	196
PM/ PM10	3.0	8285	13.9	475	16
SO ₂	2.9	8285	46.3	475	23
VOC	1.2	8285	4.9	475	6

Notes:

- 1. The gas-firing hourly CO emissions rate is based on 25% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F. Gas-firing hourly emissions rates for NOx, PM/PM10, and SO2 are based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 48° F. The gas-firing hourly VOC emission rate is based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 60° F. The oil-firing hourly emissions rates for all pollutants are based on 100% load and a compressor inlet temperature of 30° F.
- 2. In general, annual emissions are based on 8760 hours of operation with 8285 hours of gas firing and 475 hours of oil firing. However, CO emissions when firing gas at low loads may result in higher emissions than oil firing. Therefore, annual CO emissions are based on 8760 hours of gas firing to provide the maximum potential emissions.

SECTION 4. APPENDIX E

NSPS Provisions

Chapter 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 60, Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources [Rule 62-204.800(8), F.A.C.]

- (a) Definitions. For the purposes of subsection 62-204.800(7), F.A.C., the definitions contained in the various provisions of 40 CFR Part 60 adopted herein shall apply, except that the term "Administrator," when used in any provision of 40 CFR Part 60 that is delegated to the Department by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, shall mean the Secretary or the Secretary's designee.
- (b) Standards Adopted. The following Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources contained in 40 CFR Part 60, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - (39) 40 CFR 60, Subpart GG, Stationary Gas Turbines; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 60.334(b)(2) and 40 CFR 60.335(f)(1).
- (c) The Standards of Performance for New Stationary Sources adopted by reference in this rule shall be controlling over other standards in the air pollution rules of the Department except that any emissions limiting standard contained in or determined pursuant to the air pollution rules of the Department which is more stringent than one contained in a Standard of Performance, or which regulates emissions of pollutants or emissions units not regulated by an applicable Standard of Performance, shall apply.
- (d) General Provisions Adopted. The general provisions of 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart A, revised as of July 1, 2001; amended August 27, 2001, at 66 FR 44978; are adopted and incorporated by reference except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for the purposes of 40 CFR 60.4, 40 CFR 60.8(b)(2) and (3), 40 CFR 60.11(e)(7) and (8), 40 CFR 60.13(g), (i) and (j)(2), and 40 CFR 60.16.
- (e) Appendices Adopted. The following appendices of 40 CFR Part 60, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 1. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-1, Test Methods 1 through 2F.
 - 2. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-2, Test Methods 2G through 3C.
 - 3. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-3, Test Methods 4 through 51.
 - 4. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-4, Test Methods 6 through 10B.
 - 5. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-5, Test Methods 11 through 15A.
 - 6. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-6, Test Methods 16 through 18.
 - 7. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-7, Test Methods 19 through 25E.
 - 8. 40 CFR 60, Appendix A-8, Test Methods 26 through 29.
 - 9. 40 CFR 60, Appendix B, Performance Specifications, amended January 12, 2004, at 69 FR 1785.
 - 10. 40 CFR 60, Appendix C, Determination of Emission Rate Change.
 - 11. 40 CFR 60, Appendix D, Required Emission Inventory Information.
 - 12. 40 CFR 60, Appendix F, Quality Assurance Procedures, amended January 12, 2004, at 69 FR 1785.

Subpart A - General Provisions for 40 CFR 60

[Source: Federal Register dated 7/1/98, Federal Register 5/8/98, 2/12/99, 10/17/00, 6/28/02]

The affected unit is subject to the applicable General Provisions of Subpart A. The complete text of Subpart A will be provided upon request.

- 40 CFR 60.1 Applicability.
- 40 CFR 60.5 Determination of Construction or Modification.
- 40 CFR 60.6 Review of Plans.
- 40 CFR 60.7 Notification and Record Keeping.
- 40 CFR 60.8 Performance Tests.
- 40 CFR 60.9 Availability of Information.
- 40 CFR 60.10 State Authority.
- 40 CFR 60.11 Compliance with Standards and Maintenance Requirements.
- 40 CFR 60.12 Circumvention.

SECTION 4. APPENDIX E

NSPS Provisions

40 CFR 60.13 Monitoring Requirements.

40 CFR 60.14 Modification.

40 CFR 60.15 Reconstruction.

40 CFR 60.18 General Control Device Requirements.

40 CFR 60.19 General Notification and Reporting Requirements.

SUBPART GG - STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY GAS TURBINES

[Source: 44 FR 52798, Sept. 10, 1979, as amended at 52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987; 65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000; 69 FR 41346, July 8, 2004]

40 CFR 60.330 Applicability and Designation of Affected Facility.

The 50 MW gas turbine (Emissions Unit 088) has a maximum heat input rate of 480 MMBtu per hour based on a compressor inlet air temperature of 30° F, 100% load, and the higher heating value of natural gas or distillate oil. It is an affected unit subject to the applicable requirements of Subpart GG. For purposes of this subpart, construction of the replacement gas turbine will begin after July 8, 2004.

40 CFR 60.331 Definitions.

The definitions identified in 40 CFR 60.331 apply to the NSPS Subpart GG requirements for the affected unit.

40 CFR 60.332 Standard for Nitrogen Oxides.

In accordance with paragraph (a)(1) of 40 CFR 60.332, the gas turbine is subject to the following NOx standard.

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any stationary gas turbine, any gases which contain nitrogen oxides in excess of:

$$STD = 0.0075 \quad (14.4) + F$$

where:

- STD = allowable ISO corrected (if required as given in § 60.335(b)(1)) NOx emission concentration (percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis),
- Y = manufacturer's rated heat rate at manufacturer's rated load (kilojoules per watt hour) or, actual measured heat rate based on lower heating value of fuel as measured at actual peak load for the facility. The value of Y shall not exceed 14.4 kilojoules per watt hour, and
- F = NOx emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen as defined in paragraph (a)(4) of this section.

In accordance with paragraph (a)(3) of 40 CFR 60.332, use of the NOx emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen "F" is optional. The gas turbine shall fire only natural gas as the primary fuel and No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) containing no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight as a restricted alternate fuel. An allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen is not permitted and the "F" value is "zero". No monitoring of the fuel-bound nitrogen content is required. The ISO heat rate for the LM 6000 gas turbine is 8743 Btu/kW-hr for natural gas and 8833 Btu/kW-hr for distillate oil. The NSPS Subpart GG limits are 117.1 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for natural gas and 115.9 ppmvd @ 15% oxygen for distillate oil.

In accordance with paragraph (f) of 40 CFR 60.332, stationary gas turbines using water or steam injection for control of are exempt from the NSPS NOx emission standard specified in paragraph (a)(1) when ice fog is deemed a traffic hazard by the owner or operator of the gas turbine.

40 CFR 60.333 Standard for Sulfur Dioxide.

In accordance with paragraph (b) of 40 CFR 60.333, no owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall burn in any stationary gas turbine any fuel which contains total sulfur in excess of 0.8 percent by weight (8000 ppmw). The gas turbine shall fire only natural gas as the primary fuel and No. 2 distillate oil (or superior) containing no more than 0.1% sulfur by weight as a restricted alternate fuel.

NSPS Provisions

40 CFR 60.334 Monitoring of Operations.

NOx Requirements

Water injection shall be used to control NOx emissions from the gas turbine. In accordance with paragraph (d) of 40 CFR 60.334, the permittee shall install a NOx/O2 Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) to determine compliance with the NSPS NOx standard in accordance with the following requirements from paragraph (b) of 40 CFR 60.334:

The permittee shall install, certify, maintain, operate, and quality-assure a continuous emission monitoring system (CEMS) consisting of NOx and O2 monitors. As an alternative, a CO2 monitor may be used to adjust the measured NOx concentrations to 15 percent O2 by either converting the CO2 hourly averages to equivalent O2 concentrations using Equation F-14a or F-14b in appendix F to Part 75 of this chapter and making the adjustments to 15 percent O2, or by using the CO2 readings directly to make the adjustments, as described in Method 20. The CEMS shall be installed, certified, maintained and operated as follows:

- (1) Each CEMS must be installed and certified according to PS 2 and 3 (for diluent) of 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix B, except the 7-day calibration drift is based on unit operating days, not calendar days. Appendix F, Procedure 1 is not required. The relative accuracy test audit (RATA) of the NOx and diluent monitors may be performed individually or on a combined basis, i.e., the relative accuracy tests of the CEMS may be performed either:
 - (i) On a ppm basis (for NOx) and a percent O2 basis for oxygen; or
 - (ii) On a ppm at 15 percent O2 basis; or
 - (iii) On a ppm basis (for NOx) and a percent CO2 basis (for a CO2 monitor that uses the procedures in Method 20 to correct the NOx data to 15 percent O2).
- (2) As specified in § 60.13(e)(2), during each full unit operating hour, each monitor must complete a minimum of one cycle of operation (sampling, analyzing, and data recording) for each 15-minute quadrant of the hour, to validate the hour. For partial unit operating hours, at least one valid data point must be obtained for each quadrant of the hour in which the unit operates. For unit operating hours in which required quality assurance and maintenance activities are performed on the CEMS, a minimum of two valid data points (one in each of two quadrants) are required to validate the hour.
- (3) For purposes of identifying excess emissions, CEMS data must be reduced to hourly averages as specified in § 60.13(h).
 - (i) For each unit operating hour in which a valid hourly average, as described in paragraph (b)(2) of this section, is obtained for both NOx and diluent, the data acquisition and handling system must calculate and record the hourly NOx emissions in the units of the applicable NOx emission standard under § 60.332(a), i.e., percent NOx by volume, dry basis, corrected to 15 percent O2 and International Organization for Standardization (ISO) standard conditions (if required as given in § 60.335(b)(1)). For any hour in which the hourly average O2 concentration exceeds 19.0 percent O2, a diluent cap value of 19.0 percent O2 may be used in the emission calculations.
 - (ii) A worst case ISO correction factor may be calculated and applied using historical ambient data. For the purpose of this calculation, substitute the maximum humidity of ambient air (Ho), minimum ambient temperature (Ta), and minimum combustor inlet absolute pressure (Po) into the ISO correction equation.
 - (iii) If the owner or operator has installed a NOx CEMS to meet the requirements of Part 75 of this chapter, and is continuing to meet the ongoing requirements of Part 75 of this chapter, the CEMS may be used to meet the requirements of this section, except that the missing data substitution methodology provided for at 40 CFR Part 75, Subpart D, is not required for purposes of identifying excess emissions. Instead, periods of missing CEMS data are to be reported as monitor downtime in the excess emissions and monitoring performance report required in § 60.7(c).

The permittee shall use the NOx CEMS required by this permit to determine excess emissions in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG requirements. However, in cases where the NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio will be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be

SECTION 4. APPENDIX E

NSPS Provisions

used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS.

The affected unit is not allowed any allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen. In accordance with paragraph (h)(2) of 40 CFR 60.334, monitoring of the nitrogen content is not required for any fuel.

SO2 Requirements: The current tariff sheet for the natural gas pipeline specifies a maximum total sulfur content of 20.0 grains/100 scf or less. Gas fired in the gas turbine meets the definition of "natural gas" specified in § 60.331(u). In accordance with paragraph (h)(3)(i) of 40 CFR 60.334, monitoring of the sulfur content of natural gas is not required.

In accordance with paragraph (h)(1) of 40 CFR 60.334, the owner or operator shall monitor the total sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the gas turbine. The sulfur content of the fuel must be determined using total sulfur methods described in § 60.335(b)(10). In accordance with paragraph (i)(1) of 40 CFR 60.334, the owner or operator shall determine the sulfur content of distillate oil fired in the gas turbine by using one of the total sulfur sampling options and the associated sampling frequency described in sections 2.2.3, 2.2.4.1, 2.2.4.2, and 2.2.4.3 of appendix D to part 75 of this chapter (i.e., flow proportional sampling, daily sampling, sampling from the unit's storage tank after each addition of fuel to the tank, or sampling each delivery prior to combining it with fuel oil already in the intended storage tank).

Excess Emissions

In accordance with paragraph (j) of 40 CFR 60.334, for each affected unit required to continuously monitor parameters or emissions, or to periodically determine the fuel sulfur content or fuel nitrogen content under this subpart, the owner or operator shall submit reports of excess emissions and monitor downtime, in accordance with § 60.7(c). Excess emissions shall be reported for all periods of unit operation, including startup, shutdown and malfunction. For the purpose of reports required under § 60.7(c), periods of excess emissions and monitor downtime that shall be reported are defined as follows:

- (1) Nitrogen Oxides. Data collected from the NOx CEMS required by this permit shall be used to determine excess emissions in accordance with the NSPS Subpart GG requirements. However, in cases where NOx data is invalid or unavailable, documentation of the water-to-fuel ratio will be used to demonstrate proper operation of the NOx control system. Water-to-fuel ratio data shall only be used as a backup to data collected by the NOx CEMS.
 - (ii) No emission allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
 - (iii) For turbines using NO_X and diluent CEMS:
 - (A) An hour of excess emissions shall be any unit operating hour in which the 4-hour rolling average NO_X concentration exceeds the applicable emission limit in § 60.332(a)(1) or (2). For the purposes of this subpart, a "4-hour rolling average NO_X concentration" is the arithmetic average of the average NO_X concentration measured by the CEMS for a given hour (corrected to 15 percent O2 and, if required under § 60.335(b)(1), to ISO standard conditions) and the three unit operating hour average NO_X concentrations immediately preceding that unit operating hour.
 - (B) A period of monitor downtime shall be any unit operating hour in which sufficient data are not obtained to validate the hour, for either NO_X concentration or diluent (or both).
 - (C) Each report shall include the ambient conditions (temperature, pressure, and humidity) at the time of the excess emission period and (if the owner or operator has claimed an emission allowance for fuel bound nitrogen) the nitrogen content of the fuel during the period of excess emissions. You do not have to report ambient conditions if you opt to use the worst case ISO correction factor as specified in § 60.334(b)(3)(ii), or if you are not using the ISO correction equation under the provisions of § 60.335(b)(1).
- (2) Sulfur Dioxide. If the owner or operator is required to monitor the sulfur content of the fuel under paragraph (h) of this section:
 - (i) For oil samples obtained using daily sampling, flow proportional sampling, or sampling from the unit's storage tank, an excess emission occurs each unit operating hour included in the period beginning on the date and hour of any sample for which the sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the gas turbine exceeds 0.8 weight percent and ending on the date and hour that a subsequent sample is taken that demonstrates compliance with the sulfur limit.

NSPS Provisions

- (ii) If the option to sample each delivery of fuel oil has been selected, the owner or operator shall immediately switch to one of the other oil sampling options (i.e., daily sampling, flow proportional sampling, or sampling from the unit's storage tank) if the sulfur content of a delivery exceeds 0.8 weight percent. The owner or operator shall continue to use one of the other sampling options until all of the oil from the delivery has been combusted, and shall evaluate excess emissions according to paragraph (j)(2)(i) of this section. When all of the fuel from the delivery has been burned, the owner or operator may resume using the as-delivered sampling option.
- (iii) A period of monitor downtime begins when a required sample is not taken by its due date. A period of monitor downtime also begins on the date and hour of a required sample, if invalid results are obtained. The period of monitor downtime shall include only unit operating hours, and ends on the date and hour of the next valid sample.
- (3) Ice fog. Each period during which an exemption provided in § 60.332(f) is in effect shall be reported in writing to the Administrator quarterly. For each period the ambient conditions existing during the period, the date and time the air pollution control system was deactivated, and the date and time the air pollution control system was reactivated shall be reported. All quarterly reports shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter.
- (5) All reports required under § 60.7(c) shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each calendar quarter.

40 CFR 60.335 Test Methods and Procedures.

Initial compliance with the applicable NSPS standards for NOx and SO2 shall be determined in accordance with the following test methods and procedures.

- (a) The owner or operator shall conduct the performance tests required in § 60.8, using either:
 - (1) EPA Method 20,
 - (2) ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see § 60.17), or
 - (3) EPA Method 7E and either EPA Method 3 or 3A in appendix A to this part, to determine NO_X and diluent concentration.
 - (4) Sampling traverse points are to be selected following Method 20 or Method 1, (non-particulate procedures) and sampled for equal time intervals. The sampling shall be performed with a traversing single-hole probe or, if feasible, with a stationary multi-hole probe that samples each of the points sequentially. Alternatively, a multi-hole probe designed and documented to sample equal volumes from each hole may be used to sample simultaneously at the required points.
 - (5) Notwithstanding paragraph (a)(4) of this section, the owner or operator may test at few points than are specified in Method 1 or Method 20 if the following conditions are met:
 - (i) You may perform a stratification test for NO_X and diluent pursuant to
 - (A) [Reserved]
 - (B) The procedures specified in section 6.5.6.1(a) through (e) appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.
 - (ii) Once the stratification sampling is completed, the owner or operator may use the following alternative sample point selection criteria for the performance test:
 - (A) If each of the individual traverse point NO_X concentrations, normalized to 15 percent O2, is within 10 percent of the mean normalized concentration for all traverse points, then you may use 3 points (located either 16.7, 50.0, and 83.3 percent of the way across the stack or duct, or, for circular stacks or ducts greater than 2.4 meters (7.8 feet) in diameter, at 0.4, 1.2, and 2.0 meters from the wall). The 3 points shall be located along the measurement line that exhibited the highest average normalized NO_X concentration during the stratification test; or

NSPS Provisions

- (B) If each of the individual traverse point NO_X concentrations, normalized to 15 percent O2, is within 5 percent of the mean normalized concentration for all traverse points, then you may sample at a single point, located at least 1 meter from the stack wall or at the stack centroid.
- (6) Other acceptable alternative reference methods and procedures are given in paragraph (c) of this section.
- (b) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the applicable nitrogen oxides emission limitation in § 60.332 and shall meet the performance test requirements of § 60.8 as follows:
 - (1) For each run of the performance test, the mean nitrogen oxides emission concentration (NO_{Xo}) corrected to 15 percent O2 shall be corrected to ISO standard conditions using the following equation. Notwithstanding this requirement, use of the ISO correction equation is optional for: Lean premix stationary combustion turbines; units used in association with heat recovery steam generators (HRSG) equipped with duct burners; and units equipped with add-on emission control devices:

$$NO_X = (NO_{Xo}) (P_r/P_o)^{0.5} e^{19 (H_o - 0.00633)} (288 \text{°K} / Ta)^{1.53}$$

Where:

 NO_X = emission concentration of NO_X at 15 percent O2 and ISO standard ambient conditions, ppm by volume, dry basis,

 NO_{X0} = mean observed NO_X concentration, ppm by volume, dry basis, at 15 percent O2,

P_r = reference combustor inlet absolute pressure at 101.3 kilopascals ambient pressure, mm Hg,

P_o = observed combustor inlet absolute pressure at test, mm Hg,

 $H_0 =$ observed humidity of ambient air, g H2O/g air,

e = transcendental constant, 2.718, and

 $T_a =$ ambient temperature, ° K.

- (2) The 3-run performance test required by § 60.8 must be performed within 5 percent at 30, 50, 75, and 90 to 100 percent of peak load or at four evenly-spaced load points in the normal operating range of the gas turbine, including the minimum point in the operating range and 90-to-100 percent of peak load, or at the highest achievable load point if 90-to-100 percent of peak load cannot be physically achieved in practice. If the turbine combusts both oil and gas as primary or backup fuels, separate performance testing is required for each fuel. Notwithstanding these requirements, performance testing is not required for any emergency fuel (as defined in § 60.331).
- (3) The duct burner shall not operate when the gas turbine is in operation.
- (4) If water or steam injection is used to control NOx with no additional post-combustion NOx control and the owner or operator chooses to monitor the steam or water to fuel ratio in accordance with § 60.334(a), then that monitoring system must be operated concurrently with each EPA Method 20, ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see § 60.17), or EPA Method 7E run and shall be used to determine the fuel consumption and the steam or water to fuel ratio necessary to comply with the applicable § 60.332 NOx emission limit.
- (5) No allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
- (6) If the owner or operator elects to install a CEMS, the performance evaluation of the CEMS may either be conducted separately (as described in paragraph (b)(7) of this section) or as part of the initial performance test of the affected unit.
- (7) If the owner or operator elects to install and certify a NO_X CEMS under § 60.334(e), then the initial performance test required under § 60.8 may be done in the following alternative manner:
 - (i) Perform a minimum of 9 reference method runs, with a minimum time per run of 21 minutes, at a single load level, between 90 and 100 percent of peak (or the highest physically achievable) load.

NSPS Provisions

- (ii) Use the test data both to demonstrate compliance with the applicable NO_X emission limit under § 60.332 and to provide the required reference method data for the RATA of the CEMS described under § 60.334(b).
- (iii) The requirement to test at three additional load levels is waived.
- (8) Not applicable.
- (9) No allowance for fuel bound nitrogen is permitted.
- (10) If the owner or operator is required under § 60.334(i)(1) or (3) to periodically determine the sulfur content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, a minimum of three fuel samples shall be collected during the performance test. Analyze the samples for the total sulfur content of the fuel using:
 - (i) For liquid fuels, ASTM D129-00, D2622-98, D4294-02, D1266-98, D5453-00 or D1552-01 (all of which are incorporated by reference, see § 60.17); or
 - (ii) Monitoring for the sulfur content of natural gas as defined in § 60.331(u) is not required.
- (11) The fuel analyses required under paragraphs (b)(9) and (b)(10) of this section may be performed by the owner or operator, a service contractor retained by the owner or operator, the fuel vendor, or any other qualified agency.
- (c) The owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and procedures specified in this section:
 - (1) Instead of using the equation in paragraph (b)(1) of this section, manufacturers may develop ambient condition correction factors to adjust the nitrogen oxides emission level measured by the performance test as provided in § 60.8 to ISO standard day conditions.

NESHAP Provisions

On August 18, 2004, EPA stayed the effectiveness of NESHAP Subpart YYYY for lean premix and diffusion flame gas turbine. The relevant provision of the rule that stays the effectiveness for such units is as follows.

40 CFR 63.6095(d) Stay of Standards for Gas-Fired Subcategories.

If you start up a new or reconstructed stationary combustion turbine that is a lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbine or diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined by this subpart, you must comply with the Initial Notification requirements set forth in Sec. 63.6145, but need not comply with any other requirement of this subpart until EPA takes final action to require compliance and publishes a document in the Federal Register.

Chapter 40, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 63, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Source Categories. [Rule 62-204.800(11), F.A.C.]

- (a) Definitions. For the purposes of subsection 62-204.800(10), F.A.C., the definitions contained in the various provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 adopted herein shall apply, except that the term, "Administrator," when used in any provisions of 40 CFR Part 63 that is delegated to the Department by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, shall mean the Secretary or the Secretary's designee.
- (b) Standards Adopted. The following National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants contained in 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 78. 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY, Stationary Combustion Turbines; promulgated March 5, 2004, at 69 FR 10511; amended August 18, 2004, at 69 FR 51184; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 63.6170(c)(1) through (5).
- (c) The National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants adopted by reference in this rule shall be controlling over other standards in the air pollution rules of the Department, except that any emissions limiting standard contained in or determined pursuant to the air pollution rules of the Department which is more stringent than one contained in a National Emission Standard, or which regulates pollutants or emissions units not regulated by an applicable National Emission Standard, shall apply.
- (d) General Subparts Adopted. The following general subparts of 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference.
 - 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart A, General Provisions; amended February 27, 2002, at 67 FR 9156; amended April 5, 2002, at 67 FR 16581; amended February 18, 2003, at 68 FR 7706; amended April 21, 2003, at 68 FR 19375; amended May 20, 2003, at 68 FR 27645; amended May 23, 2003, at 68 FR 28605; amended May 27, 2003, at 68 FR 28774; amended May 28, 2003, at 68 FR 31745; amended May 29, 2003, at 68 FR 32171; amended May 30, 2003, at 68 FR 32585; amended November 13, 2003, at 68 FR 64431; amended December 19, 2003, at 68 FR 70959; amended January 2, 2004, at 69 FR 129; amended February 3, 2004 at 69 FR 5038; amended April 19, 2004, at 69 FR 20967; amended April 22, 2004, at 69 FR 21905; amended April 26, 2004, at 69 FR 22601; amended July 30, 2004, at 69 FR 45943; except that the Secretary is not the Administrator for purposes of 40 CFR 63.5(e), 40 CFR 63.5(f), 40 CFR 63.6(g), 40 CFR 63.6(h)(9), 40 CFR 63.6(j), 40 CFR 63.13, and 40 CFR 63.14.
 - 2. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart B, Requirements for Control Technology Determinations for Major Sources in Accordance with Clean Air Act Sections, Sections 112(g) and 112(j); amended April 5, 2002, at 67 FR 16581; is adopted and incorporated by reference, subject to the following provisions.
 - a. The "effective date of Section 112(g)(2)(B)" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be July 1, 1997.
 - b. The "Notice of MACT Approval" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be the air construction permit.
 - c. The "permitting authority" as defined in 40 CFR 63.41 shall be the Department.
 - d. In lieu of the administrative procedures for review of the Notice of MACT Approval as set forth in 40 CFR 63.43(f)(1) through (5), the Department will follow the permit processing procedures of Rule 62-4.055, F.A.C.

NESHAP Provisions

- e. In lieu of the opportunity for public comment on the Notice of MACT Approval as set forth in 40 CFR 63.43(h), the Department will provide opportunity for public comment on the Notice of MACT Approval pursuant to Rule 62-210.350, F.A.C.
- f. The Notice of MACT Approval shall become effective upon issuance of the air construction permit by the Department.
- 3. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart C, List of Hazardous Air Pollutants, Petitions Process, Lesser Quantity Designations, Source Category List, revised as of July 1, 2004; amended November 29, 2004, at 69 FR 69320.
- 4. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart D, Compliance Extensions for Early Reductions of Hazardous Air Pollutants, except any notice required to be published by the Department shall be prepared by the Department and published by the applicant with proof of publication submitted to the Department.
- 5. 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart E, Approval of State Programs and Delegation of Federal Authorities; Section 63.90, Program Overview, only.
- (e) Appendices Adopted. The following appendices of 40 CFR Part 63, revised as of July 1, 2001, or later as specifically indicated, are adopted and incorporated by reference:
 - 1. Appendix A, Test Methods.
 - 2. Appendix B, Sources Defined for Early Reduction Provisions.
 - 3. Appendix C, Determination of the Fraction Biodegraded (Fbio) in a Biological Treatment Unit.
 - 4. Appendix D, Alternative Validation Procedure for EPA Waste and Wastewater Methods.
 - 5. Appendix E, Monitoring Procedure for Non-thoroughly Mixed Open Biological Treatment Systems at Kraft Pulp Mills Under Unsafe Sampling Conditions.

40 CFR 63 Subpart A - General Provisions

[Source: Federal Register dated 3/5/04]

The permittee shall comply with the applicable general provisions identified in Table 7 of 40 CFR 63 Subpart YYYY.

§ 63.1 Applicability.

Additional terms defined in Sec. 63.6175.

§ 63.2 Definitions.

Additional terms defined in Sec. 63.6175.

- § 63.3 Units and abbreviations.
- § 63.4 Prohibited activities and circumvention.
- § 63.5 Preconstruction review and notification requirements.
- § 63.6 Compliance with standards and maintenance requirements.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or visible emission standards.

§ 63.7 Performance testing requirements.

Subpart YYYY contains performance test dates at Sec. 63.6110.

Subpart YYYY contains performance test dates at Sec.63.6110.

Subpart YYYY specifies test methods at Sec. 63.6120.

§ 63.8 Monitoring requirements.

Subpart YYYY contains specific requirements for monitoring at Sec. 63.6125.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

Averaging periods for demonstrating compliance are specified at Secs. 63.6135 and 63.6140.

§ 63.9 Notification requirements.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or VE standards.

NESHAP Provisions

Notifications for sources not conducting performance tests are due 30 days after completion of performance evaluations.

§ 63.10 Recordkeeping and reporting requirements.

Applies for CO standard if using RATA alternative.

Subpart YYYY does not contain opacity or VE standards.

Subpart YYYY does not require reporting of startup, shutdown, or malfunctions.

Subpart YYYY does not require COMS.

- § 63.11 Control device requirements.
- § 63.12 State authority and delegations.
- § 63.13 Addresses of State air pollution control agencies and EPA Regional Offices.
- § 63.14 Incorporations by reference.
- § 63.15 Availability of information and confidentiality.

Subpart YYYY - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines

[Source: Federal Register dated 3/5/04]

- 40 CFR 63.6080 What is the purpose of subpart YYYY?
- 40 CFR 63.6085 Am I subject to this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6090 What parts of my plant does this subpart cover?
- 40 CFR 63.6092 Are duct burners and waste heat recovery units covered by subpart YYYY?
- 40 CFR 63.6095 When do I have to comply with this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6100 What emission and operating limitations must I meet?
- 40 CFR 63.6105 What are my general requirements for complying with this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6110 By what date must I conduct the initial performance tests or other initial compliance demonstrations?
- 40 CFR 63.6115 When must I conduct subsequent performance tests?
- 40 CFR 63.6120 What performance tests and other procedures must I use?
- 40 CFR 63.6125 What are my monitor installation, operation, and maintenance requirements?
- 40 CFR 63.6130 How do I demonstrate initial compliance with the emission and operating limitations?
- 40 CFR 63.6135 How do I monitor and collect data to demonstrate continuous compliance?
- 40 CFR 63.6140 How do I demonstrate continuous compliance with the emission and operating limitations?
- 40 CFR 63.6145 What notifications must I submit and when?
- 40 CFR 63.6150 What reports must I submit and when?
- 40 CFR 63.6155 What records must I keep?
- 40 CFR 63.6160 In what form and how long must I keep my records?
- 40 CFR 63.6165 What parts of the General Provisions apply to me?
- 40 CFR 63.6170 Who implements and enforces this subpart?
- 40 CFR 63.6175 What definitions apply to this subpart?

As previously specified, EPA stayed the effectiveness of NESHAP Subpart YYYY for lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbines and diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbines. For purposes of this rule, the affected unit is considered a diffusion flame gas-fired combustion turbine. Until EPA takes final action to require compliance and publishes a document in the Federal Register, only the Initial Notification requirements as set forth in Sec. 63.6145 apply. The unit is permitted to fire up to 475 hours of distillate oil per year as a restricted alternate fuel. An oxidation catalyst controls organic compounds. The following tables reflect this applicability.

NESHAP Provisions

Tables to Subpart YYYY of Part 63.

As stated in § 63.6100, you must comply with the following emission limitations:

TABLE 1 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. EMISSION LIMITATIONS

	each new or reconstructed stationary combustion turbine cribed in § 63.6100 which is	You must meet the following emission limitations
3.	a diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined in this subpart, or	Limit the concentration of formaldehyde to 91 ppbvd or less at 15 percent O2.

As stated in § 63.6100 and § 63.6140, you must comply with the following operating limitations:

TABLE 2 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. OPERATING LIMITATIONS

For	 You must
1.	maintain the 4-hour rolling average of the catalyst inlet temperature within the range suggested by the catalyst manufacturer.

As stated in § 63.6120, you must comply with the following requirements for performance tests and initial compliance demonstrations:

TABLE 3 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. REQUIREMENTS FOR PERFORMANCE TESTS AND INITIAL COMPLIANCE DEMONSTRATIONS

You	must	Using	According to the following requirements
a.	demonstrate formaldehyde emissions meet the emission limitations specified in Table 1 by a performance test initially and on an annual basis AND	Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, appendix A; ASTM D6348-03 provided that %R as determined in Annex A5 of ASTM D6348-03 is equal or greater than 70% and less than or equal to 130%; or other methods approved by the Administrator.	Formaldehyde concentration must be corrected to 15 percent O2, dry basis. Results of this test consist of the average of the three 1 hour runs. Test must be conducted within 10 percent of 100 percent load.
ъ.	select the sampling port location and the number of traverse points AND	Method 1 or 1A of 40 CFR part 60, Appendix A § 63.7(d)(1)(i).	If using an air pollution control device, the sampling site must be located at the outlet of the air pollution control device.
c.	determine the O2 concentration at the sampling port location AND	Method 3A or 3B of 40 CFR part 60, Appendix A.	Measurements to determine O2 concentration must be made at the same time as the performance test.
d.	determine the moisture content at the sampling port location for the purposes of correcting the formaldehyde concentration to a dry basis.	Method 4 of 40 CFR part 60, appendix A or Test Method 320 of 40 CFR part 63, Appendix A, or ASTM D6348-03.	Measurements to determine moisture content must be made at the same time as the performance test.

As stated in §§ 63.6110 and 63.6130, you must comply with the following requirements to demonstrate initial compliance with emission limitations:

TABLE 4 TO SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63. INITIAL COMPLIANCE WITH EMISSION LIMITATIONS

For the	You have demonstrated initial compliance if
Emission limitation for formaldehyde.	the average formaldehyde concentration meets the emission limitations specified in Table 1.

NESHAP Provisions

As stated in §§ 63.6135 and 63.6140, you must comply with the following requirements to demonstrate continuing compliance with operating limitations:

TABLE 5 OF SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63.—CONTINUOUS COMPLIANCE WITH OPERATING LIMITATIONS

For each stationary combustion turbine complying with the emission limitation for formaldehyde	You must demonstrate continuous compliance by					
1. with an oxidation catalyst	continuously monitoring the inlet temperature to the catalyst and maintaining the 4-hour rolling average of the inlet temperature within the range suggested by the catalyst manufacturer.					

As stated in § 63.6150, you must comply with the following requirements for reports:

TABLE 6 OF SUBPART YYYY OF PART 63.—REQUIREMENTS FOR REPORTS

If yo	u own or operate a	You must	According to the following requirements
1.	stationary combustion turbine which must comply with the formaldehyde emission limitation.	report your compliance status	semiannually, according to the requirements of § 63.6150.
3.	a lean premix gas-fired stationary combustion turbine or a diffusion flame gas-fired stationary combustion turbine as defined by this subpart, and you use any quantity of distillate oil to fire any new or existing stationary combustion turbine which is located at the same major source.	(1) the number of hours distillate oil was fired by each new or existing stationary combustion turbine during the reporting period, (2) the operating limits provided in your federally enforceable permit, and any deviations from these limits, and (3) any problems or errors suspected with the meters.	annually, according to the requirements in § 63.6150.

	U.S. Postal S CERTIFIED (Domestic Mail O	MAIL					
1014				STEELS IN SECTION			
	5.3 - 3		1 1 1 7	is' si			
3770	Postage Certified Fee	\$		Destroyle			
E100	Return Receipt Fee (Endorsement Required) Restricted Delivery Fee (Endorsement Required)			Postmark Here			
7000 1670	Mr. Lee Schmu Walt Disney W WDW Resort C Improvemen 1375 Buena V Lake Buena V	Yorld Comp Complex-R at District ista Drive ista, Florida	any eedy Creek	02			
	PS Form 3800, May 2000	1 1		"See Reverse for Instruction			

.



Home | Help | Sign In

Track & Confirm FAQs

Track & Confirm

Search Results

Label/Receipt Number: 7000 1670 0013 3110 1014 Status: Delivered

Your item was delivered at 11:19 am on July 19, 2006 in ORLANDO, FL 32821.

Additional Details >

Return to USPS.com Home >

Track & Confirm

Enter Label/Receipt Number.

Go >

Notification Options

Track & Confirm by email

Get current event information or updates for your item sent to you or others by email. (Go>)



POSTAL INSPECTORS
Preserving the Trust

site map contact us government services jobs National & Premier Accounts Copyright © 1999-2004 USPS. All Rights Reserved. Terms of Use Privacy Policy



Cascio, Tom

From:

Shine, Caroline

Sent:

Tuesday, June 20, 2006 4:54 PM

To:

Cascio, Tom

Subject: RE: WALT DISNEY WORLD

No, there are no outstanding issues at this time.

----Original Message----From: Cascio, Tom

Sent: Tue 6/20/2006 8:34 AM

To: Shine, Caroline

Cc:

Subject: WALT DISNEY WORLD

Hi Caroline. Are there any outstanding compliance and/or enforcement issues with the Walt Disney World Company? Thanks for your help.

Tom Cascio, D.B.A., CPM **Engineering Specialist IV** Permitting South Section Florida Department of Environmental Protection 850-921-9526

17 May 2006



Mr. Al Linero, P.E. Florida Department of Environmental Protection Division of Air Resource Management 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 23 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 **BUREAU OF AIR REGULATION**

Ç.

Re: Reedy Creek Improvement District

LM6000 Repowering Project

FDEP Air Permit No. 0950111-025-AC

Request for Permit Revision - Heat Input Increase and Emissions Averaging

Dear Mr. Linero:

The Department issued Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC dated June 13, 2005 to the Walt Disney World Company, Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) authorizing the installation and initial operation of a replacement LM6000 PC gas turbine. The purpose of this letter is to request a revision to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow for an increase in permitted capacity and to clarify the calculation and recording of the NOx four-hour rolling average.

Heat Input

Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC limits the LM6000 ga's turbine maximum heat input to 480 million British thermal units per hour on a higher heating value basis (mmBtu/hr, HHV) at a compressor inlet temperature of 30°F and full load operation. Initial operation of the LM6000 gas turbine indicates that this maximum heat input, which was based on gas turbine vendor projections, under estimates the actual performance of the LM6000 unit by approximately five percent.

Accordingly, RCID requests that Condition No. 6 be revised to show a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation. Based on preliminary emissions testing, there is sufficient margin in the emission estimates for nitrogen oxides (NO_x) and carbon monoxide (CO) such that no changes to the current permit limits for these two air contaminants are necessary.

Increasing the maximum hourly heat input rate will result in a corresponding increase in maximum hourly fuel consumption. Revised Table 3-1 (PSD Netting Analysis), Table B2A (hourly PM/PM₁₀, SO₂, H₂SO₄, and Pb emission rates), Table B5 (annual emission rates), and Table B7 (fuel flow rates) are attached for your review. These revised tables reflect an increase in maximum heat input from 480 to 505 mmBtu/hr for Operating Scenarios 2 and 6. As shown on revised Table 3-1, the net changes in emissions remain below the PSD significant emission rate thresholds for major modifications.

Mr. Al Linero 17 May 2006 Page –2–

NOx Four Hour Rolling Average Calculations and Recording

Section 3, Condition No. 20 and No. 20(e) of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC defines the calculation and recording of emissions averages. These permit conditions are being met in all respects. However, operation of the system has revealed that the data recording software of the Continuous Emissions Monitoring System (CEMS) is not currently extracting the excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M) from the calculation of the NOx four hour rolling average. RCID proposes to modify the software to perform this extraction so that four hour rolling averages are posted in two ways: To show all emissions in the four hour rolling average in compliance with NSPS limits as shown in Permit Section 4, Appendix E, and; Show four hour rolling averages with excess emissions due to SU/SD/M extracted in compliance with the four hour rolling average limits listed in Permit Condition 10. These modifications to the software will ensure accurate and complete recordkeeping that will assist with operation in compliance with all permit conditions. Therefore we respectfully request adoption of the protocol discussed in detail in the attachment "Proposed Paragraph 20(e) - Emissions Averages".

In summary, RCID requests that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be revised to show a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with the proposed Condition 20(e). No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC are requested.

Please contact me at (407) 824-4943 if you have any questions regarding this permit revision request.

Sincerely,

Edward Godwin, P.E.

Chief Mechanical Engineer Reedy Creek Energy Services

Attachments

cc: Mr. Leonard Kozlov

Program Administrator Air Resources Management

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232

Orlando, Florida 32803-3767

Table 3-1. LM6000 Repowering Project - PSD Netting Analysis (Revised April 2006)

The second second		1	M5000 Historic	cai Emissions			Diesel		Net	PSD Threshold (tpy)	% of PSD Threshold (%)	PSD Review (Y/N)
	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	02,03 Avg	Generators	LM5000 ²⁵	Change (tpy)			
Natural Gas Usage (10 ⁶ ft ³)	1,973.34	1,862.46	1,565.26	2,340.08	1,450.63	1,895.36	N/A	4,256.6	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Heat Content (Btu/ft ³)	1,041.55	1,031.87	1,044.20	1,036.99	1,042.00	1,039.50	N/A	1,040.0	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Sulfur Content (gr S/100 ft ³)	0.1552	0.1552	0.0957	0.0983	0.0924	0.0954	N/A	2.00	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Natural Gas Density (lb/ft ³) ^(a) Wt % S	0.0451 0.00049	0.0451 0.00049	0.0451	0.0451 0.00031	0.0451 0.00029	0.0451 0.00030	N/A N/A	0.0452 0.00632	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A
Oil Usage (10 ³ gal)	54.0	0.0	54.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	10.2	1,741.2	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Heat Content (10 ⁶ Btu/10 ³ gal) Oil Density (lb/gal)	138.585 7.022		138.585 7.022					137.761 7.05	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A	N/A N/A
Wt % S	0.0372		0.0372				0.05	0.10	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
NO _x ^(b) (ton/yr)	186.9	163.1	133.1	203.0	130.2	166.6	1.77	195.7	30.9	40.0	77.2	N
CO ^(c) (ton/yr)	4.2	3.9	3.0	8.8	3.7	6.3	0.14	55.2	49.0	100.0	49.0	N
SO ₂ (ton/yr)	0.7	0.6	0.4	0.8	0.4	0.6	0.18	23.8	23.4	40.0	58.5	N
H ₂ SO, ^(d) (torr/yr)	0.0860	0.0740	0.0490	0.0980	0.0490	0.0740	0.02	2.9	2.8	7.0	40.7	N
PM ₁₀ ⁽ⁱⁱ⁾ (ton/yr)	2.5	2.3	2.1	3.1	2.1	2.6	0.06	16.1	13.6	15.0	90.4	N
F'M ^(c) (ton/yr)	2.5	2.3	2.1	3.1	2.1	2.6	0.06	16.1	13.6	25.0	54.2	N
Pb ^(d) (ton/yr)	0.00005	0.00000	0.00005	0.00000	0.00000	0.00003	0.00	0.0027	0.003	0.6	0.4	N
VOC ^(b) (ton/yr)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.42	6.1	6.5	40.0	16.3	N

⁽a) Based on natural gas specific gravity of 0.59.

Sources: ECT, 2006. RCES, 2006.

⁽b) Acid Rain Program data.

⁽c) Annual Operating Report (AOR) data.

⁽d) Based on 8.0% conversion of fuel sulfur to SO₃ and 100% conversion of SO₃ to H₂SO₄.

⁽e) Use of April 2000 AP-42 factor for distillate oil (1.4 x 10 5 lb/10 8 Btu); negligible Pb emissions assume for natural gas combustion.

⁽f) Heat input increased to 505 x 108 Btu/hr, HHV for Scenarios 2 and 6.

Table B5. RCES LM6000 Repowering Project - Revised April 2006 Annual Criteria and H₂SO₄ Emission Rates 0.1 %S Fuel Oil, 475 hr/yr

	Scenario	Operating		Emission Rates												
Annual		Hours	NO _x		CO		VOC		PM/P	Mino	80	2	H ₂ S	0,	Le	ad
Profile		(hrs/yr)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)	(lb/hr)	(tpy)
1	1	100	42.0	2.10	8.1	0.40	1.10	0.06	3.0	0.15	2.6	0.13	0.3	0.02	0.0002	0.0000
	2	36	74.0	1.33	2.4	0.04	4.90	0.09	15.5	0.28	51.7	0.93	6.3	0.11	0.0071	0.00010
	6	7,164	43.0	154.03	5.1	18.26	0.41	1.48	3.0	10.75	2.8	9.95	0.3	1.22	0.0002	0.00087
	13	1,110	16.0	8.88	6.2	3.41	0.68	0.38	3.0	1.67	1.0	0.55	0.1	0.07	0.0001	0.00005
	15	300	72.3	10.85	2.4	0.36	4.80	0.72	13.6	2.04	45.4	6.81	5.6	0.83	0.0062	0.00093
	17	50	•	0.04	-	0.16	1.10	0.03	3.0	0.08	2.8	0.07	0.3	0.01	0.0002	0.00001
	Totals	8.760	N/A	177.22	N/A	22.63	N/A	2.75	N/A	14.96	N/A	18.43	N/A	2.26	N/A	0.0020
2	2	475	74.0	17.58	2.4	0.57	4.9	1.16	15.5	3.68	51.7	12.28	6.3	1.50	0.0071	0.00168
	6	8,285	43.0	178.13	5.1	21.12	0.4	1.71	3.0	12.43	2.8	11.50	0.3	1,41	0.0002	0.00101
	Totals	8.760	N/A	195.70	N/A	21.69	N/A	2.88	N/A	15,11	N/A	32.76	N/A	2.95	N/A	0.0007
3	3	8,760	16.0	70.08	12.6	55.19	0.7	2.98	3.0	13.14	1.00	4.37	0.12	0.54	0.0001	0.00038
	Totals	8,760	N/A	70.08	N/A	55.19	N/A	2.98	N/A	13.14	N/A	4.37	N/A	0.54	N/A	0.00038
4	2	475	74.0	17.58	2.4	0.57	4.9	1.16	15.5	3.68	51.7	12.28	6.3	1.50	0.0071	0.00168
	4	8,285	41.7	172.74	4.9	20.13	1.2	4.97	3.0	12.43	2.5	10.47	0.3	1.28	0.0000	0.00000
	Totals	8,760	N/A	190.32	N/A	20.70	N/A	6.13	N/A	16,11	N/A	22.74	N/A	2.79	N/A	0.0017
	Max.			195.70		55.19		6.13		16.11		23.78		2.91		0.0027

Notes

Bold and shaded tpy values represent highest for all annual profiles. Heat input increased to 505 x 10⁶ Sturn, HHV for Scenarios 2 and 6.

Sources: ECT, 2006. GE, 2006. RCES, 2006.

Table B7. RCES LM6000 Repowering Project - Revised April 2006 CT Fuel Flow Rate Data

Scenario	Ambient Temp. (*F)	CT inlet Temp. (°F)	Fuel Type (Gas/Oil)	Generator Output (kW)	Load ¹ (%)	Heat Input - LHV ⁶ (MMBtu/hr)	Heat Input - HHV ^{2.5} (MMBtu/hr)	Fuel Rate (lb/hr)	Fuel Rate (lb/sec)	Fuel Rate ³ (10 ⁶ ft ² /hr)	Fuel Rate ^o (10 ⁵ gel/hr)
1	30.0	30.0	Gas	50,242	100	421.9	467.8	20,346	5.652	0.450	N/A
2	30.0	30.0	Oil	50,210	100	475.5	505.0	25,843	7,179	N/A	3.686
3	30.0	30.0	Gas	13,000	26	163.8	181.6	7,900	2.194	0.175	N/A
4	60.4	57.9	Gas	48,684	97	414.7	459.8	19,999	5.555	0.442	N/A
5	60.4	60.4	Gas	48,645	97	415.3	460.5	20,027	5.563	0.443	N/A
6	60.4	48.0	Gas	50,729	101	455.5	505.0	21,979	6.105	0.486	N/A
7	62.3	60.5	Gas	48,230	96	411.3	456.0	19,836	5.510	0.439	N/A
8	62.3	62.3	Gas	48,367	97	413.3	458.2	19,928	5.536	0.441	NA
9	70.1	65.9	Gas	47,254	95	404.1	448.0	19,486	5.413	0.431	N/A
10	68.4	68.4	Gas	18,812	38	202.6	224.6	9,768	2.713	0,216	N/A
11	73.9	73.9	Gas	18,812	38	202.2	224.2	9,750	2.708	0.216	N/A
12	75.0	75.0	Gas	18,812	38	202.1	224.1	9,745	2.707	0.215	N/A
13	70.0	70.0	Gas	13,000	26	163.5	181.3	7,885	2.190	0.174	N/A
14	83.5	50.0	Gas	49,957	100	425.6	471.9	20,526	5.702	0.454	N/A
15	83.5	50.0	Oil	48,547	97	417.5	443.4	22,691	6.303	N/A	3.219
16	83.0	83.0	Gas	13,000	26	163.2	173.3	7,872	2.187	0.174	N/A
			Max Gas Max Oil	50,729 50,210		455.5 475.5	505.0 505.0	21,979 25,843	6.105 7.179	0.486 N/A	N/A 3.666

Based on 100 % load = 50,000 kW.

Sources: ECT, 2006. GE, 2006. RCES, 2006.

² Based on HHV/LHV ratio of 1.108742 (gas) and 1.06201 (oil).

Based on natural gas density of 0.04523 lb/ft³.

Based on distillate fuel oil density of 7.04986 lb/gal.

⁵ Heat input increased to 505 x 10⁶ Btu/hr, HHV for Scenarios 2 and 6.

Table B2a. RCES LM6000 Repowering Project - Revised April 2006 CT Hourly Criteria and H₂SO₄ Emission Rates

	Ambient	CT Inlet	Fuel	Nominal								
Scenario	Temp.	Temp.	Type	Load	PM/P	M ₁₀ 1	SO ₂ ²		H ₂ S	O ₄ 3	Pb	4,5
	(°F)	(°F)	(Gas/C)ii)	(%)	(lb/hr)	(g/sec)	(lb/hr)	(g/sec)	(lb/hr)	(g/sec)	(lb/hr)	(g/sec)
1	30.0	30.0	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.57	0.32	0.31	0.040	0.00022	0.000028
2 ⁶	30.0	30.0	Oil	100	15.5	1.95	51.69	6.51	6.33	0.798	0.00707	0.000891
3	30.0	30.0	Gas	25	3.0	0.38	1.00	0.13	0.12	0.015	0.00009	0.000011
4	60.4	57.9	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.53	0.32	0.31	0.039	0.00022	0.000028
5	60.4	60.4	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.53	0.32	0.31	0.039	0.00022	0.000028
65	60.4	48.0	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.78	0.35	0.34	0.043	0.00024	0.000031
7	62.3	60.5	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.51	0.32	0.31	0.039	0.00022	0.000028
8	62.3	62.3	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.52	0.32	0.31	0.039	0.00022	0.000028
9	70.1	65.9	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.46	0.31	0.30	0.038	0.00022	0.000027
10	68.4	68.4	Gas	40	3.0	0.38	1.23	0.16	0.15	0.019	0.00011	0.000014
11	73.9	73.9	Gas	40	3.0	0.38	1.23	0.16	0.15	0.019	0.00011	0.000014
12	75.0	75.0	Gas	40	3.0	0.38	1.23	0.16	0.15	0.019	0.00011	0.000014
13	70.0	70.0	Gas	25	3.0	0.38	1.00	0.13	0.12	0.015	0.00009	0.000011
14	83.5	50.0	Gas	100	3.0	0.38	2.59	0.33	0.32	0.040	0.00023	0.000029
15	83.5	50.0	Oil	100	13.6	1.72	45.38	5.72	5.56	0.700	0.00621	0.000782
16	83.0	83.0	Gas	25	3.0	0.38	0.99	0.13	0.12	0.015	0.00009	0.000011
												·
				Max Gas	3.0	0.38	2.78	0.35	0.34	0.04	0.00024	0.00003
				Max Oil	15.5	1.95	51.69	6.51	6.33	0.80	0.00707	0.00089

¹ Filterable PM, as measured by EPA Reference Method 5.

Sources: ECT, 2006. GE. 2006.

Based on natural gas sulfur content of 2.0 gr/100 ft³ and distillate fuel oil sulfur content of 0.1 weight % sulfur. Based on 8.0% conversion of fuel S to SO_3 and 100% conversion of SO_3 to H_2SO_4 .

⁴ Natural Gas - Table 1.4-2., AP-42, July 1998.

⁵ Distillate Fuel Oil - Table 3.1-2a, AP-42, April 2000.

⁶ Heat input increased to 505 x 10⁶ Btu/hr, HHV for Scenarios 2 and 6.

17 May 2006
Reedy Creek Improvement District
LM6000 Repowering Project
FDEP Air Permit No. 0950111-025-AC
Request for Permit Revision – Heat Input Increase and Emissions Averaging
Attachment, Page 1 of 1

Proposed Section 3, Condition 20(e), Emissions Averages

e. *Emissions Averages*. The emissions data shall be reduced to 1-hour averages. Compliance with the NOx standards shall be demonstrated based on a 4-hour rolling average of the 1-hour emissions averages consistent with the requirements in NSPS Subpart GG and as defined herein. The NOx CEM shall express 1-hour emission averages and 4-hour rolling averages in terms of "ppmvd corrected to 15% oxygen". An hour during which any amount of oil is fired shall be attributed to "oil firing". If an operational period includes both gas firing and oil firing, the 4-hour emissions standard shall be prorated based on the emissions standard for each fuel and the number of hours of firing attributed to each fuel. Upon a request from the Compliance Authority, the NOx emission rate shall be corrected to ISO conditions to demonstrate compliance with the applicable standards of 40 CFR 60.332.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with Section 4, Appendix E and NSPS Subpart GG (40 CFR60.332) emissions limits, all valid CEMS NOx emissions data shall be used.

For the purpose of recording one-hour NOx averages and four-hour rolling NOx averages in compliance with the limits of Section 3, Condition 10; NOx average emissions shall be calculated to exclude periods of excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction (SU/SD/M) provided the permittee remains in compliance with the conditions of Section 3, Conditions 12, 13, and 14. For the purpose of determining and recording periods of excess emissions and calculating and recording NOx average emissions, the following procedures shall be used.

- I. NOx emissions (including SU/SD/M) will be evaluated and recorded in 1-minute intervals.
- II. NOx emissions data collected during periods of SU/SD/M (in 1-minute intervals, up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period) will be extracted prior to calculating hourly emission concentrations for determination of compliance with the 4-hour rolling average limit. Only data obtained during the described episode (startup, shutdown, or malfunction) may be excluded. These excluded periods will be identified and recorded as excess emissions (and attributed to SU/SD/M) if the averages of the excluded periods are above the rolling average limits for the particular fuel. This information will be reported in the Quarterly Excess Emissions Reports, along with the time, duration, and average NOx ppmvd, corrected to 15% O2.
- III. After the SU/SD/M periods have been extracted (in 1-minute intervals up to a total of 2 hours in a rolling 24-hour period), hourly averages will be calculated for determination of compliance with the NOx emission limit. A valid hourly average must have at least two valid data points at least 15 minutes apart (of non-excluded data); if there is insufficient data, the balance of the clock hour will be ignored.
- IV. Determination of the 4-hour rolling average period begins after the extraction of SU/SD/M data and are determined without regard to calendar days.



Reedy Creek Energy Services

May 31, 2006

RECEIVED

JUN 0 2 2006

Mr. Al Linero, P.E. Florida Department of Environmental Protection Division of Air Resource Management 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite 23 Tallahassee, Florida 32301

BUREAU OF AIR REGULATION

Re:

Reedy Creek Improvement District

LM6000 Repowering Project

FDEP Air Permit No. 0950111-025-AC

Request for Permit Revision – Heat Input Increase and Emissions

Averaging

Dear Mr. Linero:

The Department issued Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC dated June 13, 2005 to the Walt Disney World Company, Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) authorizing the installation and initial operation of a replacement LM6000 PC gas turbine. The purpose of this letter is to request a revision to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow for an increase in permitted capacity and to clarify the calculation and recording of the NOx four-hour rolling average.

An introductory letter on this topic (attached) was previously sent on May 17, 2006. At the request of Mr. Tom Cascio of your office, we are additionally submitting revised pages 1-6, 15, 17, 26-29 of the Application for Permit-Long Form for your consideration.

Please contact me at (407) 824-4943 if you have any questions regarding this permit revision request.

Sincerely

Edward Godwin, P.E.

Chief Mechanical Engineer

Attachments

cc:

Mr. Leonard Kozlov Program Administrator Air Resources Management

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232

Orlando, Florida 32803-3767



Department of RECEIVED Environmental Protection JUN 0 2 2006

Division of Air Resource Management BUREAU OF AIR REGULATION APPLICATION FOR AIR PERMIT - LONG FORM

I. APPLICATION INFORMATION

Air Construction Permit - Use this form to apply for an air construction permit for a proposed project:

- subject to prevention of significant deterioration (PSD) review, nonattainment area (NAA) new source review, or maximum achievable control technology (MACT) review; or
- where the applicant proposes to assume a restriction on the potential emissions of one or more pollutants to escape a federal program requirement such as PSD review, NAA new source review, Title V, or MACT; or
- at an existing federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) or Title V permitted facility.

Air Operation Permit - Use this form to apply for:

- an initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP); or
- an initial/revised/renewal Title V air operation permit.

Air Construction Permit & Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit (Concurrent Processing Option) -Use this form to apply for both an air construction permit and a revised or renewal Title V air operation permit incorporating the proposed project.

To ensure accuracy, please see form instructions.

Identification of Facility

1.	Facility Owner/Company Name: Walt Disney World Company							
2.	Site Name: Walt Disney World Resort Complex, Reedy Creek Improvement District							
3.	Facility Identification Number: 0950111							
4.	Facility Location							
	Street Address or Other Locator: 1375 Buena Vista Drive							
	City: Lake Buena Vista County: Orange and Osceola Zip Code: 33830-8402							
5.	Relocatable Facility? 6. Existing Title V Permitted Facility?							
	Yes X No X Yes No							
Ar	oplication Contact							
1.	Application Contact Name: Edward Godwin, P.E.							
2.	Application Contact Mailing Address							
	Organization/Firm: Reedy Creek Energy Services							
	Street Address: P.O. Box 10000							
	City: Lake Buena Vista State: Florida Zip Code: 32830-1000							
3.	Application Contact Telephone Numbers							
	Telephone: (407) 824-4943 ext. Fax: (407) 824-4529							
4.	Application Contact Email Address: ed.godwin@disney.com							
Aı	oplication Processing Information (DEP Use)							
1.	Date of Receipt of Application: \dot{U} -2- \dot{U}							
2.	Date of Receipt of Application: $6-3-16$ Project Number(s): $950/11-136-AC$							
3.	PSD Number (if applicable):							
4.	Siting Number (if applicable):							

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

Purpose of Application

This application for air permit is submitted to obtain: (Check one)			
Air Construction Permit x Air construction permit. (Revision Request)			
Air Operation Permit Initial Title V air operation permit. Title V air operation permit revision. Title V air operation permit renewal. Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional engineer (PE) certification is required. Initial federally enforceable state air operation permit (FESOP) where professional engineer (PE) certification is not required.			
Air Construction Permit and Revised/Renewal Title V Air Operation Permit (Concurrent Processing) Air construction permit and Title V permit revision, incorporating the proposed project. Air construction permit and Title V permit renewal, incorporating the proposed project.			
Note: By checking one of the above two boxes, you, the applicant, are requesting concurrent processing pursuant to Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C. In such case, you must also check the following box: I hereby request that the department waive the processing time requirements of the air construction permit to accommodate the processing time frames of the Title V air operation permit.			

Application Comment

The Department issued Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC dated June 13, 2005 to the Walt Disney World Company, Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID) authorizing the installation and initial operation of a replacement LM6000 PC gas turbine. The purpose of this application is to: (a) request a revision to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC to allow for an increase in permitted heat input capacity, and (b) and to clarify the calculation and recording of excess emissions due to startup/shutdown/malfunction.

Section 3., Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC limits the LM6000 gas turbine maximum heat input to 480 million British thermal units per hour on a higher heating value basis (mmBtu/hr, HHV) at a compressor inlet temperature of 30°F and full load operation. Initial operation of the LM6000 gas turbine indicates that this maximum heat input, which was based on gas turbine vendor projections, under estimates the actual performance of the LM6000 unit by approximately five percent. Accordingly, RCID requests that Condition No. 6 be revised to show a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 30°F and full load operation.

Section 3, Condition No. 20 and No. 20(e) of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC defines the calculation and recording of emissions averages and excess emissions. RCID requests clarification of these monitoring requirements per the attached "Proposed Section 3, Condition 20(e) – Emissions Averages" protocol.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form

Scope of Application

Emissions Unit ID Number	Description of Emissions Unit	Air Permit Type	Air Permit Proc. Fee
088	GE LM6000 Combustion Turbine (CT) and Heat Recovery Steam Generator Duct Burner (DB)	N/A	N/A
	:		
	-		

Application Processing Fee Check one: ____ Attached - Amount: \$____ x Not Applicable A permit processing fee is not required for a modification to a Title V source pursuant to Rule 62-213.205(4), F.A.C.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form

Owner/Authorized Representative Statement

Complete if applying for an air construction permit or an initial FESOP.

1. Owner/Authorized Representative Name:

Lee Schmudde, Vice President

2. Owner/Authorized Representative Mailing Address... Organization/Firm: Walt Disney World Company

Street Address: P.O. Box 10000

City: Lake Buena Vista State: Florida Zip Code: 32830-1000

3. Owner/Authorized Representative Telephone Numbers...

Telephone: (407) 828 - 1723 ext. Fax: (407) 828 - 4311

4. Owner/Authorized Representative Email Address: lee.schmudde@disney.com

5. Owner/Authorized Representative Statement:

I, the undersigned, am the owner or authorized representative of the facility addressed in this air permit application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and complete and that, to the best of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this application are based upon reasonable techniques for calculating emissions. The air pollutant emissions units and air pollution control equipment described in this application will be operated and maintained so as to comply with all applicable standards for control of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of the State of Florida and rules of the Department of Environmental Protection and revisions thereof and all other requirements identified in this application to which the facility is subject. I understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred without authorization from the department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or legal transfer of the facility or any permitted emissions unit.

Signature

Date

1/3//05

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form



Application Responsible Official Certification

Complete if applying for an initial/revised/renewal Title V permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised/renewal Title V permit. If there are multiple responsible officials, the "application responsible official" need not be the "primary responsible official."

1.	Application Responsible Official Name:
2.	Application Responsible Official Qualification (Check one or more of the following options, as applicable): For a corporation, the president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation, or a duly authorized representative of such person if the representative is responsible for the overall operation of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities applying for or subject to a permit under Chapter 62-213, F.A.C. For a partnership or sole proprietorship, a general partner or the proprietor, respectively. For a municipality, county, state, federal, or other public agency, either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. The designated representative at an Acid Rain source.
3.	Application Responsible Official Mailing Address Organization/Firm:
	Street Address:
	City: State: Zip Code:
4.	Application Responsible Official Telephone Numbers Telephone: () - ext. Fax: () -
5.	Application Responsible Official Email Address:
6.	Application Responsible Official Certification:
	I, the undersigned, am a responsible official of the Title V source addressed in this air permit application. I hereby certify, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, that the statements made in this application are true, accurate and complete and that, to the best of my knowledge, any estimates of emissions reported in this application are based upon reasonable techniques for calculating emissions. The air pollutant emissions units and air pollution control equipment described in this application will be operated and maintained so as to comply with all applicable standards for control of air pollutant emissions found in the statutes of the State of Florida and rules of the Department of Environmental Protection and revisions thereof and all other applicable requirements identified in this application to which the Title V source is subject. I understand that a permit, if granted by the department, cannot be transferred without authorization from the department, and I will promptly notify the department upon sale or legal transfer of the facility or any permitted emissions unit. Finally, I certify that the facility and each emissions unit are in compliance with all applicable requirements to which they are subject, except as identified in compliance plan(s) submitted with this application.
	Signature Date

Pre	Professional Engineer Certification			
1.	Professional Engineer Name: Thomas W. Davis			
	Registration Number: 36777			
2.	Professional Engineer Mailing Address			
	Organization/Firm: Environmental Consulting & Technology, Inc.			
	Street Address: 3701 Northwest 98th Street			
	City: Gainesville State: Florida Zip Code: 32606-5004			
3.	Professional Engineer Telephone Numbers			
	Telephone: (352) 332 - 0444 ext. Fax: (352) 332 - 6722			
4.	Professional Engineer Email Address: tdavis@ectinc.com			
5.	Professional Engineer Statement:			
	I, the undersigned, hereby certify, except as particularly noted herein*, that:			
	(1) To the best of my knowledge, there is reasonable assurance that the air pollutant emissions unit(s) and the air pollution control equipment described in this application for air permit, when properly operated and maintained, will comply with all applicable standards for control of air pollutant emissions found in the Florida Statutes and rules of the Department of Environmental Protection; and			
	(2) To the best of my knowledge, any emission estimates reported or relied on in this application are true, accurate, and complete and are either based upon reasonable techniques available for calculating emissions or, for emission estimates of hazardous air pollutants not regulated for an emissions unit addressed in this application, based solely upon the materials, information and calculations submitted with this application.			
	(3) If the purpose of this application is to obtain a Title V air operation permit (check here, if so), I further certify that each emissions unit described in this application for air permit, when properly operated and maintained, will comply with the applicable requirements identified in this application to which the unit is subject, except those emissions units for which a compliance plan and schedule is submitted with this application.			
	(4) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an air construction permit (check here x , if so) or concurrently process and obtain an air construction permit and a Title V air operation permit revision or renewal for one or more proposed new or modified emissions units (check here			
	, if so), I further certify that the engineering features of each such emissions unit described in this application have been designed or examined by me or individuals under my direct supervision and found to be in conformity with sound engineering principles applicable to the control of emissions of the air pollutants characterized in this application.			
3.000	(5) If the purpose of this application is to obtain an initial air operation permit or operation permit revision or renewal for one or more newly constructed or modified emissions units (check level), if so, I further certify that, with the exception of any changes detailed as part of this application, each such emissions unit has been constructed or modified in substantial accordance with the information given in the corresponding application for air construction permit and with all provisions contained in such permit.			
	Signature Date			
E 2				

6

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form Effective: 06/16/03

EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [1] **of** [1]

B. EMISSIONS UNIT CAPACITY INFORMATION

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Emissions Unit Operating Capacity and Schedule

1. Maximum Process or Throughput Rate: N/A

2. Maximum Production Rate: N/A

3. Maximum Heat Input Rate: 505 million Btu/hr (HHV) – CT

198 million Btu/hr (HHV) - HRSG DB

4. Maximum Incineration Rate: pounds/hr N/A

tons/day

5. Requested Maximum Operating Schedule:

24 hours/day

7 days/week

52 weeks/year

8,760 hours/year

6. Operating Capacity/Schedule Comment:

Maximum CT heat input at a compressor inlet air temperature of 30°F, fuel higher heating value, and 100% load. CT heat input rates will vary depending upon CT characteristics, ambient conditions, fuel type, and CT compressor inlet air conditioning.

The HRSG DB will operate only in fresh-air mode (i.e., the duct burner will not operate concurrently with the GE LM 6000 CT) for up to 1,000 hours per year.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

EMISSIONS UNIT INFORMATION

Section [1]

of [1]

D. SEGMENT (PROCESS/FUEL) INFORMATION

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 1 of 3

1.	Segment	Description	(Process/Fuel	Type):
----	---------	-------------	---------------	--------

Combustion turbine fired with pipeline-quality natural gas.

2. Source Classification Code (SCC):		3. SCC Units:			
2-01-002-01		Milli	on cubic feet burned		
	4.	Maximum Hourly Rate:	5. Maximum		6. Estimated Annual Activity
		0.500	4,3	380	Factor: N/A
	7.	Maximum % Sulfur:	8. Maximum	% Ash:	9. Million Btu per SCC Unit:
		N/A	N/A		1,040 (HHV)

10. Segment Comment:

Fields 4 and 5 based on 100% load, CT inlet air temperature of 48°F, and 8,760 hr/yr.

Segment Description and Rate: Segment 2 of 3

1. Segment Description (Process/Fuel Type):

Combustion turbine fired with distillate fuel oil.

2. Source Classification Code (SCC):		3. SCC Units:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2-01-001-01		Thou	isand gallons burned
4. Maximum Hourly Rate: 3.666	5. Maximum Annual Rate: 1,741.4		6. Estimated Annual Activity Factor: N/A
7. Maximum % Sulfur: 0.1	8. Maximum % Ash: 0.1		9. Million Btu per SCC Unit: 137,760 (HHV)

10. Segment Comment:

Fields 4 and 5 based on 100% load, CT inlet air temperature of 30°F, and 475 hr/yr.

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION – POTENTIAL/ESTIMATED FUGITIVE EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Potential/Estimated Fugitive Emissions

Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air operation permit.

1.	Pollutant Emitted:	2. Total Perce	ent Efficie	ency of Control:
	SO_2		N/A	A .
3.	Potential Emissions:		4. Synth	etically Limited?
	51.7 lb/hour 23.	8 tons/year	x	Yes No
5.	Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as to tons/year N/A	applicable):	1	
6.	Emission Factor: N/A	·		7. Emissions
	Reference: Vendor Data			Method Code: 2
8.	Calculation of Emissions:			
	Potential Hourly Emissions:			
	100% load, 30°F CT inlet, oil-firing			
	Potential Annual Emissions: 100% load, 30°F CT inlet, oil-firing (475 hr 100% load, 48°F CT inlet, gas-firing (8,285) $51.7 \frac{lb}{hr} \times 475 \frac{hr}{yr} \times \frac{ton}{2,000 \ lb} + 2.8 \frac{lb}{hr} \times 8,285$	hr/yr)	12.3 + 11.	$5 = 23.8 \frac{ton}{yr}$
9.	Pollutant Potential/Estimated Fugitive Emis	sions Comment	:	

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION Page [8] of [10]

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION - ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical emissions limitation.

emissions infiltation.				
Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions	<u>1</u> of <u>2</u>			
Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: ESCPSD	Future Effective Date of Allowable Emissions: N/A			
 Allowable Emissions and Units: 2.0 grains S / 100 ft³ natural gas 	4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 2.8 lb/hour 12.2 tons/year			
5. Method of Compliance: Fuel analysis per 40 CFR Part 75, Appe	endix D.			
6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Descript Limits applicable to CT while firing na maximum of 8,760 hr/yr.	tion of Operating Method): tural gas. Field 4 annual emissions based on			
Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions	<u>2</u> of <u>2</u>			
Basis for Allowable Emissions Code: ESCPSD	Future Effective Date of Allowable Emissions: N/A			
3. Allowable Emissions and Units: 0.1 weight % S distillate fuel oil	4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: 51.7 lb/hour 12.3 tons/year			
5. Method of Compliance: Fuel analysis per 40 CFR Part 75, Appe				
, , ,	6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method): Limits applicable to CT while firing No. 2 fuel oil. Field 4 annual emissions based on maximum of 475 hr/yr.			
Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions	of			
1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:	2. Future Effective Date of Allowable Emissions:			
3. Allowable Emissions and Units:	4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: lb/hour tons/year			
5. Method of Compliance:				
6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Descript	ion of Operating Method):			

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

F1. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION – POTENTIAL/ESTIMATED FUGITIVE EMISSIONS

(Optional for unregulated emissions units.)

Potential/Estimated Fugitive Emissions

Complete for each pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air construction permit or concurrent processing of an air construction permit and a revised or renewal Title V permit. Complete for each emissions-limited pollutant identified in Subsection E if applying for an air operation permit.

1.	Pollutant Emitted:	2. Total Perce		ency of Control:	
	PM/PM_{10}		N/A	<u> </u>	
3.	Potential Emissions:		4. Synth	netically Limited?	
	15.5 lb/hour 16.1	l tons/year	X	Yes No	
5.	Range of Estimated Fugitive Emissions (as	applicable):		-	
	to tons/year N/A				
6.	Emission Factor: N/A			7. Emissions	
	Reference:			Method Code:	
				2	
8.	Calculation of Emissions:				
	Potential Hourly Emissions:				
	100% load, 30°F CT inlet, oil-firing				
	Potential Annual Emissions:				
	100% load, 30°F CT inlet, oil-firing (475 hr.	/yr)			
	100% load, 48°F CT inlet, gas-firing (8,285	• ,			
		• ,			
	$15.5 \frac{lb}{hr} \times 475 \frac{hr}{yr} \times \frac{ton}{2,000 \ lb} + 3.0 \frac{lb}{hr} \times 8,285 \frac{l}{l}$	$\frac{hr}{yr} \times \frac{ton}{2,000 \ lb} = 1$	3.7 + 12.4	$=16.1\frac{ton}{yr}$	
					-
9.	Pollutant Potential/Estimated Fugitive Emis	sions Comment	:		
		,			

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) – Form

F2. EMISSIONS UNIT POLLUTANT DETAIL INFORMATION -**ALLOWABLE EMISSIONS**

Complete if the pollutant identified in Subsection F1 is or would be subject to a numerical emissions limitation.

Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 1 of 2

		T		
1.	Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:	2.	Future Effective Date of Allowable	
	ESCPSD		Emissions:	
			N/A	
3.	Allowable Emissions and Units:	4.	Equivalent Allowable Emissions:	
	N/A		3.0 lb/hour 13.1 tons/year	
5.	5. Method of Compliance:			
	EPA Reference Method 9 (opacity used as a surrogate for PM/PM ₁₀).			
6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):				
Limits applicable to CT while firing natural gas. Field 4 annual emissions based on maximum of 8,760 hr/yr.				
Al	Allowable Emissions Allowable Emissions 2 of 2			

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:	2. Future Effective Date of Allowable	
ESCPSD	Emissions:	
	N/A	
3. Allowable Emissions and Units:	4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions:	
N/A	15.5 lb/hour 3.7 tons/year	
5. Method of Compliance:		
EPA Reference Method 9 (opacity used as a surrogate for PM/PM ₁₀).		
6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):		
Limits applicable to CT while firing No. 2 fuel oil. Field 4 annual emissions based on		
maximum of 475 hr/yr.		

Allowable Emissions __ of ___

1. Basis for Allowable Emissions Code:	2. Future Effective Date of Allowable Emissions:	
3. Allowable Emissions and Units:	4. Equivalent Allowable Emissions: lb/hour tons/year	
5. Method of Compliance:		
6. Allowable Emissions Comment (Description of Operating Method):		

DEP Form No. 62-210.900(1) - Form

U.S. Postal Service CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) \sim 믭 Mr .CLee Schmidde, VIce President : Postage 377[Certified Fee Postmark Return Receipt Fee Here ш (Endorsement Required) Restricted Delivery Fee (Endorsement Required) 2 Total Postage & Fees \$ 무 Sent To Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President Street, Act. No.; or PO Box No. 1375 Buena Vista Drive city, State, ZIP+4 Lake Buena Vista, Florida $\overline{\Box}$ 32830-8402

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE



First-Class Mail Postage & Fees Paid USPS Permit No. G-10

Sender: Please print your name, address, and ZIP+4 in this box

Dept. of Environmental Protection of Air Resources Mgt.

AUG 28 2006 Division of Air Resources Mgt.

Bureau of Air Regulation, NSR

BUREAU OF AIR REGULATIQUAhassee, FL 32399-2400 2600 Blair Stone Rd., MS 5505

. . .

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION	COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY	
Complete items 1, 2, and 3. Also complete item 4 if Restricted Delivery is desired. Print your name and address on the reverse so that we can return the card to you. Attach this card to the back of the mailpiece, or on the front if space permits.	A. Signature X	
1 Article Addressed to:	D. Is delivery address different from Item 1? Yes If YES, enter delivery address below: No	
Mr. Lee Schmudde, VIce Presiden		
Walt Disney World Company WDW Resort Complex-Reedy Cree Improvement District	k	
1375 Buena Vista Drive	3. Service Type	
Lake Buena Vista, FL 32830-8402	D Certifled Mall	
	4. Restricted Delivery? (Extra Fee)	
2. Article Number	7 M/2 211/10/7	
(Transfer from service label) OOO V	000133110 267	

Orlando Sentinel

Published Daily

State of Florida S.S.

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared
, who on oath says
that he/she is the Legal Advertising Representative of Orlando Sentinel, a daily newspaper published at in
County, Florida;
that the attached copy of advertisement, being a pure to NOTTOE OF
in the matter of WALT DIENEY WORLD COMPANY
in the CDANGE Court.
was published in said newspaper in the issue; of
Afficient fourthern consistent the social Order de Order
Affiant further says that the said Orlando Sentinel is a newspaper published at
County, Florida,
and that the said newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in
said OPANOE County Florida.
each Week Day and has been entered as second-class mail matter at the post
office in_ <u>net_ANDO</u> in said
County, Florida,
for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached
copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he/she has neither paid
nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of securing this agreement for
publication in the said newspaper.
publication in the said newspaper.
214
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before methis 21st day of
JULY 20 06 by BEVERLYC.SIMMONS
who is personally known to me and who did lake an oath.
(SEAL)
DEBORAH M. TONEY

Comm# DD0482759

Expires 11/18/2009 Sonded thru (800)432-4254 Florida Notery Assn., Inc Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department's Agency Clerk in the Office of General Counsel'of the Department of Environmental Protection at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by any persons other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S. must be filed within fourteen (14) days of publication of this Public Notice or receipt of a written notice, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting Authority for notice of agentical section 120.60(1).

REVERLYC STMMONS

cy action may file a petition within fourteen (14) days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above, at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time periods shall constitute a waiver of that person's right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority's action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency's file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address and telephone number of the petitioner; the name address and telephone number of the petitioner's representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner's substantial rights will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of how and when the petitioner received notice of the agency action or proposed action; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so state; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or stativtes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; and, (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency's proposed action, A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting Authority's action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, iF.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filling of a petition means that the Permitting Authority's final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available for this proceeding.

 PUBLIC NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Draft Air Permit No. 0950111-026-AC
Modification to Air Permit No. 0950111-025-AC
Walf Disney World Resort Complex Reedy Creek Improvement District (RCID)
Reedy Creek Energy Services Gas Turbine Replacement Project
Lake Buena Vista, Florida

Applicant: The applicant for this project is the Walt Disney World Company. The applicant's authorized representative and mailing address is: Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President; Walt Disney World Company; Reedy Creek Improvement District; Reedy Creek Energy Services; 1375 Buena Vista Drive; Lake Buena Vista, Florida 32830-8402.

Facility Location: Reedy Creek Energy Services, Inc. (RCES) operates an electrical generation and distribution system on behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex, which is located in both Orange and Osceola counties. The address is 1375 Buena Vista Drive in Lake Buena Vista, Florida.

Project: On behalf of the Reedy Creek Improvement District, Reedy Creek Energy Services operates a combined cycle gas turbine for the Walt Disney World Resort Complex. Air construction permit 0950111-025-AC, issued by the Department on June 13, 2005, authorized the applicant to replace the existing LM 5000 gas turbine with an LM 6000PC gas turbine with SPRINT. The new gas turbine uses water injection to reduce emissions of nitrogen oxides. An oxidation catalyst will reduce emissions of carbon monoxide and volatile organic compounds. Emissions of particulate matter and sulfur dioxide will be minimized by the efficient combustion and use of natural gas and distillate oil.

On June 2, 2006, RCID requested that Section 3, Condition No. 6 of Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC be modified to allow a maximum heat input of 505 mmBtu/hr, HHV at 300F and full load operation, and to replace the existing Section 3, Condition 20(e) with a proposed Condition 20(e) that addresses NOx four hour rolling average calculations and recording. Air Construction Permit 0950111-026-AC implements these changes. No other changes to Air Construction Permit No. 0950111-025-AC were requested or made.

The existing facility is considered a "major facility" in accordance with Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C., which is the new source preconstruction review program for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality in areas currently in attainment with the Ambient Air Quality Standards. However, based on the past actual emissions from the existing combined cycle gas turbine, the project will not result in a significant increase of any PSD-regulated pollutants. Therefore, the project is not subject to PSD preconstruction review.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210, and 62-212 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Bureau of Air Regulation is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this project. The Permitting Authority's physical address is: 111 South Magnolia Drive, Suite #4, Tallahassee, Florida. The Permitting Authority's mailing address is: 600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority's telephone number is 850/488-0114.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at address indicated above for the Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the Draft Permit, the Technical Evaluation and Preliminary Determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant, exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority's project review engineer for additional information at the address or phone number listed above. A copy of the complete project file is also available at the Air Resource Section of the Department's Central District Office at 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767. The telephone number is 407/894-7555. Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit: The Permitting Authority give notice of its intent to issue an air permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that operation of proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296, and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting Authority will issue a Final Permit in accordance with the conditions of the proposed Draft Permit unless a timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or conditions.

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the proposed Draft Permit for a period of fourteen (14) days from the date of publication of this Public Notice. Written comments must be provided to the Permitting Authority at the above address. Any written comments filed will be made available for public inspection. If written comments received result in a significant change to the Draft Permit, the Permitting Authority shall revise the Draft Permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice.

	U.S. Postal Service CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided)			
707H	OFF	i Gial	(S) (S) (E) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S) (S	
סנוב בוסס	Postage Certified Fee Return Receipt Fee (Endorsement Required) Restricted Delivery Fee (Endorsement Required)	\$	Postmark Here	
7000 1670 C	Mr. Lee Schmudde, Vice President Walt Disney World Company WDW Recort Complex-Reedy Creek			
ì	PS Form 3800, May 2000		See Reverse for Instructions	

.